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. Annexure 1: HPL Emergency Response Roster
- @asest HPL EMERGENCY RESPONSE ROSTER
SNOTSST signation = | 00 Name | Designation =~~~ | ~—  MobileNo.
. Natzir Abbas Zoidi Chief Operations and New Business {0345-B200505
Leaters Aamir Buli Chif Logistits 0321-2551513
1 [ERT Ageel Almned Khan Chief Retails |o302-8220873
Shah M. Saad Husszn CHRO, Corporale Planning and HSSE  |0235-3888677
2 |Chief Execulive Cificer Saleem Bult Chief Execulive Officer |o323-2666301
Sarwal Hassan Chial Engineesing ]uam-zrzrm
Zatar uf Hag Munshi Chigf Rabail 03227167555
Shamim Raza Nagyi Chie! Joint Ventures & New Projects |0 1-8201606
2 |Operalions Representstve Yasin Haider Rizvi CO0 Lubricars [ea3z-H171118
Syed Pervaiz Youss Chief Supply & Imporis [ca00-azee146
Taimur Khan Chief LPG,LNG and Chrmicals | 03052009675
Wuhammaad AN Ansan Chiaf Operational Firence & Commercial | 0321-2455566
Abbasi Manager HSSE D245-6560568
4 |HSE Representative g:’: e 8560668
5 |Senxiy Representative Saleem Akram Bult Manager Gecuity 0321-2580097
& |Proasement Represontaiive Abdul Ahad Manager Procurement 0321-38990356
7 _|Financal Representative Khurram Shatzad Chief Financial Officer 0321-2550067
8 |Legal Representafive Zeeshan ul Hag GM Legal & Company Secrefary 0321-2500449
Sharon Siiveria Manager Organizaion Development 0300-2193257
9 |[¥eeerstentabia Saad Fani Executive AR ‘l_ozzzm_ — ]
10 | Acministration Represeniatve Abida Jan Muhammad Manaper HR Services & Admin 0321-2100112
11 | Adswin Coond. Mariam Muneer Junior Adrmin Officer 03353272129
Arfaz Ul Haq Fandi Admin Officer 0322007122
12_|Event Logger Muddasir Ahmed Junior Admin Oficer |0306-2522225
13_[Switch Boad Stumaia 0335-2065567
I ey T L w7 e gt Wi g i Pl i

Siln HESE Coolingior

Site Logiskcs Coortinator

| Syen A8 Haidar

$8e Response Lesadior | Heraalel Naawearz ]
AMG |5%e HSSE Coordinalor Sohall Hasrat HSSE Site Officer ’0344—&22213
Sl Logesiics Coordinalor Marammad Zaid Tramee Enginoes CA34-S007TST

Local PoBce: 13
Sindh Rengera-1107, (21-220679

KPT Fire Brigade: 0219263052
KL Fire Brigade: 021-9215007
¥han Hospital; 021-34930051

HPL (Head Office} - (2135334798 UAN 1 3110-757-757

Chisf brspactor EXplosives: 053-250631
Bomb Dispesal Squaid: (21-5921674, 021-0921680

EDHI Amibnsasice: 11511224021-7310088 MM Fine Brigade Kevmji DZ1-5066260

KMC Fire Brigade- Saddar: 021- 9715005
South City Hospital: 021-35078620
Lisquat National Hospitat: (121-38615055

VAN Z 111135907

HPL (Far) (21-3530135 171200
POAMT-BRTT21 U421
POATR-9Z7211 18448
POATCI-90Z7211 144447
POAN-DB2T211 114482
Jnnah Hospital: 171-95201300
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Annexure 2: TREM card intraduced for drivers to deal with any situation in case of emergency
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1.8 Site Emergency Response Plan (SERP)

Each facility should develop site emergency response plan, Foliowing elements at least should be
considered by each facility plan;

1. Facility Name

2. Facility Address

3.. Emergency Response Teams and Contact detaiis

4. Evacuation Route Maps
The following information should be marked on evacuation maps:

1. Emergency exits

2. Primary and secondary evacuation routes
3. Locations of firefighting equipment

4. Manual Alarm Call Point’s locations

5. Assembly points

1.3 Site Response Team (SRT) Organization

1.9.1 SRT Leader (Site In Charge or Assistant Site In charge)

On hearing the Emergency Siren or being informed of an accident or incident decide on the need for the
activation of Emergency Response.

Proceed to the ECC and assume control of the incident

L ]

* Obtain details of the incident and callout the SRT

* Ensure that all members of the SRT are familiar with their roles

* Coordinate all activities of the SRT and assign additional responsibilities to members

* Regularly update the Situation to the relevant operations Manager {operations, retails, logistics,
lubricants, warehouse, LPG, aviation etc.) in case of leve] 2 emergency

* Initiate and maintain liaison with Jocal authorities, emergency facilities and other services on
relevant issues arising out of the Emergency.

* Ensure the proper reporting to ERT.

¢ Ensure proper reporting to local government authorities if required in consultation with ERT,

* Call ERT Leader to callout ERT in case of level 2 emergency

¢ Establish, and specify to the ERT, the exact requirement for assistance needed by SRT.

* Callout and call off all €mergencies at his site.

1.9.2  Site HSSE Coordinator {Site HSSE Officer)

Assembly point
Undertake an initial HSSE assessment of the accident

Steer the implementation of the Emergency Response Manual as applicable to the incident
Provide and/or arrange for expert advice to the SRT on HSE issues

Be prepared to attend the incident site as required by the SRT Leader

Ensure the safety of the SRT is considered during all planning stages of the incident response.

" & & a
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Advice the SRT Leader for development of preliminary and final incident/ accident report for
submission to internal and external authorities as required

*  Proceedto Emergency Control Center (ECC) after checking the head count {security supervisor).

For an offsite incident gather ali essential facts and receive an initial briefing prior to leaving the
ECC for the incident scene, if time allows

Secure the incident site if instructed to do so by SRT Leader

Provide expert advice to SRT on all HSSE matters

Liaise with external secy rity agencies for advice and assistance

Provide resource support to SRT on security matters as per agreed by SRTL

1.9.3 Site Logistics Coordinator {Site Logistics Representative)

¢ On hearing the alarm or being informed of an accident or incident, proceed to the Assem bling
Point,

¢ Logistic Coordinator shail proceed to ECC after the head count

¢ Arrange logistics support specific to Tank Lorries for Emergency handling operations in
consultation with SRT Leader and members

57

* o & 3

194  Admin Coordinator

* Ensure that ail emergency vehicles are in operation and are available for Emergency Response
activity

*  Assist SRT Leader for collection of data relating injuries & fatalities

s Maintain the emergency related data for the final compilation of emergency report,

* Actas event logger

1.9.5 First Aid Team (Nominated Site First Aider)
¢ On hearing the alarm or being informed of an accident or incident, proceed to the Assembly
Point and as per requirement proceed to incident scene for further evacuation of IP to safe

location.
*  Provide first aid to IP, if required or otherwise as per SRT Leader advice evacuate IP to nearest

hospital.
1.9.6 Firefighting Team {Nominated Firefighting Team Leader}

¢ On hearing the alarm or being informed of an accident or incident, proceed to the Assembly
Point and as per requirement proceed to incident scene for firefighting,

* Responds to and renders assistance in emergency case
Clean and inspect equipment and apparatus and returning from fire
Keeps fire station equipment & grounds in a clean & orderly condition

1.10  Assembly Point

®  On hearing the alarm or being informed of an accident or incident, ail personnel on board shall
proceed to the assembiy point

¢ The assembly point shall facilitate for head count of personnel on hoard

*  Assembly point shall e maintained by respective site team leaders

111 AllClear

¢ After controlling the emergency, all clear will be given by Site Response Team Leader.
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Section-D

INCIDENT REPORTING AND
INVESTIGATION SYSTEM
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Glossary

Term

L

‘ Definition

HSSE Incident

An HSSE event that has resulted in Injury or iilness and/or damage (loss) to assets,
the environment or company reputation,

Asset loss /
Damage

Property damaged or loss of process {production[productivity, quality deterioration
or downtime of an activity) as a result of an incidént. It does not include normal
faflures, trips and fosses to process that are not resulting from an incident,

Environmental
incident

An unplanned event or chain of events that has or could have a negative impact on
the environment.

Near-Miss

An event which potentially could have caused injury or occupational illness and for
damage (loss) to assets, the environment or company reputation, but which did not,

Lost Time Injury

A personal injury which results in the injured being unfit for work at least one shift
following the day of the injury. Fatality is also considered as LTI, Applicable to
Company & Contractor employees

First Aid Cases

A work related injury that requires one time treatment and subsequent observation
(for

example minor scratches, burns, cut, splinter which do not ordinarily require
medical case) and does not resuylt in LTl or recordabie case.,

Process Safety
Incident/Event

Any unintended release of material or energy (e.g. fire, explosion, implosion, LOPC)
from storage sites, excluding (1) TL operations when the TL is not connected to the
process (not at gantry or inside the site) ; (2) on-site filling/decanting operations of
TLs and stationary equipment; and (3) retaii fuel stations

Road accident

Any event with involvement of a registered road motor vehicle {owned or leased by
employer and employees’ swned vehicle} resuiting in injury or death.
The following categories are also considered an accident:
1. collision between vehicles in motion (except parking manoeuvres and
collision of side mirrors only of oncoming veh icles),
2. collision of vehicle with stationary object including other vehicles {except
parking manoeuvres),
3. non-collision events that involve vehicle when it is overturning, spinning,
skidding and/or running off the road.

Road Incident
{Tanker Lorry)

Any event with involvement of a Company or Contractor Tanker Lorry performing
transport of dangerous / hazardous / flammable material resulting in death or
injury. The following categories are also considered as a road accident (T/L);

a) Collision between vehicles in motion (except parking manoeuvres and collision of
side mirrors only of oncoming vehicles),

b} Coliision of Com pany or Contractor vehicle with stationary object including other
vehicles {except parking manoeuvres), and large animais {e.g. cow, camel),

c) Non-collision events involving overturning, spinning, skidding and/or running off
the road. It is not relevant who was injured, whose assets were damaged, where an
event happened or who was at fault.

Oil Spilis

A spill is defined as an accidental or unplanned loss of primary containment from a
HASCOL or contractor operation, irrespective of any secondary containment or
recovery

Unsafe Act

L

Generally described as a human action departing from prescribed hazard contrais or
job procedures or practices, or an action causing a person unnecessary exposure to
hazard.
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Term

Definition

Examples are: removing safety devices, using defective tools, using equipment

without
authority, fallure to wear PPE, etc.

Unsafe Condition

Unsafe situation or environment that may contribute to incidents. Examples are: |
defective equipment or tools, inadequate procedures, poor design or fayout,
improper storage of hazardous materials, etc.

Medical
Treatment Case

Treatment of an occupational injury/iliness beyond first aid is considered medical
treatment even when It is provided by someone other than a physician or other
licensed health care professional. The case is still considered medical treatment
Regardless of whether the employee follows the medical recommendation. The
following points are
considered medical treatment:
* Loss of consciousness, no matter how short in duration.
¢ Significant injuries, such as a punctured ear drum, fractured toe or rib for
which medical treatment or work restrictions are not given.
¢ Significant progressive diseases, such as by sinuses, silicosis, and some types
of occupational cancer work, which medical treatment and work-
restrictions may not be recommended at the time of diagnosis but are likely
to be recommended as the disease progresses.
¢ All needle stick injuries and cuts from sharp objects that are contaminated
with another person’s blood or body fluids.
¢ An occupational exposure of a specific substance (chemicals, noise} above
the specified government standard.
® Hearing loss must be reported if it is at the 25 DBA (Standard Threshold
Shift).
Pre-existing conditions are recordable if 2 new work event slgnificantly aggravates
the injury or illness, causing medical treatment to be necessary.

Third party

Any individual other than a Company, contractor or subcontractor employee, A
personal injury of a third party person that occurs outside Company premises is
considered work-related only if there is a culpa bility by the Company or contractor.

TRIPCD

TRIPOD is an advanced methodology for conducting Incident investigation

identifying hazard(s), events), target(s), barrier(s}/control{s), active failures,
preconditions and latent failures.
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1. DEFINITION OF SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITY
1.1 Objective

This document covers the reporting of incidents and on thelr effective investigations and analysis, seeks
to ensure that acute incidents are reported, investigated in pursuance of the goal to protect people,
ehvironment, company assets and reputation.

The primary objective of Incident investigation is to prevent recurrence by undesstanding the factors
lying behind an incident.

1.2 Scope

The scope of this document covers all HASCOL operations. Where HASCOL does not have operational
responsihility but has an equity stake, or where significant HASCOL assets are involved, this Document is
made available o the management of operator, so that the Integrated HSSE Management Manual may

be applied.

1.3 Responsibilities
CHRO and HSSE Manager is responsible for the creation, maintenance and supervising implementation
of this Document.

It is the responsibility of any employee (regular, contractor, trainee etc.) who is involved or is g witness
to an incident to report it to his/her Line supervisor,
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2. DISCRIPTION

2.1 General Rules

All Incidents observed or noted by any employee have to be reported, including Near-Miss incidents
and Company and Contractor Tanker/Lorry road accidents.

2.2  Incident Classification

the highest value for any of the categories (People, Assets, Environment and Reputation (e.g. an
Incident with consequences ciassified as P4E2A1R1 is considered a PEAR4},

Table 1: Incident Consequence Classification

Enuiug | Peaple (7) | Assets (A} | Environment () Reputation (f) ),
Zero effect - No environmental
§ £ o No injury or damage to heaith Zero damage damage. No change to the ﬂ::fm sl
zE environrment gl
Slight Injury o health effects Slight damage No Shight effect Local e
1 (including first ald case and medical disruption environmental damage within m PJeT;:L but ’
treatment case) - Not affecting wark | to operation (costs less Company premises and there | is ab\;i o, .
performance or causing disability than PKR 25000 systems. ©re Is no pubfic conce

Minor infury or health effects P "
Affecting work performance, such as ;ﬂ;:: < th’i:i:::laTz:? t:' Limited impact - Sore lacal
ge viarge public concern. Some tocal

|

restrictions on activities {Restricted Minor damage Brief ; -
E 5 | WorkCases) or the need to take at disruption (1 days) ::t::c,;‘t::s::l rtgnm;nt‘ Sirgle media and/or local political
& teast one shift to fully recover or {costs in excess of rescrBed e riteric?rt Single attention with potentially
s Lost Time Injury. Limited heaith 100,000 PKR) p i *oing adverse aspects for company |
£ effects which are reversible, eg. e permanent operations
= . effect on the environment .

skin irritation, food poisoning

. Considerable impact

# ( m—_—i—nﬁn‘%’f:———m;@ Local effect Repsated Region‘al pubilic concem..
!9 Disabillty) Affecting work Local damage 2-S days breaches of statutary ar Fnensuve adwverse attention
F 3 | performance in the longer term. shut down of 3 small prescribed fimits, Affecting in local media. Slight national
E Irreversible heaith damage without operation {costs in neighbourhood beyond facillty | media and {orlocal /
= lass of Hife, e.g. noise inducad excess of 200,000 PKR) beundary. No permanent regional political attention,
g hearing Ia;s, chranic back injuries effect on the environment. Adverse stance of local

Bovemment

2.3  Incident Communication/Notification

Line Department is responsible for reporting any incident via phone call followed by email after getting
and verifying information from Incident scene. In case a contractor is involved then the Line department
Is bound to get the exact information and share it as per timelines given in Table 2.
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Table 2: Rules of Notification based on Initial Incident Consequence Classification
Incident Consequence
SasiRation . f e PEAR 2 PEAR 3 PEAR 4-5

Notified Persons

Verbal notification within: 6hours | 3 hours 2 hours
Manager HSSE v f v v
Line management (Chiefs) s ] v 4
CEO and CHRO | v

The incident notification process is described below:

1. Verbal notlfication should he directed immediately by the employee to the Chief of line
department and M HSSE for all incidents. PEAR 3 and above incidents shouid be reported to
the CEO and CHRO by Chief of line department,

2. Verbal notification must be supplemented in electronic form by using Incident Notification
Format (refer to Annexure 1},

3. Relevant authorities must be informed of the Incident as specified in relevant local legisiative
requirements (OGRA etc.} by M HSSE.

2.4  Incident Investigation

1. Within maximum two working days the Initial Consequence Classification must be reviewed
and changed in the notification if hecessary. Incidents with consequences classified as PEAR 2
or higher are required to be investigated,

2. In case of contractor, customer or third party incidents with consequences classified as PEAR 2,
investigation by HASCOL is necessary if:

a. HASCOL personnel, operation/processes, asset caused or contributed to the Incident or,

b. HASCOL persannel, operation/processes, asset or reputation was threatened by the
Incident ar,

¢. Environment was harmed by the Incident

3. Contractor Incidents with consequences classified as PEAR 3 or higher must be jointly
investigated by HASCOL and refevant contractor.

4. The Investigation Team must be nominated within 2 working days by the responsible person as
defined in Table 3.

5. In case of incident with consequences classified as PEAR 4 or above, the investigation Team
member must be independent from the Organization.

Table 3: Rules on Nomination of an Investigation Team

Incident consequence
classification

; ) PEAR 0-1 PEAR 2-3
Investigation Team
Nominator
Chiefs and M HSSE No investigation 7
| CEO, Chiefs and CHRO team needed

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.
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2.4.1 Conducting the Investigation

1. Depth of investigation must be determined based on consequence level of the incident.
Beyond direct causes the root causes must also be identified. incident investigations need to
be abie to satisfy relevant statutory, legal, police and law enforcement agencies requirements
and to be used in relation to potential insurance claims or litigation. In case of incident with
consequences classified as PEAR 4 or higher the TRIPOD methodology should be applied. The
incident investigation report template is attached as Annexure 2.

2. Investigations carried out by authorities do not serve as an exemption from the requirement of
this Document to carry out Incident investigations by HASCOL..

3. legal responsibility to investigate contractor incident must remain with the contractor.
Contractor Incident investigations carried out by HASCOL do not affect this respansibility of the
contractor.

4. in case of Process incident, failed Process Safety Management (PSM) elements as identified in
Integrated HSSE Manual {(Mechanical Integrity and Reliability etc.} must be identified,

2.4.2 Investigation Report

The Investigation Report is a presentation of the Incident and its Circumstances, findings, analysis and
recommendations. Elements of the simplified and detailed Incident investigations, covering the whole
process defined in this document are summarized in Table 4.

The investigation Report miist be finalized as early as practicably possible within maximum 21 days
from incidents occurrence. in case of PEAR 4 or higher, the deadline is 30 days for finalization of the
final draft.

Table 4: Elements of the Simplified and Detailed Incident Investigations

Type Near-Miss Simplified Detalled investigation

investigation Investigation (PEAR 4-5)

{PEAR 0-1) {PEAR 2-3)
teves'flsaﬁon'ﬁmn i No Yes Yes
Investigation (Minor- No Yes No
Mediyum} e
f.i;ggiieumeofggy L5 o No Yes
Cantent of Investigation 1. Incident description 1. General information (site details, Incident
Report 2. Root causes description)

3. Findings of the 2. Investigation team composition
investigation 3. Consequences {sequance of events, failed
4. Improvement Barriers, root causes)

measures {responsible 4. Findings of the Investigation
persons & deadiines) 5. Artachments {evidence, reports atc.)
5. Approval 6. Improvement measures {responsible persons &
- deadlines)
7. Approval

2.4.3 Management Review and Approval

1. Reports of detailed investigations must be approved by the Manager HSSE and the
relevant Chief.

2. Investigation reports of incidents with consequences classified as PEAR 3 or higher must
be pre-approved by CHRO and relevant Chief of line department.

2.44 Recording Investigation Results

1. Key data from Incident investigations must be recorded in Incident Investigation and
Reporting report.
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2. Incident investigation status including delays and hindrances will be reported to CHRO.

245 Investigation Findings and improvement Measures

1. The Incident Investigation Reports after review shall be circulated to relevant Chief for

the purpose of Lessons learnt.

2. The approved improvement measures defined in the investigation Report must be
implemented by the responsible persons within the defined deadlines and compliance
reported to CHRO and M HSSE.

3. Relevant Chief shall monitor implementation of improvement measures as an outcome

of incident investigations.
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ANNEXURE 1 - INCIDENT NOTIFICATION TEMPELATE

Q HASCOL PETROLEUM LIMITED
HSSE Incident Notification
Dale and time
| Location 7z
|
Typeo | Chckons Check ong or mire \
incident | incident O ﬂ&“’m ] el e Ju Rosd accident (TANKER) | 03 | Personat injury ‘u
Noar-misa 0 SpHito Emironomnt. | [ | Firefeplosion ‘D Road accident {othes) 0 | Cocupabonal ness E
Work-velated incigent Yes No —}
[Ficsons sfivcied T Own crpioyes — ) | Contractodsugpioriverd ] [ Toidpaty T ]
Hama:; Gender (WF) | Parsons aliectsd | Company | Age Type ofinjury
Personal f
injory Nature of injury [mmw [
mmmmmmx
Type of
W lrmm 0 'm&umm ) }ﬁ!t-oidm(FAc) ] 'wmmm 0
Shont
of the incident
Parson compleiiag Kame | | Pince of work and sie |
e form j%m | | E-mail acdrsss: | {

HOTE: INCIDENTS TO B REPORTED WITHIN 24 HOURS OF OCCURANCE
mmxmmcmwm
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ANNEXURE 2 - DETAILED INVESTIGATION REPORT TEMPLATE

Q HASCOL PETROLEUM LIMITED
HSSE Investigation Report

3. Results of the investigation and analyses

A. Which safety Barrier,
defence or control

No. Details of measures to be taken

Responsible | Target Daie l

Posikion

memmmdqunm
1. RIisk Assessment Matrix
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Section-E

SECURITY-STANDARD
OPERATING PROCEDURES
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1. PURPOSE

The-purpose-of-this document-is to-set out- standardized procedures for sctivities WRdeHsken in the
Security Department. These procedures are to be foilowed for efficient and timely achievement of the
department’s objectives.

2. SCOPE
This policy document shall act as a handbook for personnel working in the Security department, All
major processes being undertaken in Security department have been recorded in this document,

2.1 HASCOL Security Function

The HASCOL Security department is to provide Security Advice and assistance to HASCOL line
management and business units in order to assist the business management in assessing, managing and
reducing security risks.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES
3.1 HASCOL Employees

All HASCOL employees are individuaily responsible for their own compliance with the security policy
and standards, and have a responsibility to:

¢ Be aware of potential security issues that may arise in their day-to-day activities in the work
place, when working with local communities and government agencies, and to ensure that real
or potential security issues arising from HASCOL's operations are identified and the security
risks addressed,

* Behave and work in such a way so as not to put the security of HASCOL and its assets at risk.
3.2 Contractors

Contractors have a responsibility to ensure that they and their staff are aware of, and comply with
HASCOL’s security policy, standards and procedures. In addition they are to:

® Ensure their compliance with all security related Pakistan Government rules, regulations and
directives as applicable.

¢ Behave and work in such a way so as not to put the security of HASCOL and its assets at risk.
They are respensible for the implications of any breach of security by them or their staff; be it in
contravention of National regulations or HASCOL policy.
3.3  Visitors

All visitors are expected to behave and work in such a way so as not to put the security of HASCOL staff
and its assets at risk, They are responsible for the implications of any breach of security by themseives;
be it In contravention of National regulations or HASCOL policy.

3.4 Compliance with the Security Standard Operating Procedures

® The Security SOP’s are applicable to ail staff and contractors working within HASCOL.

* Business managers are accountable to ensure their security management achieves the
requirements of these SOP's.

¢ Arequirement to comply with the HASCOL Security Policy should be included in all contractor
and supplier contracts, as appropriate,
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SOP#1

SECURITY MEASURES

PURPOSE;

To protect and safeguard personnel, material and property of HASCOL against sabotage, terrorist
attack, theft, trespassing and other irregularities.

PROCEDURE

The security measures for the protection of Sites vary according to their importance and the category to
which they belong. These measures are recommended to counter various forms of Sa botage Threats to
the Site. These should include the following: -

Private Guard;

These guards are employed 1o safe guard and provide security to HASCOL assats.

Perimeter:
All Site are supposed to have a secure perimeter which should either be in the form of a brick wall of 12

feet height with 3 feet of barbed wire of angling outward or of barbed wire along of the same height of
12 feet plus a 3 feet portion angling outward or can be modified as per security requirements,

Site Protection:

All sites will be protected as per requirement against any un-towards incident.

Vetting / Security Clearance:

All regular and casual employees working in any capacity at HASCOL should be security cleared through
Palice / Special Branch before induction into service.

Security Staff:

All Sites should have a full time Security Supervisor and other complimentary security staff and
equipment to look after its entry / exit points and premises.

Guards and Sentries:
Adequate number of guards and sentries should be posted at all important places particularly at

vitinerable and sensltive parts and at entry / exit point.
Communication:

Good and sound communication system both for internal and external communication should be
provided.

Alarm System:

An adequate aiarm system should be available for emergency.

Lighting;

There should be proper lighting arrangements at the perimeter and  other vuinerable points including
flood/search lights where necessa ry.

Identity Card:;

Company Identity Cards will be issued to all HASCOL empioyees by HR Department (CHRO) and it will be
displayed during the office hours.

Passes:

Entry to the premises of third party / contract labour to the HASCOL locations shouid be controlled

through an effective pass system available at the Main Gate/ other Gates. The passes should indicate
name, CNIC Number, designation and bear the signature and photograph of the employees. It may he
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desirable to issue passes of different colours to employees working in different sections to enable instant
identification.
Outer Terrorist Attack

Security staff will take necessary counter measures to ensure that no damage to the assets of HASCOL
takes places. Regular training will be imparted.
Miscellaneous:

Contract labour:

The character / conduct of the labour employed by the Contractor for any purpose for works at HASCOL
Site should be verified through the local police. The contractor should provide in writing that he would
be personally responsible for the good / satisfactary conduct of each and every member of the contract
labour force he employs.

Segregation:
Inerrable points in the Site should be segregated from general area, access to them shouid be controlled

on need to visit basis, and should be guarded corresponding to their importance / requirements.

Parameter Security:
There should be no support of any kind In and around the perimeter wall/fence which may help a

saboteur, easy access to enter into a Site.

Site Selection:
Proper site selection will be carried out by concern department, they will ensure to coordinate with

Security Department before finalizing the site selection to avoid any un-towards incidents.

Bushy Growth:
The wild growth like grass and bushes should be removed as it may cause fire and help in scaling the

perimeter wall, by an intruder being a security hazard.

Special Security Measures:-

Keeping in view the specific measures, following security measures has been formulated.

e Entry of all visitors to HASCOL Sites and Terminals will be restricted.

s Every employee will be issued with HASCOL Identity cards / entry passes and mandatory to be
displayed on the chest during working hours.

e A security guard will be posted at Main Gate for any counter measures, they will be vigilant
throughout their duties.

« All gates will be manned by armed security guards round the clock.

+ ‘Watch Towers will be manned with adequate strength on required basis; however during
emergent situation /high alert levei, ali watch towers be manned as determined by Instaliatlon
Manager/ Security Supervisor and approved by Manager Security / Security Advisor.

» Entry/Exit of all personne! and vehicles will be subjected to physical check by the security staff
and record will be maintained at the entry points. During Red Alert / Emergency announced by
Government of Pakistan, HASCOL Management will follow strict security measures at all entry
and exit points.

e Peripheral lighting will be provided all along the boundary wall.

e All contractual staff will be issued with Entry Passes after necessary vetting,
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Mobile / foot patrolling by security staff will be carried out inside faround Depots & Terminals
as per required strength,

Movement of private vehicle inside plant area will be restricted. A special search of all private
vehicles would be carried out before their entry into the Terminals.

The Terminal officials/departments will entertain only official / essential visitors. Visitor will be
advised not to visit any place other than the one they have been permitted for.

Any sealed mailboxes, packed food item or any other items packed coming inside the Depats /
Terminal will be checked at the entry point.

Entry and to carry ignition material, explosive, cameras, and ammunition is strictly prohibited at
Terminals.

Installation Manager will maintain, constant liaison with Local Administration / Police for
maintaining law and order around Depots / Terminals.

Movement in different areas of site shall be made in form of group rather in individuals.

At all Sites, Security Guards are to be vigilant and equipped enough to tackle any unwanted
interaction.

ANNEXURES

NIL
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S0P#2

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SECURITY GUARDS

Security guard will perform their duty as per their duty roaster, prepared by their supervisor.
Security guard will wear their company uniform and company ID cards be displayed while on duty
and try to remain alert while on duty.

*  Security guard will inspect his weapon before he takes a charge of duty and in case of any defect
he will inform his supervisor and will not accept faulty weapon for duty.

¢ Security guard will not leave his post without his reliever, even for the TOILET, for which he will

inform his supervisor who will arrange his reliever,

Every security guard will carry a whistle and torch while on duty.

Cleaning and fitness of the weapon is the responsibility of the security guard.

Security guard will not perform any other duty except “SECURITY”.

Weapon will only be used in case of extreme emergency i.e when life of security guard / HASCOL

staff OR HASCOL property is in danger.

* When resorted to use of fire arms, it will be as per the Rule of Engagements (ROE) issued by the
Security Service Provider (Secu rity Company}, Annexure-A.

® Incase of any dispute or quarre| among drivers, labours and other contractor staff, security guard
will not tnvolve himself and will not become party to the fight.

* Security guard will not borrow money from HASCOL empioyees, oil tankers drivers OR any other
contacted staff working in HASCOL and any violation will result into termination of guard
employment with HASCOL.

*  When workers and staff enter the HASCOL security guard on duty will check em ployee’s card and
in case of any doubt security guard will refer to his supervisor.

¢ When a vehicle/oil tanker enters the gate security guard must check vehicle with Khooji device
and under vehicle search mirror and any abnormaility to this must be reported to supervisor on
duty.

*  When Oil Tanker enter the HASCOL site Security Guard on duty will check CNIC and driving license
of the deriver and inspect the Tanker as per HSE safety check list {Annexure-B} before entry into
the terminal for loading / unloading.

¢ If any violation in tanker from HSE Check list is observed, security guard will inform his supervisor,
who will enter this observation in security log book and will inform the Instailation Manager. If
Installation Manager allows only then that tanker will be moved IN and will be logged in the
Vehicle entry register and security log book accordingly.

®  Security supervisor will ensure that during loading / unloading operations drivers of the oil
tankers must not leave the terminal without Installation Manager Permission and entry to this
effect will be recorded in security log book.

¢ No one will be allowed to carry any contraband and prohibited items like Explosives, Weapons,
Knife, Ballasted materfal, Drugs, Pan, Ghutka , Naswar etc. and any other sharp object in the
Depot / Terminal.

* Incoming/outgoing materials and stores will be checked properly by security guards as per gate
pass details and will be entered in Materiai IN/OUT register accordingly.

¢ In case of Returnable material, gate pass will be marked and weekly Unreturned store repart to
this effect will be forwarded to Installation Ma nager with a copy to Manager Secu rity /Security
Advisor on Form SEC - 01 (Annexure-C).

¢ In case of any fire/emergency security guard will immediately report to his supervisor and control
building and will try to control the fire by use of fire extinguisher and if that is not possible leave
the place and report at emergency assembly area.
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Security Supervisor on duty must have a security round of the site and surrounding areas in
regular intervals and check security conditions and will make entry of this into the daily security
log register. Any unusual activity observed will be immediately reported to Instaflation Manager
and Manager Security / Security Advisor.

When any Visitor arrive at HASCOL site, security guard at gate will check his CNIC and other
relevant details and inform the concern HASCOL staff, and if he agrees-then visitor will be issued a
visitor pass and entry will be made into the visitor register.

Visitor will be guided / escorted to the concern official and will not be allowed to go any other
place except for which visitor pass is issued.

ANl security guards will be trained on the ahove by Manager Security/Security Advisor during their
visits to the sites.

ANNEXURES

Rules of Engagements - Annexure-A
Safety Check List - Annexure-B
Unreturned Store Report - Annexure-C
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SOP#3
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SECURITY SUPERVISORS

Role of Security Supervisor

He is responsible for total security of Site where he is detailed for his duty. Supervisor should have set of
skills, knowledge and understanding and ability to su pervisor the security guards.

Scope of Security Supervisor

Guarding Operation. €hecking of Gua rds, and assigning duty to guards.

Security Document. Should know about Muster roll, shift report, duty roster, incident and complaint
report, forms, personnel, vehicle and material movement control documents; keys control registers etc.
Site Instructions— Site layout- perimeter, details of entry, exit and emergency exits; work shifts; guard
pasts, deployment of security and surveillance equipment; patrolling and number of personnel needed

for security duties.

Assessment of Operational Effectiveness — Thorough pre-shift briefing and checking, surprise checks,

patrolling, mock-drills and rehearsals.
Faults/ Malfunctions in Equipment — j.c. Alarms, non-functioning of equipment, errors and erratic
output, will be noted in security log book Form SEC-04 (Annexure-D) and communicated to installation

Manager accordingly.

Safe Handling of Firearms — Ensure an armed security guard observes laid down safety and security
norms with regard to handling of firearms.

Leadership and Supervision— Welfare, training and motivation, leading by personal example,
impartiality, honest reporting and punctuality

Performance Criteria of Supervisor

He shouid start the shift as per given instruction.
Receive & implement instruction from Installation Manager / HSSE supervisor.
Receive & understand shift report from outgoing supervisor.

Take attendance & record / report of shortages.

Prepare proper duty roster of shift and assign duties to the guards.

Deploy guard with required secu rity equipment as per site location plan.

Make procedure to collect intelligence and information,

Command & control guard duties & functioning.

Maintain key contro! & personnel control checks for the site.

Ensure coordination with HSE, control room Personnel’s,

Train security guards on different job profiles,

Maintain all documents as per site security staff responslbility.

Keep communication with guards, Installation Manager & security team.

Keep the turnout, morale of the guards on higher side,

Prepare the shift report with all facts and hand over to incoming shift supervisor and expiain
points in detail,

Plan & deploy equipment as per site security requirement.

Check & report suitability of equipment & guard for particular duty.

Anticipate risks/ threats and take corrective action.

Periodically check the operational fitness of the securfty equipment’s & weapons.

........C......
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Take action during shortage of guard. Modify the duty roaster considering risk / threat to site in
consultation with installation Manager, 4

Train self and staff an the available recourses.

During Security round security supervisor will check the following and make an entry into the
security log book Form SEC-04 {Annexure-D) accordingly:-

All security equipment i.e. lights, Khooji device, Metal Detectors and gates are in working
condition.

Locks and doors are intact,

Barbed wire at boundary wall is not damaged / braken.

Guards are alert at their place of duty.

There is no crack OR hole in the boundary wall/watch towers.

Woeapons, Torches and security equipment provided to the guards are in working condition.
If any security guard want to g0 to the Toilet then security supervisor will allow him and will
manned his post in his absence.

Ensure adequate drinking water is available at guard post and ensure that NO security guards
leave his post without replacemaent.

Will inspect the weapons and ammunition of security guards and if any weapon /ammunition
found defective he will inform his security company for the repair/replacement immed iately.
Entry to this effect wili also be made in security log register accordingly.

A security log report will be prepared on Form SEC-04 {(Annexure-D} and submitted to Insta llation
Manager after completion of each shift.

5. Welfare & Administration of Personnel
—elare « Admnistration of Personnel

* * » »

Talk to Security Company and give reguilar feedback about manpower & incident etc.

Know the details of Site security plan.

Know the details of shifts, over time, leave, and training of security personnel.

Listen to all guards and note their grievances, Try to resolve the issue at site and If not possible
then refer to Security Compa ny & follow up.

Motivate team constantiy.

Keep the morale of team high by regular interaction.

Be impartial in all dealing,

Ensure health and safety of staff all time. Ensure they follow all rules,

ANNEXURES Daily Secu rity Log Report , Form SEC-04 {Annexure-D)
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SOP #4
VISITOR CONTROL

PURPOSE:

To lay down procedure and ensure legal entry of visitor into the HASCOL Terminals in order to protect
and safeguard HASCOL employees and property, equipment against damage, through sabotage,
trespassing and other irreguiarities by taking all precautionary measures akd ensuring strict compliance
of Government rules, regulations and instructions relating to the security of Qil installations.

SCOPE:

All entry points of HASCOL sites and offices/locations

PROCEDURE;

Being a Restricted Area, entry of all visitors to the Terminals including Offices is restricted. The visitors
have been categorized as below:

OFFICIAL VISITORS

¢ The Sponsoring Department will seek all necessary information (name and number of guasts,
name of person to be visited, vehicle number if {permitted). date and time and intimate the same
to the security office prior to the visit, in writing/or verbally of immediate nature only.

® The concerned department / officer, who are to be visited or its representative, will detail an
individual to be present at the reception to escart the visitor on due date /time. (This is related
to group entry only).

* The receptionist at the reception office will prepare the visitor slip by endorsing the visitor
particulars in the visitor's book, as per prior intimation by the department.

¢ On arrival, the visitor will report to the reception office at the gate. The receptionist after
confirming his particulars will get the visitor signatures in the visitor register, issue him/her with
the visitor sflp and the visitor card {Annexure-E) for concerned department / office.

* The visitor will display the card on chest upper left of the outer garment and proceed to the
concerned department after security check.

¢ If the visitor wishes to take his vehlicle along, permission will be obtained from Security
Department; his vehicle will be checked at the barrier for any prohibited material. After necessary
security check the vehicle will be allowed entry up to the designated parking area, Manager
Securlty / Security Advisor be informed about Vehicle Entry.

¢ After the visit, the visitor will hand over the visitor slip along with visitor card {duly singed by
department / person visited mentioning his / her Personnel. No.) to Reception Office.

* The security staff will note the Time-out of the visitor along with visitor card number in the Visitor
Register.

UN-OFFICIAL VISITORS

®  On arrival at the gate the visitor will report at the reception office. After introduction the visitor
will inform about the name the person / department whom he / she intend to visit.

* The receptionist will contact the person / department on telephone. On confirmation the security
staff will enter the visitor particulars (name, add ress, purpose of visit, date, time and name of
person to be visited) in the register.
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¢ if the person whom the visitor wants to visit is not present in his office the visitor will not be
allowed entry. The visitor may like to wait in the waiting room at the reception for some time and
check again.

¢ The visitor will deposit Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or any other identification
document in original to the receptionist and sign in the visitors register.

¢ The receptionist will issue a visitor slip and a visitor card to the visitor. The visitor will display the
card on his chest. The visitor will be guided to the concerned department / person by Security
Staff on duty.

* If the visitor wishes to take his vehicle along, permission will be obtained from Instaflation
Manager; his vehicle will be checked at the barrier for any prohibited material. After the security
check, the vehicle will be allowed entry up to the designated parking area Security Staff / Security
Supervisor at entry gate must inform to Manager Security / Security Advisor about Vehicle Entry.

*  After the visit, the visitor will hand over the visitor slip along with visitor card {duly singed by
department / person visited mentioning his / her Personnel. Number) to the Reception Office.

¢ The security staff will note the Time-out of the visitor along with visitor card number in the Visitor

Register.
FOREIGNERS

Speciai care will be taken while dealing with foreigner visitor and ensured that NO foreigner visitor is
allowed without approval of Security Department.

VISITORS TO PLANT AREA

¢ Prior intimation, of such visitor, duly authorized by the management in writing will be intimated
to the Security Department. The Security Staff at the main gate will endorse necessary particulars
of the visitor {(name, time-in, purpose of visit, and name of person escorting the visitor} in the
visitor register and issue him with the Visitor Card. The visitor will display the card on his chest.

* The visitor will not be allowed entry unless escorted by an authorized Official of the concern
department. )

¢ The security staff at the plant area gate wiil physically check and ensure that the visitor is not
carrying any ignition material/unauthorized material.

e Visitors will hand over the visitor card to the security staff at the reception, on termination of the
visit.

®  The security staff will endorse time-out of the visitor,

Note: HASCOL employees from other Depots / Terminals when visiting other sites will make an entry at

the gate,
PRECAUTIONARY STEPS
The department/personal being visited to ensure that the visitor slip Is signed by them, the visitors do

not visit any other officer or personal. The visitor be advised or informed by the Security Staff in duty to
display the visitor card and visitor must report back to Reception Office / Main Gate.

Note: The above laid down procedure to be followed strictly by all departments at Corporate
Headquarters and Depots / Terminals.

ANNEXURES

Visitor Pass Sample {Annexure-E)
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SOP#5
VEHICLE MOVEMENT CONTROL

PURPOSE

To control the movement of all types of transport inside depots & terminals to avoid mishaps. The
procedure will be applied at al depots /terminals to minimize the risk of any incident.

PROCEDURE
*  Entry of all vehicles is restricted up te Administration area, vehicle parking area, warehouse,
parking shed,
¢ Allvehicles entering Depots & Terminals premises will be physically checked as per Vehicles
Security check list Form SEC-05 {Annexure-F). s
¢  Following vehicles are allowed entry into Depots and Terminals:
o Vehicle bringing in materiai for warehouse and Mess,
o Contractor vehicles with permission, on requirement basis.
O Any other vehicle permitted by Manager Security / Installation Manager,
© Vehicle bringing in HSD /PMG /Lubricants and any other product as per duly approved invoice.
* Any vehicle going inside {Plant Area) will be fitted with “Spark Arrestor” and physically checked by
the security staff.
* The driver of the vehicle will lower the head light beam and switch on the driver compartment
light at night, while approaching the gate or Entry Point.
* All company vehicles will move In/Out as per company transport policy on Gate Pass, signed by
the competent authority and record maintained at Main Gate of Depots and Terminals.
¢ Departments, employees, and contractors will apply to security Department, for vehicle entry
stickers, for com pany and private vehicle respectively, on yearly basis.
¢ These vehicle entry stickers will be displayed on upper left corner of vehicle windscreen.
*  OMC staff vehicles are allowed entry, up to the Parking Shed with prior permission of instailation
Manager,
* inside premises of Depots / Terminals, every driver who drives vehicles should have a valid driving
flcense.
PRECAUTIONARY STEPS
Loss of vehicle entry sticker will be immediately reported to security department,
* Security guards are supposed to be vigilant and equipped enough to encounter any vehicle
suicidal attack into Depots and Terminals premises.
¢  Drivers of the vehicies should remain nearby during loading / offloading activities of the tank
Lorries, trucks and loaders etc, '
¢ Driver must wear safety belts during driving.
¢  Driver will maintain speed inside station as per mentioned safety orders.

ANNEXURES

®  Form SEC-05 Vehicles Secu rity check fist (Annexure-F).
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SOP#6
MATERIAL MOVEMENT CONTROL

PURPOSE
To safeguard material and equipment against pilferage/irreguiarities and malpractices.

To exercise control on material movement that Is within company premises including the depots / inter
depots / warehouse to depots / depots to warehouse / supplier to warehouse at depots, terminal etc.

IN - PROCEDURE
The carrier of the material will produce the Delivery Chalan to Security Staff at Main Gate of the Depots /
Terminals.
*  Security Staff will inform instaliation Manager about Arrival of Material / Indenter.
¢ Copy of Delivery {Phato Copy} of material going inside Stations / Terminals will be handed over to
Security Supervisor at Main Gate,
*  Security Supervisor at Main Gate will make necessary entry in Respective Register only
mentioning the Delivery Order No / Date and vehicle no. (Certified copies of material will be
submitted by warehouse / concerned department on next working day).
* installation Manager will depute his Representative for collection of material arrived at Main
Gate.
* The Installation Manager Representative will escort the material vehicle to warehouse after
necessary security checi,
* The delivery Chalan for buik supply will be handed over to security supetvisor at the main gate
within 24 hours, duly verified by the department representative.
OUT - PROCEDURE
Material going OUT of the Depots / Terminals will be supported by a Gate Pass with copy of Invoice /
Material slip, signed by the authorized person of the concerned Department / Warehouse.,

¢  Security Staff will ensure that all columns of the Gate Pass / Material slip are filled in and signed
by the authorized person with his / her Personal Number.
* Gate Pass / Material slip will be kept in the record and ali Returnable Material will be endorsed in
a separate. “Returnable Material Register” kept at Main Gate.
¢ Consolidated report of all Pending Returnable Material will be forwarded to concerped
department through Manager Security / Security Advisor on monthiy basis during the last week of
the month,
* No material will be moved OUT / IN after office hours/holidays, except in emergency with
intimation to Manager Security Advisor or Installation Manager.
* Any personal material when going IN will be endorsed at Main Gate and same will be tallied when
moving OUT at the Main Gate.
* Copies of Material Slip / Gate Pass of material IN/QUT will be maintained separately in files for
Material IN / OUT at the Main Gate.
PRECAUTIONARY STEPS
The material, open and packed will be checked physically with Electronic Gauges {Metal Detector).

ANNEXURES

¢ Form SEC - 01,Un-Returnable Store Report (Annexure-C)
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SOP#7
CONTRACTOR MOVEMENT CONTROL

PURPOSE

To lay down procedure for provision of

providers) employees working in depots / terminals.

PROCEDURE

Service Provider Staff

Contractor {service providers) will prepare the entry identity card of the contract employee to
include the following:-

© Name of the contractor in bold letters with signature,

o Scanned/Pasted photo.

o Signature / left hand thumb impression,

o Number of Computerized National ldentity Card. {CNIC).

Instailation Manager of relevant Depots / Terminal will maintain record of contractor (service
providers} employees.

Contractor will maintain the record of Identity Card issued by him to the individuals.
Contractor shall forward the Record maintained by him on monthiy basis to concemed
Instailation Manager,

Project (Works) Contractor Staff

In case job awarded requires more than thirty (30} days for completion. Contractor will apply to
Security Department through concerned department on letter head along with foliowing;-

Bio Data Form duly filled and counter singed by contractor.

Copy of contract / jobs awarded.

List of work force.

Copy of CNIC of work force.

Two thumb size photographs of work force.

Local / Area Police verification of work force.

Contractor will be responsible for discipline/conduct of his work force and render a certificate to
this effect, in writing to secu rity office prior to commencement of job awarded,

The contractor will ensure and shall be responsibie that his employees strictly observe the HSE
rules and regulation as applicable in the work places.

In case job awarded requires less than thirty days:-

o The contractor will apply through concerned department on letter head.

© The contractor wiil be issued with Entry Pass on daily basis,

O ¢ 0o o o0 o

© The contractor will submit a list of labour on daily basis, duly verffied by concerned

department,

© Entry of labour will be in Presence of contractor and each labour will be verified as per the list

provided.
o CNIC of labour will be submitted at Entry Point and Entry Pass will be issued on daily basis.

identity cards to contractor staff, all contractor {service
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o The contractor will be respensible for discipline / conduct of his work force and render a
certificate to this effect in writing, prior to commencement of job awarded.

©  The contractor will ensure and shall be responsibie that his employees strictly observe the HSE
rules and reguiation as applicable in the work places.

In every case, the concerned department will ensure presence of a supervisor at the work site,

when work is in progress. Du ring high alert level contractor work at Risk sites will be either seized

or conducted under clese supervision by respective department.

Loss of identity card will immediately be reported to security department through email / in

writing.

Contractor will apply for duplicate entry pass which will be marked as duplicate,

Contractor vehicle, carrying material {crush, cement, construction material) will be thoroughiy

checked at Entry Gate in the presence of contractor supervisor and representative from

sponsoring department,

Note: All employees of contractor shall display their identity Card while they are inside the
HASCOL premises.
ANNEXURES
® NIL
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SOP#8

]

GATE PASS PROCEDURE

PURPOSE:

The system of gate pass is enforced with the aim of having a check and counter check on the inward
and outward movements of the employee and material from / to depots.and terminals under the
umbrella of authorization by the competent authority. The gate pass is issued by the competent
authority to stream line the outward / inward movements of em ployees and material from / to depots
and terminals,

PROCEDURE:

The daily working schedule of depots / terminals commence at 09:00 heurs and cease at 17:45 hours
with one hour break for lunch and prayer from Monday to Thursday. Whereas on Friday it is from 09:00
hours and cease at 18:00 hours with one and half hour break for tinch and Jumma prayer However,
during this period, sometimes, Employees of HASCOL have to go outside the premises of Depot /
Terminals owing to Offictal / Private engagements for which Gate Pass procedure will be followed. The
same procedure will be adopted followed by all Terminals.

The individual so desirous has to fill Gate Pass Form SEC-02 {Annexure=G) in all respect as follow:

Personal Be written clearly
Authorized By Name of issuing authority
Date Filled by issuing authority
Signature: Of issuing authority

* The Carbon copy will remain in the Gate Pass Book.

¢ Person authorized to sign gate pass will mention his Employee No and designation,

* Anemployee proceeding on official / private engagement outside the Depot / Terminal Premises
cannot sign his own Gate Pass.

* Anemployee leaving Depot / Terminals premises must hand over the “GATE PASS” to the Security
Staff on duty at Main Gate.

¢ Shitin charge will be Signing Authority of gate passes after office hours and during Holidays.

* Inthe absence of Instaliation Manager, Admin Officer will be authorized to sign gate passes.

* Inthe absence of Admin Officer, Shit In charge will be signing authority of gate passes during
office hours.

» List of authorized signing authorities and their signatures should be display on Main Gate of each
Depot / Terminal.

* Incase of any store/material out ali columns of Gate Pass to be completed.

¢ Tentative date of returnable material to be mentioned an gate pass.

¢ Manager Security / Security Advisor will check the gate passes record during his visit to the depots
/ terminals.

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission,
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3.0 PRECAUTIONARY SYEPS:

* No Employee and Equipment / Material will be permitted out of Terminal premises without

“GATE PASS” issued by the competent authority.
* the “GATE PASS” retention period of safe custody will be three months. After retention period

Gate Pass will be destroyed by burning after approval of Manager Security.
¢ “GATE PASS” with RETURNABLE material will be retained till the time store is not returned.
ANNEXURES

* Form SEC-01, Un-Returnable Store Report {Annexure-C)
* Form SEC-02 , Gate Pass Personnel’s (Annexure~G )
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SOP#9
CLOSE CIRCUIT TELIVISION (CCTV )

MONITORING SYSTEM

PURPOSE:

To enhance security by monitoring with CCTV System, suspected movement in and around the
boundary wall, movement of personnel, vehicle, material within the premises and installations at
HASCOL Terminals and all along Boundary Wali,

Record trespassing and monitor movement of Personnel, Vehicle, Machinery and Materials hoth
in and outside of the premises to avoid / counter any untoward situation / hazard / accident or
incident.

Provide security to important locations i.e. Main Gate, Office Buildings, Plant Area, Gantry area,
Decanting Area, Warehouse, all general area, buildings, access roads, Gantry area, or any other
critical area due to specific conditions at different locations,

PROCEDURE:

A trained CCTV operator will monitor the movement of personnel, vehicle and material in the
Sensitive Areas and maintain the Log Book record and prepare system performance report in each
shift.

Three CCTV operators in rotation shift will perform eight hours duty in three shifts {08 hours duty)
CCTV Log Baok shail be filled on daily basis and kept updated all the time. Security Supervisor will
check and get it countersigned from Ma nager Security /Security Advisor du ring his visit /
inspection.

Only authorized persons as allowed by the Manager Security / instaliation Manager shall be
allowed to enter CCTV Room.

Security Supervisors will visit the CCTV Room regularly to keep a check on CCTV staff during their
tenure (time} of duty.

Security Supervisors / Installation Manager will brief the operator with regards to monitoring of a
particular area or activity at the Site/Terminal as and when required. Such information will not be
shared by the operator with anyone.

During up-gradation or readjustment of Security cameras Installation Mzanager and Manager
Security wili ensure that all important and critical areas are covered for monitoring,

The CCTV System will be operated aécording to the Manufacturer’s Instruction Manual.

No unauthorized equipment will be used in CCTV Control Room except which is permissible by
Manufacturer in his Instruction Manual.

In case of any trespassing, violation, incident or accident, Security Supervisors / shift in charge,
shall be informed immediately.

In case of any suspected movement of men and material, observed in critical area or buildings,
CCTV operator will monitor the movement by focusing on the object / person and will inform
Security Supervisor / Installation Manager immediately,

Person on CCTV monitoring system duty will wear proper uniform.

Smoking, Pan Chewing, Naswar and Guttka eating is prohibited in CCTV Control Room.
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¢ Recording wili not be shown to anyone without permission of Manager Security / Manager HSSE.

SAFETY AND SECURITY:

* Separate circuit breaker will be installed for CCTV System.

¢ UPS and stand by generator back up supply shall be provided far the system.

« Proper Earthing will be provided in CCTV Room for all equipment and system.

¢  Proper Fire Fighting, Smoke and Heat Detection System will be instalied in CCTV Room.

» CCTV Room main entrance door will be kept locked all the time, until advised by Manager Security
/ Installation Manager to keep it unlocked.

e IT department must ensure to keep 30 days recording as backup.

MAINTENANCE:

* The instaliation of CCTV equipment, wiring and insulation etc, shall be carried out under the
supervision of IT Department according to Manufacturer’s recommendations and approval of
Security and IT Department.

* Maintenance of CCTV System will be carried out by iT Department in accordance with the
Operations and Maintenance Manual and Manufacturer’s recommendations.

* Any malfunction of the system or CCTV operation failure shall be reported to Manager Security,
Installation Manager, IT staff and proper notification will be issued by the CCTV staff / Security
department,

¢  After Thunder, Dust Storm and Rain, the Camera lenses must be cleaned by IT Department.

» Camera lenses should be cleaned after 15 days by IT Department.

*  Camera motors should be lubricated after 15 days by IT Department.

¢ Complete Inspection of the System will be carried out by the IT Department after the Earthquake
/ Heavy Rains / Dust Storm etc. and a serviceability report to this effect will be prepared
accordingly.

* CCTV System shall be inspected monthly by IT Department and will forward their report to
Security Department on Form SEC-06 {Annexure-H) for fixed cameras and on Form SEC-07 for
Dom Cameras {Annexure-)).

¢ CCTV System must be upgraded after every two years,

PRECAUTIONARY STEPS:

The CCTV System shall be immediately switched off in following sitvations and IT Department sha!l be
informed:-

¢ Inthunder storm or torrential rains, as the system gets interference or becomes intermittent due
to heavy rains.

¢  Electric sparking in power plugs, wiring or switches of the System.

¢ LED/LCD Picture faded or system performance deteriorates.

e Power fluctuation.

+ DVR/NVR starts giving abnormal noise.

* In case of any other technicat / physical reasons, whose cause is unknown and it is apparent that

might harm the CCTV System.
Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permisslon,
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ANNEXURES

Form SEC-06 , FIXED CAMERASFORM {Annexure —H)
Form SEC-07 , DOME CAMERAS (Annexure ~J)

Duties of CCTV Operator {Annexure —K)
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SOP# 10

WEAPONS INSPECTION

PURPOSE

The pracedure “Weapon Inspection” is promulgated with the aim to ensure maximum safety of the
staff invaived in inspection / cleaning activity. The procedure will streamline the inspection / cleaning
activity of the weapons held by the security guards performing the guard duties at depots / terminals
and escort duties (during move or at residence).

PROCEDURE
For the Safety of the staff and Safe-Handling of the weapons during inspection / cleaning and escort

duties, procedures appended bellow will be followed:

*

Weapons wili be inspected during 1st week of every month, physicaily by HSSE Supervisor
HASCOL / Security Supervisor {Service Provider) and record will be maintained on Form SEC-08
(Annexure-L) by Security Supervisor (Service Provider).

Disarming of weapons will be carried out by the weapon holder.,

Empty weapons will be checked by HSSE Supervisor /Security Supervisor.
Ammunition will be checked separately without loading, cocking and chambering into the
weapons,

Problematic arms, if any, will be separated and marked for detailed inspection of Armorer’s for
ascertaining the nature of the problem.

Defective Weapons will only be repaired by the person authorized by Service provider.
Defective Weapons and unserviceable ammunition along with inspection report will be forwarded
to Service provider by Security Supervisor {Service Provider).

Weekly cleaning on every Saturday will be under taken at Depots and Terminals by Security
Supervisor and defects will be communicated through Manager Security / Security Advisor.

PRECAUTIONARY STEPS

Weapons will be Checked and inspected in open area and NOT in the room / office / confined place,
residence but specified and safe place to be identified by HSSE Supervisor.

Firing Test will be carried out on Quarterly Basis under the supervisionh of Service provider and
record to this effect will be maintained by them. Documentary evidence will be forwarded on
Form SEC-09 {Annexure—M) to Security Department for record.

Empty cases will be deposited with HSSE Su pervisor, sealed under the signatures of installation
Manager/Security Supervisor and be forwarded to Security Service Provider / Security Com pany
for further disposal / replacement.

Monthly Weapons inspection Record, Quarterly Firing Test / defects will be maintained by the
service provider and will be hand over to Security Department for record.

ANNEXURES

Weapons Inspection Report Form-SEC-08 {Annexure -1)
Weapon Firing Record Form SEC-09 (Annexure —M)

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Lid 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.




HASCOL Petroleum Limited

: Integrated HSSE Management Manual }
@ HSSE Department 90

Poc Number: HSSE-IMM-01 | Rev: 0 J

SOP#11
SITE INSPECTIONS AND PATROLLING

Site Inspections are required to be undertaken by Security staff and the concerned Instaliation Manager
to identify the security risks and to monitor and report ail factors that have the potential to cause
damage to the Company assets and business continuity. These inspection ang visits are important to
identify short comings in the security system to recommend remedial measures.
Key Steps To Be Followed Under Site Inspection And Patrol
A Security check list Form SEC-10 (Annexure-N) that lays out the necessary information with reference
paints must be fllled to ensure ali equipment, assets, and manpower are inspected and monitored on
reguiar basis.
* These inspections conducted and executed by the Installation Manager and site HSSE Supervisor
must be prescheduled as well as unannounced.
e The Inspecting official should carefully examine the external and internal environments, the
Company’s operations and the effect on safety and security risk management.
* Assess the efficiency and effectiveness of procedures, plans, and actions in mitigating the risks
identified. 7
¢ The information obtained from these inspections, should be reviewed carefully by Security
Department to identify trends and to help monitor the effectiveness of the Company's Security
and Safety programs. This review will prove helpful in outlining weaknesses and potential threats.
»  After reviewing, these inspections, a report must be made by Manager Security/Security advisor,
highlighting following:-
¢ The problematic areas,
o Possible causes of incidents or accidents.
o Suggestions to mitigate problems and risks.
o)
Q

Improvements in SOPs,
Indicate areas, equipment and all those things that need further in-depth analysis and action.
¢ The FInal report should be submitted to CHRO for review and for further actions.

ANNEXURES

¢ Form SEC-10, Security check list { Annexure-N)
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SOP # 12

REPORTING & HANDLING EMERGENCIES

Reporting:
Manager Security / Security Advisor should ensure that security guards employed through a security

company must immediately report ali unusual or suspicious incidents or any other activities which can
be harmful to the Company’s premises, assets, operations or its staff. They must also immediately
report any damage or malfunction of any security equipment’s.

The security guards routine must provide an effective periodic reporting through radio or telephone at
periadic intervals. If a guard fails to report at the prescribed time he shouid be called by control room,
and if there is no response the situation should be investigated immediately by the security supervisor/

installation Manager,

Emergency Procedures

In event of an emergency the guard should:-

immediately activate the alarm.

in case of any incident like fire, explosion, natural disaster, etc, the guard or security staff should
report to the security supervisor on duty at site and call emergency services of the Company or
external services.

Should not leave his post if his life is not in danger.

Comply with the instructions given by the Installation Manager /HSSE Supervisor.

Assist in the treatment of injured persons where possible.

Ensure that no-one remains in the immediate area or escape route - without endangering himself,
Advice others to proceed Immediately to the assembly paint.

Ensure disabled persons are safely brought out from harm’s way.

Make sure that evacuees must remain at the assembly point until emergency services conflrm
that it is safe to re-enter the building /premises.

Annexures

Nil

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. Al rights reserved. iMay not be repreduced without permission.



HASCOL Petroleum Limited

Integrated HSSE Management Manual
@ HSSE Department 92
Doc Number: HSSE-IMM-01 | Rev: 0
SOPi# 13

REPORTING CHANNEL IN CASE OF EMERGENCY

General
In present security situation, it is of paramount importance not only to ensure prompt response but
also to keep all relevant channels informed and updated right from triggering of a situation till its

culmination.

Reporting Channel

Following will be the channel of reporting in case of any emergency.

Situations to Be Reported

Following situations must be reported immediately:-
e Fire incident,
* Theft of assets or products
¢ Unwanted movement of irrelevant people.
+ Union protests / strikes.
® Any unlawfut activity by the Union or any employee.
e Internal Scuffles.
s Any external or internal threat.
» Snatching / robbery in the vicinity of terminals or COCO sites.
¢ Information about all neighboring instailations and Organizations.
* Updates on neighboring security / threats.
* Any accident within or around the premises.

Important Instructions

Security supervisors at each location is required to repert any of the above mentioned situations to
Installation Manager as well as Manager Security /Security Advisor immediately.
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Terminal Manager will immediately contact Rescue services like Fire Brigade, Ambulances, Police,
Rangers and other Services. Subsequently, the Installation Manager will inform all concerns as per
his channef of reporting with full details of the incident as well as actions taken so far, a formal
incident report will also be compiled and forwarded to HSSE department.

Manager Security /Security Advisor will inform Manager HSSE / CHRO about the incident and will
take over the responsibility to coordinate with Securlty Agency for further foliow up. '

Minimum time loss is to be ensure in flow of information,

Security Supervisors, Instaliation Managers, Manager Security / Security Advisor will maintain
contact details of all relevant persons for immediate and effective communication.

Immediate internal remedial actions must also be taken simultaneously along with sharing of
information.

Annexures

Reporting Channel (Annexure - 0}
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SOP# 14
SECURITY MEASURES FOR BOMB THREAT
2t T MEASURES FOR BOMB THREAT
PURPOSE:;

Toa protect and safeguard personnel, material and property of HASCOL against sabotage, terrorist
attack, bomb blast and other I1ED's.

BOMB THREAT CALL

The cali may be genuine or a hoax. This is how you can distinguish between the two.
®  GENUINE: Short, compact and concise, saying that the bomb will explode in a few moments.
* HOAX: Often a young voice with giggling/laughing in the background.

PROCEDURE:

*  The call must always be taken seriously,

¢ Remain calm and composed.

¢ Letthe caller finish his message without interruption.

¢ Take the message exactly as stated and note the time of its receipt.

* Keep responses short, two or three words at the most.

* Recipient of the call should try to keep the caller on the line for as long as he / she can,.
*  Attempt to extract the following INFORMATION

WHEN was it piaced?

Will it explode?
WHERE Is the bomb hidden?
WHAT Type of bomb is jit?

Does it look like?

WHY Was it placed?
WHO Is calling?
Is the intended target?
Note : Security measures will be taken according to ground situation by respective Installation

Manager on advice of his superior.
ACTION ON A BOMB THREAT AND TERRORIST ATTACK:

Following to be notified immediately
* Installation Manager.
*  Manager HSSE
¢ Manager Security/Security Advisor.
¢ Site Administration Officer.
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¢ AllFire and Rescue staff for attendance in case of fire,
¢ Police and Bomb Disposal Squad.

* Hospital / Dispensary.
IMMEDIATE ACTION IN RESPONSE TO THREAT
SEVIEDIATE ACTION IN RESPONSE TO THREAT

L

+  Switch off all non-essential equipment,

¢ Put documents/ records in file cabinet {if time permits), ‘
¢ Fire & safety on stand-by to meet fire challenges.
TIPS FOR AREA SEARCH

¢ Do not take a mobile phones, radio or walkie-talkies as they could detonate an electric blasting
cap.

* Do not smoke (area designated th rough HSE).

¢ Search out area of maximum damages e.g., generators, electricai equipment etc.

* Look for sealed packages that are out of place or unusual.

* Do not turn on lights in dark area, because the light switch might be the triggering mechanism,

* No use electronic equipment’s.

ACTION TO BE TAKEN ON LOCATING A BOMB
Whenever a bomb or a suspicious object is located, the following procedure should be follow:-
*  Doors and windows in the vicinity of the bomb should be opened to reduce the impact of shock
waves in the event of an explosion.
e Iftime allows, highly flammable objects and liquids should be removed/isolated/intercepted from
immediate surroundings,
* The bomb should be cordoned/marked with sand bags or similar shock absorbing objects such as
speciaily manufactured bomb blankets {one blanket can cover an area up to 16 square feet.
* 7Valuable and irreplaceable dacuments flles and ather papers should be salvaged at once from
the endangered area to safer location.

SECURITY GUIDELINES FOR LETTER & PARCEL BOMB/EXPLOSIVE

The main reason for terrorists and criminals using the postal system to perpetrate attacks are foliowing:

* The use anonymity of this “MODUS OPERANDI” reduces the risk of detection.

* Selection of an individual target victim operating Improvised Explosive Device {!ED} will normally
ensure a greater chance of success.

* This method of delivery and the nature of the device construction allow certain actions to be
employed which do not appiy to other tasks.

*  Mail screening procedures are being implemented the World wide and have identified letter and
parcel bombs prior to their reaching the intended targets as streening measures have proved
successful. Terrorists have sought other methods to deliver devices. As long as mail screening
programs continue, we can be assured of minimum use of mail bombs as a terrorist tactics.

¢ Letter bombs normally do not contain timing devices. The delivery of mail is too unpredictable for
timing devices to be practiced as letter bombs are usually aimed of specific targets.

¢ Generally these will contain a few ounces of explosive only.
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¢ Mechanical action / long-delay mechanism may be employed, which have an extended time-delay
factor up to a few manths.

* Letter and parcel bombs are generaily “VICTIM ACTIVATED” a device which transits the mail is
subject to rough handling. The victim or indented target must activate the device by subjecting it
to action other than that it would normally receive in mail. Mostly this action is done at the level
of chest, either opened-standing, sitting on a chair or lying on a bed.

¢ Letter and parcel bombs are designed to kill or injure people.

¢ The item will be thoroughly checked by safety and security staff at main gate and then allowed
the item for its destination.

Method of Delivery

Method of delivery for letter and parcel bombs includes:
* Through mail.
¢ Personal delivery by paid messenger or professional carrier.
* Placed by bomber or a designated man.

Size & Quantity

Its size can range from a cigarette packet to table size. Letter and parcel hombs have been designed as
letters, books, candy, or some statues.

RECOGNITION FEATURES

The following indicators were found in various letters and parcel bombs in the past. If a letter or parcel

exhibits

any of these characteristic, it should be checked with a metal detector and X-ray scanning

machine, if possible,
* Unknown or uncertain origin.
¢ The postmark or name of sender is dubious / unusual,
* Return address is not given.
¢ Excessive, outdated or inadeguate postage.
* Unusual / foreign style hand writing of sender.
¢ Balance: Lopsided letters may be a clue. Mostly letters are balanced.
* Weight: Does the letter seem heavier than its size? Most letters weigh an Qunce.
* Stiffness of contents - do the letter bend?
¢ Protruding wires or components.
¢ Greasy marks and stains — some explosives exude oily substance.

s Smell - any suspicious odor,

* Noise of loose components rattling inside the device / parcel,

* Asmall hole in the envelope of package wrapping — provision for an arming of safety wire,
® Restrictive markings — “CON FIDENTIAL", “PERSONAL”, etc.

¢ Packages that look like containing books.

e Misspellings of common words or erroneous tittles.

*  Marked as “SEXUALLY EXPLICIT MATERIAL”, OR indicating winning prize notification.

¢ Musical Greeting Cards
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e Manufactures of greeting cards have marketed an electronic musical device card that plays music
pertaining to various festivals. These devices contain a power source, speaker, and activating
mechanism and are deslgned to operate when opened. This could be madified easily for
construction of Improvised Explosive Device (IED) by replacing a part thereof with a blasting cap.
Initially the cards were produced by “GLORY MOON” subsequently other manufactures have
produced similar musical devices {In Pakistan also} to include children’s books which employ the
same principle,

Note: Extra‘nggcautionary measures are required to handie this type of mail.
MAIL SCREENING

¢ Screening of all mail is carried out to recognize any letter and parcei bomb before it reaches the
intended target.

* Mail Receiving persons and Security Staff should know screening techniques and use of IED
recognition equipment.

¢ Many legitimate items of mail often contain some metallic objects making it impractical to initiate
a bomb alert each time an object is detected by the screening process,

* Places where X-ray Equipment is not available and the threat level indicates that postal bombs are
a viable threat, a bomb alert may be required.

¢ Letter bombs can be checked with a hand held metal detector.

* The use of X-ray equipment is extremely valuable in determining whether a suspicious item is an
actual IED.

Note: People shouid move away from the device, not the device should move away from the people.

ANNEXURES

¢ Bomb Threat Stand Off Chart (Annexure - P)
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CIRCULATION

The document should be avaitable with all employees of the Security Department

In addition, a copy should also be available with Head of Internal Audit for evaluation of sufficient
internal controls and carrying out audit projects.
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Annexure A

HSSE Checklists and Forms
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Installation/Depot Checklist- Rev -01
Location:
Date:
Inspection & Report By:
Description [ Y/N l Remarks —’
_ SECURITY -

Designated tanker parking area outside gate ]

Metal detection at the gate through hand held metal detectors

Mirror being used to check the lower part of the tanker / vehicle

Walk through metal detector gate available

Cigarettes, lighters and matches being collected at the main gate

Check posts available with safe access and egress

Nlo o w [

Emergency telephone contacts details available and pasted at key
locations

8. In/out register being maintained

9. Barrler available at the entry point of facility

10. | Means of communication {Wireless, Walkie Talkie etc.) ]

11. | Wumination at main gate and facility area ]
Pl Availability of emergency lights and torches J

13. | Safety and security signage on entrance gate ] J

Comments:

OFFICE BLOCK
14. | General condition of office [

Condition of office furniture ]

IR

|
15. [
16. | Any cracks on walls j [
17. | Record being maintained in files/folders [
| 18. | Condition of light fixtures (any naked wiring etc.) }
1q. Condition of electrical con nection, switch boards, air conditioners
and fans
20. | Availability of drin king water {Analysis results availa ble}
21. Availability of dust bins
22. General house keeping
23, Notice board available with ER P, contact no's etc.
24. Availability of Personal protective equipment {PPE) and stock being
maintained
25. First aid box available with list of medicines and routine checklist 4]
26, Availability of HSE notice board with Safety Alert, Safety Talks and
HSE performance results etc.
Comments:
_ PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT ]
27. Helmets, mask, safety shoes & coveralls being used inside facility
28, Signage installed for PPE usage
29, PPEs use by drivers
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FE inspection record available

30. | Defined area for PPE use |
Comments:
WORKERS AWARENESS
31 [ Are staff aware to respond in case of emergency (Fire/Security/Drill) | |
| 32. | Are stafftrained in First Aild and deputed first aid team available I [
[ 33. [ Are stafftrained to report an accident : I
34, Are staff trained to use fire extinguisher (FE) ‘
35. | Are staff trained to use fire hydrant ]
36. | Are staff aware of the locations of hydrants and FE <{ N
37. | Are staff aware of the responsibility in case of emergency ]
Comments:
DOCUMENTATION
38. | Work Permit System implemented ]
39. | ls MSDS available for all chemicals, fuel, lubricants etc. ]
40, SOP for decanting, filling and dispatch available? Are relevant staff !
[ trained on SOP
| 41. | Fire drill records available [ ﬂ
42. | HSE meeting with staff and contractors [ []

Awareness sessions conducted for staff

Incident reporting and corrective actions

| 46.

Inspection checklists

47. | Is record available for testing of earthing points below 1 ohms
Comments:
WASH ROOM
48. General House Keeping |
49, Availability of soap, towel, tissue etc.
| 50. | Exhaust system and ventilation [
51. | Availability of water [
| 52. | Sewerage system [
53. | Availability of dust bins i
Comments:
| _ : WORKERS CHANGE ROOM
54, General house keeping
55. Proper sitting arrangements
5a. Availability of cabins
57. Cloths pegs available
5a. Any unwanted material
59, Condition of switchboards
Comments:;
' TANKER MOVEMENT
| Tanker checklist being filled at main gate

0.

L]
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Speed limit signages installed and followed by vehicles and tankers
Besignated parking area outside the facility
63 Safe parking of tanker in front of filing gantry

Excess tanker in queue

Comments:

PUMP HOUSE
General House Keeping
| Color coding —
| Noise and Vibration
[solation I E—
69, [ Are wiring in conduits
70. | Hlumination
Leakage
Earthing
Labeling
Rubber mat besides switch board I ‘

| Drainage system [
Comments:

FIRE FIGHTING SYSTEM

Condition of FE and Hydrants
FE in shade I

| Availability of sand buckets

Expiry date on FE }

[ 80. [ Hydrants within range of staff ﬂl;

81. | FE provided with expiry date |

82. | Fire siren /communication system in working condition [_ [

[ 83. I Fire hydrant pressured with dockey pump and pressure maintained
Comments:

GENERATOR ROOM b
84. | Oil & Water Checked on regular basis [ ’
85. | Logbook being maintained [ |
86. Generators meet NEQS for emissions
87. Condition of electric wiring and switch board
88. | Fueltank cendition
89, I Any leakage |

90. | Rubber mats ] |
Comments:
ELECTRICAL PANEL ROOM
91. First Aid Instruction on electric shock available
92. Rubber Mats available

93. Safety Sign
94, Labeling of emergency switch
95, Fire extinguisher avallahle 7
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LComments:

FILLING GANTRY

96. | Safety signs

97. | Dip taking and filling instructions
98. General House Keeping

Color coding of the loading arm
.| Paint condition
| Loading arm provided with cap cover to avoid spillage
Earthing

I

L

I

I

I

- I S—
103. | Material of buckets for makeover of tankers -—
| 104. | Waste cotton rags collection system i g RS
S

I

I

I

O

105. | Hlumination
Comments:

TANK AREA

106. | Tanks provided with PRV

107. [ Inter floating roof tanks for PMG
108. | Tank painting and appearance
109. | Level gauge

110. | Clean tank hatch

111, ] Sealed slip and main holes

112, | Safe tank stajrs

113. | Condition of bund wall

114. | Unwanted material within bunded area

Comments:
LABORATORY
115. | SOP of analysis
116, | Smell of chemicals
117. | MSDS of Chemicals
118. | Exhaust system
Ll 19. | PPEs
Comments:
: OIL WATER SEPARATOR
120. | Available |
121. | Located at safe location
| 122. | identification signboard ]
123. | General House Keeping
Comments:
SCRAP YARD

124, | Sign Board
125, | Inventory of waste
126. | Labeling

127. | Wild Growth

Comments:
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Retail Outlet Checkiist

Location:

Date:

Inspected and Reported by:
[ Description | _Y/N | comments
L TANK AREA

1. | Are decanting instructions available in tank area? [ ]
2. | Are decanting instructions available in files?

3. | Are decanting spouts available on each tank?

4. | Are adaptors fitted on spouts at each tank? [
LS. Are spouts provided with protective caps?
6. | Are spouts color-coded according to the products?

. [ Iis hosepipe with quick coupiing available?
| Are vent-pipes are avallable for each tank? [ j ,I
| Are ali vent - pipes of u/g tanks at feast 12 ft high? ] ’

] [ Is fine copper/non-corroding metal wire gauze fitted on all vent openings?
- | Is earthing copper rod/plate provided in the tank area, with earthing
terminal, and fixed properly?

. | s bonding cable with clamp available?
. | Is contact point of bonding cable with earthing terminal rust/paint free?
14. | Are all dip points of u/g tanks covered with caps?
15. | Is tank capacity of each /g tank clearly labeled?
16. | Is electrical wiring of submersible pumps concealed and properly fixed?
(Depends on physical condition of wiring)
| 17. | s tanker standing area free from overhead cables & transformer? [

18. | Is tanker standing area free from telephone cables

19. | Is space adequate to drive tanker out in an emergency? [

20. | Is the tank area adequately lit for safe Operations at night?
21. | isthere a below ground area near tank area where vapors may collect? _[
Comments:
ELECTRICAL.

22. | How much is the total Electricity Load:

a) Sanctioned? b) Actual?
23. | Is the main electrical distribution board according to standards?
24. | Has electrical wiring diagram been provided in the distribution hoard? I

25, l Are Equipment cords in good condition?

L

Are circuit breakers clearly marked?
25. | Is the main switch clearly marked?
Are muiti-core cabies as per standards? }&
Is the wiring and muiti-core cables running in a conduit?
- | Is there any loose wiring inside the Division | area of the dispensing units?
29. | Are machines (i.e. dispensing units, compressor, generator etc.) in good ] j
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| working condition? [ ]
30. | Are ali dispensing units securely fastened to the pump island? [ |
Comments:
FORE COURT AREA

31. I Are spreaders provided with each Dispenser?
33. [ Is clean dry sand filled in the void below dispensing units?
34. ] Are sockets/electricat fixtures fixed on pump islands intrinsically safe?

l
|
I
35. ] Are the canopy lights secure, clean & operative? [
36. | Arethe following signs clearly visible & properly located?
I - "NO SMOKING" - near underground product tanks
II-"NO SMOKING / SWITCH OFF ENGINE / SWITCH OFF MOBILE" at ,
Islands/canopy columns.
37. [ Is water drainage constructed along the entire length of the outlet?
38. | Are INJOUT signs and monolith tower installed? + L
Comments:
EARTHING RESULTS
39. | Is copper rod/plate in the tank area earthed?
40. | Is electrical distribution board earthed?

|
I
L41. Is earthing provided for generator neutral & body separately? —]_ _]
42. | Are all dispensing units earthed? '
43. | Is canopy earthed? [
44, | Is the compressor of tyre shop properly earthed and grouted?
45. | Is compressor of service station earthed?

J
| 46. | Is Quick OIf Change Canopy earthed?
47. | Is tyre-changing machine earthed?
48. | Is water cooler earthed?

49, ! if metallic tyre shop is provided, is it effectively earthed?

50. | Earthing Resuit is found to be ———— Ohm. (Must be less than 2 Ghm)
Comments:

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS
51. | Is there any emergency shut off switch at the outlet and staff knows aboutl i
it?

32. | Is one 50 Kg DCP available for tank area and appropriately located at the ,
outlet?

53. | Isat least 1 no. 6 kg DCP fire extinguisher available for each island? I
54. | Is a 3kg CO2 fire extinguisher available for electrical room/diesel generator
set?

55. | Is Electrical room free from any unwanted material? J

56. | Does staff know how to use fire extinguisher?
57. | Are all fire extinguishers appropriately located for easy access in case of
}7 emergency?
58. | Is Physical condition of fire extinguisher found good?
58. | Is all fire extingulshers sealed properly?
60. | is all fire extinguishers show expiry date / Pressurize?
61. | Are buckets with clean dry sand available?
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Pz. | Are EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS posted in the office? B
63. | Is there a first aid kit avallable?

64. | Does staff know the location of main switch?

65. | Is 6 Kg DCP fire extinguisher available in Hasmart?

Comments:

STAFF HSE AWARENESS

66. | Are all attendants in uniform? | [

67. | Are employees aware of their responsibilities in case of emergency?

68. | Are fire drills taught / rehearsed?
Comments:

HASMART
69. | Has a minimum distance of 30 feet been maintained between the Hasmart
and the nearest dispensing unit? i !
Comments:

SERVICE ROOM/ AREA
70. | Is RCC type Separator constructed for collection of waste/effluent from car
wash area?
Comments:
LPG

71. | LPG tank is fenced [
72. I Safety labels are available {including expiosive zones)

73. | Personal protective equipments are used by FS staff during filling (gloves,

glasses) ’
74. | Cars are filled by FS staff only

75. [ Operationai plan of LPG technology is available and known by FS staff —]

Comments: /
_ HOUSE KEEPING I
76. | Is Outlet free from tripping hazards or slippery substances? [ [ ]
77. | Is rubbish cleared regularly?
Comments;
SECURITY
Comments:
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Office Checkdist
Location:
Date:
Inspected and Reported by:
Description | Y/N [ Remarks 1
' . OFFICE BLOCK

1. | Is the general condition of office biock furniture good? ] l
Is color of the walls, doors and windows in good condition & free

from cracks?

Is filing of the record well maintained?

Are cabinets and file drawers closed when not in use?

Are lighting fixtures and all other fixtures securely fixed?

Is there any naked or unorganized electrical or telephone wiring in
office black

| 7. | Is fioor free from trips, slips fall hazards?

Are electrical switchboards in good condition?

9. | Are all electrical connections to switch boards made with proper

plug?

10. | Are conditions of the window glasses good & clean?

| 11. [ Are A/C's working properly and well maintained?

12. | Arefans clean and in good working condition?

13. | Is filtered drinking water available with laboratory test report?

14. | Is condition of the water filter good and water cooler is earthed?

15. | Is smoking prohibited in the office/ Are “No Smoking” signs installed at
appropriate locations?

16. | Is general housekeeping good and internal environment clean & clear?

L

o[

—_L_.—____l‘

®

Comments;-

STAIRWAYS, WALK WAYS AND EXITS
1. | Are stairways and walk ways clear and unobstructed?
Are Exit signs posted/illuminated
3. | Are exits Clear and unobstructed?

it

Comments:-

FIRST AID BOX
1 Is First Aid box available with hecessary record and documentation?
2 Is First Aid box easily accessible to all?

Comments:-

HSSE NOTICE BOARD
1 | Is an HSSE notice board maintained?
2 | Are Safety Bulletins, Emergency Contact Nos, etc, displayed on notice
|| boards? =
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L
Comiments:-
SECURITY CHECK
1. | Is proper entry of visitors being monitored and recorded?
2. | Is Visitors Security Register properly maintained?
3. | Are important telephone numbers available for security guards?
4. | Are security guards aware of their responsibllities in case of
5. | emergency?
Comments:-

TOILET

1. | Are tissue paper, soap and water avaijlable?

Is exhaust system in working condition?

=

3. | Is toilet clean and clear?

Comments:-
FIRE FIGHTING SYSTEM
1. | Are fire extinguishers available?
2. | Is access to any firefighting equipment blocked by any material?
3. | Are any of fire extinguishers dented?
4. | Are the colors of the fire extinguishers In good condition?
S. | Are fire extinguishers piaced in shade?
6. | Are fill and expiry dates available on each fire extinguisher?
7. | Is record of fire extinguishers available with location, type and capacity?
8. | Is there any monthily inspection record for fire extinguishers?
Comments:-
ELECTRICAL
1. | Is electrical distribution board separately earthed?
2. | Are Equipment cords in good condition?
3. | Is the main switch clearly marked?
4. | is the wiring and multi-core cables running in a conduit?
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Are plugs, sockets, switches, power boards and cords in good condition? J

5.

] Are electrical appliances in good operational condition?
Comments:

[ ] CANTEEN/KITCHEN
1. | General House Keeping
’TZ. [ Hygienic Washing System
| 3. Hygienic food
| 4. Staff personnei hygiene
| 5. Safe cooking piace
6. | Fuel being used (Natural Gas, Fuel wood, Cylinder Gas)
Comments:
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Daily HSSE Report
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Monthly HSSE Dashboard:
' - | HASCOL PETROLEUM LIMITED
MONTHLY HSSE DASHBOARD
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Monthly HSSE Calendar:

TASK RESPONSIBILITY SCHEDULE
~ | R: Site In-Charge
HSSE Walk-around F: HSE Rep. , Security Week—l(s
Alternatively
Supervisor
Fire / Muster Drill Week-1
Fire / Medevac Driil R: Site In-Charge Week-2
Fire / Table Top Drill F: HSE Rep. Week-3
Scenario Based Drill Week-4
Pumps/Gantry/Tank Farm R: Site in-Charge Week-1
Areas F: HSE Rep.
R: Site In-Charge
Fire Fighting Equipments F: HSE Rep. Week-2
. R: Site In-Charge
Building and Security Areas F: HSE Rep. Week-3
Generators/Electric Panel/0il R: Site In-Charge Week4
Water Separator Areas F: HSE Rep.
HSE Training/Safety R: HSE Rep Week-1/3
Talk/Meeting F: Site in-Charge Alternatively
. . R R: Site in-Charge Week-2/4
Action Point Register Meeting F: HSE Rep. Alternatively
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Firefighting Equipment Inspection Checklist
Fire Equipments/ System Summary:
Hocation: Date: ]
: Last
S. No Equipments / System | Total papeEtion inspection Comments
Name Frequency
date
Fire Extinguishers
2 Fire Hydrants
3 Fire Monitor
2 Duplex Fire Monltor
{Moniter/Hydrant)
5 Foarn System
6 Fire Suits
7 SCBA {Self Contained
8reathing Apparatus)
8 Fire Hose Reel
] Fire Hose Boxes
1C | Fire Water Pump
[ 11 | Foam Trolleys
Fire Extinguisher Inspection Checklist:
—)
Month: Location: Date:
bl Type & , Fl'i_lli;n'g | Expiry Feamioienst - Nozzle E ey =)
TN0 |foemtn | capacity | pate | pate | Comosion| NeMe | pemaris
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Foam Troley/DCP Inspection Checklist:
’:N ACTIVITY STATYS
. No
Yes | N/A No
1 Foam Troliey is at easily accessible location and height
[ 2 Foam Trolley access is not blocked
LS Foam Trolley placed near fire hazards
‘_4 Foam Trolley is not likely to get damaged by impact of other objects
E Foam Trolley is not / not likely to be corroded
6 Foam Trolley is placed at its designated place
7 Foam Inductor in good condition
8 Foam Inductor inlet/outlet Not Clogged
9 Plastic Hose does not have any damage
10 Foam Trolley Free of Leakages
11 Foam Trolley Container does not show any sign of physical wear & tear
12 Hose Cabinet Free of any Bee/Wasp Hive N
Comments :

Inspected By:

Signature:
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Fire Hydrants, Monitors, Hose Reel, Nozzle and Hose Box Inspection Checldist

Fire Hydrant / Fire Monitor

Tag# 00  Horizontal 4
movement
Type O Vertical 0
movement
Area O Locking bolts in 0
good condition
[ Grease nipples free 0
of dust

O  Capsinplace

Remarks:

Fire Hose Reel / Fire Nozzle / Fire Hose Box

Tag # O 02 No. fire 0
hoses

Type 0O 02 No. nozzles [

Area 0  Hose/Nozzle O
clean

O  Ball valves O

operating

Remarks:

o Gre-a?ing of Monitors to be dene on monthly basis

Coupler
spring tension

Nozzie fitting in
Hydrant

Valve easily
operating

* Greasing of 02
No. nipples

Coupler spring
tension

Doors in good
condition

Handles in good
condition

Rubber seals in
good condition
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Job Safety Analysis:

l K ! HASCOL PETROLEUM LIMITED

| J5A TITLE: DOCUMENT No.

| LocaTion: REVISION: JSA/Facility/No (091)
| 15A CONDUCTED On: VALIDITY:

| PARTICIPANTS:

PART - 1

JOB STEPS:
1.

PART - 2

HSE REQUIREMENTS
2.

PART -3

HAZARDS IDENTIFICATION & RISK EVALUATION

PARTICIPANTS:

Signature:

Name

Designation

Originator HSE Review Approved By J

L
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SR

Tanker Lorry Pre Load Safety Checklist
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Annexure

HSSE Documents

i18
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Statutory requirements for new Terminal/Depots:

1-Dyke/Bund Walil Requirements/conditions:

a)

b)

c)
d)
e}
f)

g)
h}

)

All the tanks are supported by foundation and shail be surrounding by a bund/dyke wall of
substantial construction.

The volumetric capacity of the dike/ bund area shall not be less than the greatest amount of
liquid that can be stored/ release from the largest tank within the dike area assuming a fuil
tank.

A slope of not less than 1 percent away from the tank shall be provided for at least 50t (15
m} or to the dike base.

Walls of the dike area shali be of earth, steel, concrete, or solid masonry designed to be liquid
tight and to withstand a full hydrastatic head.

The walls of the dike area shall be restricted to an average interior height of 6 ft. (1.8 m} above
interior grade.

Piping passing through dike walls shall be liquid tight and be designed to prevent excessive
stresses (e.g, pipe supports etc.) as a result of settiement or fire exposure.,

The minimum distance between tanks and toe of the interior dike walls shall be 5 ft (1.5 m}.
Each dike area containing two or more tanks shali be divided, preferably by drainage channeis
regarding to prevent spills from tanks situated within the dike area.

The condition for draining water from dike areas shall be controlied to prevent flammable or
combustible liquids from entering natural watercourses, public sewers, or public drains.
Control! of drainage through block valves shall be accessible under fire conditions from outside
the dike.

Storage of combustible materials, empty or full drums, or barrels, shall not be permitted
within the dike area.

2-Terminal Roads and approach (right to use):

a)

b}
c)

d)

f)

g)

The roads/approach should be arra nged to form a complete ring around the entire site area,
with branch roads crossing through the various areas.

This makes all parts of the site accessible from more than one direction.

The roads should have minimum width of 10 ft to permit easy maneuvering of vehicles, with
corner radii to suit the turning circle of the largest vehicle (i.e. fire trucks, product tank trucks
or any specialist vehlicles carrying special loads applicable to the piant.)

Pedestrian pathways adjacent to roads should be allowed in areas of high personnel
concentration and traffic movement anly.

There should be adequate parking space for vehicles to load or unload, or to receive clearance
to enter or leave the site.

Car parks for personnel and visitors should be in a safe area (minimum 50 ft from product
handling/loading areas).

The Instailation/ depot shall have sufficient space for maneuvering/face out parking of
vehicles for easy exit in case of an emergency situation.
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h) Separate emergency exit for product tank (trucks or any speclalist vehicies carrying special
loads applicable to the plant),said exit only for emergency purpose not for routine activates .

3-Separation distances of Terminal Installation:

a) ForPMG storage tanks separation distance is 100ft with same dyke/bund wali or separate.

b} ForHSD products storage tanks separation distance {tank shell to shell) is 35 ft with same
dyke/bund wall or separate {must be same product with adjusting storage tank in
common dyke/bund wall). '

c) For PMG Tank to tank separation distances is 100ft in common dyke/bund wall or
separate.

d} For PMG Tank to HSD tank separation distances is 35ft.

e) NO provision of different class of product storage tank in common dyke/bund wall.

f}  Operation areas (filling/decantation gantries, pump houses ete) shall be kept 150ft from
storage tanks.

g} Administration areas shall be kept (300 to 350) ft from storage tanks.

A-Venting for Vertical Storage Tanks:

a) Vertical storage tanks required vents to prevent the phenomena of vacuum , vapors and
atmosphere pressure change during tank operation (Filling or decantation) sufficient to
disfigure the roof of a cone roof tank or exceeding the design pressure in the case of other
atmospheric tanks, as a result of filling or emptying, and atmospheric temperature changes(
Normal vents/ambient emergency vents shall be sized in accordance with AP! Standard 2000,
Venting Atmospheric and low-pressure Storage Tanks).

b) Ina vertical tank, the construction referred to in Regulation 11.6 shall be 5 floating roof, a
lifter roof or a weak roof-to-shell seam. The weak roof-te-shell seam shail be constructed to
fail preferential to any ather seam:. Design methods that will provide a weak roof to shell
seam construction are contained in AP} 650, Welded Steel Tanks for Qi Storage.

¢) Tank venting systems shall be provided with sufficient capacity to prevent blowback of vapor
or liquid at the fill opening while the tank is being filled. Vent pipes shall be sized according to
design methods contained in NFPA 30, Flammable and Combustible Liguid Code.

5-Floating roof/Screen requirements:

a) In avertical tank, the construction referred to in Regulation 11.5 shafl be a floating roof, a
fifter roof or a weak roof-to-shell seam (AP1650, Welded Steel Tanks for il Storage}.

b) Tanks Design and construction:

(i) Atmospheric tanks designed and constructed in accordance with Appendix F of AP|
Standard 650, Welded Steel Tanks for Oil Storage,

(i) Shall be permitted to operate at pressures from atmospheric to 1.0 psig (gauge pressure
of 6.9 Kappa). All other tanks shall be limited to operation from atmospheric to 0.5 psig
{gauge pressure of 3.5 Kappa).

(ifl) The height of the vertical tanks shail not exceed 64 ft.

6-Piping Requirements for terminal:
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a) The design, fabrication, assem bly, test and inspection of piping systems shali be suitabie
for the expected working pressures and structura) stresses and must foliow the applicable
sections of ASME B 31, Code for pressure piping.

b} Pipe, valves, faucets, couplings, fittings and other Pressure containing parts shail meet the
material specifications and Pressure and temperature limitations of ASME B 31, Code for
pressure piping.

7- Electrical Requirements for terminal:

a) All electrical wirings, cables, conduits, switches, lights are according to terminal area
classification, (NFPA 70, NFPA 70-E, NFPA 96, NFPA 497),

8-Filling/decantation pumps requirements for terminal:

a) Pumps should be seiect according to terminal zone tlassification (NFPA 497Hazardous Area
Classification).

b) All electrica) wirings, cables, conduits, switches, lights are according to terminal area
ciassification. (NFPA 70, NFPA 70-E, NFPA 96, NFPA 497).

9-Product Loading/ Unloading System:

are required for loading the product in tank trucks.
b) Aloading or unloading facility shall have the canopy or roof that does not limit the dissipation
of heat or dispersion of flammable vapors and also does not restrict fire-fighting access and
control,
¢} Front end (Driver end} of tank truck shall be faced to main exit so that in case of any
emergency, vehicle shall drive out of the installation. The corner radii shouid have the
minimum value of 12.5 meters,
d) Loading area should be fully paved, curbed and drained so that ai} spills from trucks and
equipment would flow quickly to adequately sized and suitably located catch pits and drains.
These catch pits and drains shall be connected with oily/water drains system
e} Loading and un-loading facilities shall be provided with a means for electrically bonding to
protect against static electricity hazards. :

10-Butidings and Protective Boundaries:

a} The major plant buildings administration, central workshops, warehouse ete, should be
located as per minimum spacing requirements.

b} The Installation/ depot shail be protected on afl sides by concrete/ brick wall having a
minimum height of 7 ft.

¢) The wall should also have 3 ft high barbed wire fencing on the top.,

d} The administration buliding should be separated from the product storage and handling areas
through fencing etc.
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e) There should be adequate parking space for vehicles to load or unload, or to receive clearance

to enter or leave the site, Car parks for personnel and visitors should be in a safe area
{minimum 50 feet from product handling/loading areas) The Installation/ depot shall have
sufficient space for maneuvering/face out parking of vehicles for easy exit in case of an
emergency situation,

11- Waste/rain water Mmatters(Drajnage System):

a) Discharge Oily-Water must run in closed sewers wherever possible, They should be

b}

c)

d)

f)

g}

interconnected by means of sewer boxes or manholes, each having a liquid seal to prevent
transmission of hazardous gases from one sewer box to another. In cases where gases could
collect, sewer box covers should be sealed and sewer box vented to a safe location, These
vents should terminate a minimum of 3 meters above grade, 5 meters from operating
platforms and 15 meters from furnaces.

Collection of oily water collection system shali run through the entire operations area
covering tank farms, loading and un-loading facilities pump house, etc,

Drainage system shall be designed to minimize fire €xposure to other tanks and adjacent
properties or waterways. A facility shall be designed and operated to prevent the normal

discharge of flammable or combustible liquids to public waterways, public sewers, or adjoining

property.
Emergency drainage systems if connected to public sewers or discharged into public
waterways shall be equipped with traps.

All the oily water mixture should be collected at a single location and processed through a
suitable system before discharging the same through any means.

Combustible waste material in operating areas shai! be keptto a minimum, stored in covered
metal containers and disposed of at proper location as 500n as possible,

Each dike area must be graded so as to avoid collection of rain water. The valve is kept closed

to contain the oil within the dike area in case of tank leak/rupture, Operator must ensure that

12-Tank fire protection foam system:

a)
b}

c)

Systems can be actuated automatically or manually.

Discharge outlets shall be attached to the tank, in case of protection of 2 flammable liquid
contained in a vertical tank, Where two or more discharge outlets are required, the outiets
shall be spaced equally around the tank periphery, and each outlet shall be sized to deliver
foam at approximately the same rate, Fixed foam discharge outlets shal be attached securely
at the top of the shell and shall be located or connected such that there is no possibility of the
tank contents overflowing into the foam lines. In order to prevent éntrance of vapors into
foam outlets and Pipelines, fixed foam discha rge outlets shall be provided with an effective

and durabie seal, frangible under low pressure. Fixed foam discharge outlets shall be provided

with suitabie inspection means to permit proper maintenance and for inspection and

replacement of vapor seals.
The following are two acceptable methods of protecting loading racks:

HASCOL Petroleum Limited f
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{i)
{ii)
d)

e}

g)

h)

i)

Foam-water sprinkler application utilizing afr-aspirating foam-water sprinklers or nozzles or
non-air-aspirating standard sprinklers,

Foam monitors (Fixed/ Portable).

NFPA 16, Standard for the Installation of Foam-Water Sprinkler and Foam Water Spray
Systems shall be used for the design of systems where fixed foam-water sprinklers or nozzles
are used.

The rates of application of fire fighting agents given below shall be used in conjunction with
equipment spacing mentioned in section 4.3 of NFPA 30
Tank fire protection Tank safety distances shall be designed according to NFPA 30 as described

in Section 4. On this basis, NFPA 30.

It is therefore not proposed to provide any fixed spray systems on the outside of the new
storage tanks or any foam systems to extinguish fires inside the tanks.

General Tanks adjacent to a tank on fire should be cooled by a water spray to prevent spread
of the fire from tank to tank. NFPA 15, Section 7.4.2 advises that water spray should he
applied at a rate of 10.2 kg/min/m2, but this relatively high rate of water application is not
generally practical for large storage tanks.

Cooling water should be applied to the roof and shell of fixed-roof tanks,
The recommendead technique for fighting fires in bund areas Is to extinguish and secure one

_area and then to move on and extinguish the next section of the bund. This procedure is

k)

1)

m)

p)

a)

r)

continued unti! the fire is extinguished.

Water supply NFPA 850 requires that fire water supply systems shall be designed to provide
the maximum likely simuitaneous water demand from fixed fire protection systems,

Fire water tank NFPA 850 recommends that water storage should be sufficient to provide the
required water supply flow rate for not Jess than two hours...

Fire water pumps In the Fire Fighting Water pump house there will be two fire pumps, one
driven by diesel engine and the other by an electric motor,

The pumps supply water from the Fire Fighting Water tank for the standpipe system and fire
hydrants. Either one of these centrifugal pumps must alone be abie to deliver the required
amount of water. At the rated flow, the pressure produced by the pumps will be from 8 to 10
bars.

The final pressure should be evaiuated according to system requirements,

An electric jockey pump will be provided to maintain the pressure in the pipeline. If the jockey
pump cannot maintain the pressure, the pump control system will automaticaliy start the
electrically driven pump and diese engine driven pump at respective pressure set points,

The pumps shall be hydraulically sized according to the NFPA 20 standard (Not less than 150 %
of rated capacity at not less than 65 % of total rated head).

Foam supply system the foam supply system will be bladder tank type or atmospheric storage
tank with a foam concentrate pump, level indicators and low level alarms.

The foam tank can be located either in same location with the main pumps or in the separate
container or shelter whichever is considered more feasible during detailed design phase. The
tank shall be of double-skinned design and fabricated from or lined with material compatible
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with the foam concentration. The foam system shall be designed in accordance with NFPA 16-
Standard for the installation of foam-water sprinkier and foa m-water spray systems,

t) The total number of site area hydrants shall be determined as part of the detailed design. An
appropriate number of them shall have spool pipe for monitor connection.
13-Fire Extinguishers:
a) Limitations of use of fire extinguishers required shall meet the requirements as specified in
NFPA-10, Standard for Portabie Fire,
b) Fire extinguishers having a gross welght not exceeding 40 Ib, {18.14 kg) shall be instalied so
that the top of the fire extinguisher is not more than 5 ft, {1.53 m} abave the floor,
¢) In no case shall the clearance between the bottom of the fire extinguisher and the floor be
less than 4 in. (10.2 cm}.
d} The selection of fire extinguishers for a given situation shall be determined by the character of
the fires.
e) Fire extinguishers shall be selected for the classes of hazards to be protected in accordance
with the following subdivisions.
fl  Fire extinguichers for protecting Ciass A hazards shall be selected from the following:
{i) Water type.
{if) Muitipurpose dry chemical type and wet chemical type.
g8) Fire extinguishers for protection of Class B hazards shall be selected from the following:
(i) Aqueous film-forming foam {AFFF).
(i) Film-forming fluoroprotein foam (FFFP),
{iit) Carbon dioxide.
{iv} Dry chemical type.
h) Fire extinguishers for protection of Class C hazards shall be selected from types that are
designated for use on Class C hazards.
i} NOTE: Carbon dioxide fire extinguishers equipped with metal horns are not considered safe
for use on fires In energized electrical equipment and, therefore, are not classified for use on
Class C hazards.
J}  Fire extinguishers and extinguishing agents for the protection of Class D hazards shall be of
types designated for use on the specific combustible metal hazard.
k) Fire extinguishers and extinguishing agents for the protection of Class K hazards shall be
selected from either a wet chemical type or dry chemical type.
I} Periodic inspection of fire extinguishers shall include a check of at least the following items
(NFPA10-6.2.2):
[?xtinguisher Type ] Inspection Maintenance | Recharging Hydrostatic Testing
Dry Chemical Powder |30 Days 1 Year Empty and 12 years
{Stared pressure). (6.2.1) (6.3.1) internally inspect {7.2)
@ 6 Years
{6.3.3, 6.4.3.4)
Carbon Dioxide{C02) | 30 Days Maintenance S Years (6.4.1.1, 5 years (Table 7.2)
{6.2.1) and “ensure 6.4.3.9, & 6.4.5.1)

conductivity
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exists” @ 1 Year
{6.3.1.2, 6.3.1)}

Periodic inspection of fire extinguishers shall include a check of at ieast the following items (NFPA10-

6.2.2);

. Location in designated place.
H.  No obstructions to access or visibility,
. Operating instructions on nameplate legible and facing outward.
IV.  Safety seals and tam per indicators not broken or missing,
V. Fullness determined by weighing or “hefting.”
VL. Examinations for obvious physical damage, corrosion, leakage, or clogged nozzle.
VIL  Pressure gauge reading or indicator in the operabie range or position.
Vill.  Condition of tires, wheels, carriage, hose, and nozzle checked (for wheel units).
X.  Labelin place.

14-Fire Water Hydrants:

a) A suitable number of hydrants spaced at appropriate distances and sized to give
adequate cover to the terminal critical areas.

b) Hydrants shall be sited in accessible positions, usually adjacent to hazardous area.

¢} A typical spacing will be 50 m-100 m, giving maximum hose lengths from hydrant to
hozzle of 30-50 m.

d) Normally there shall be at least two hydrants per bund area,

e) Each hydrant shall have at least two outlets.

) In planning the locations of hydrants, consideration should be given to permitting
approach from two sides thus enabling approach to be made upwind of the incident,

g} Inaddition, the sitting should ideally facilitate tackling fires or giving protection in
adjacent areas.

k) ifa hydrant is in close proximity to a potentially hazardous area, provide a heat and
blast protection shield, such as brick or concrete wall,

i}  Fire main systems shall have sectional block valves in order to permit sectionalizing
the system in the event of a break, or for the making of repairs or extensions.

i} Where there is more than one source of water supply, a check valve shail be installed
in each connection.

k) Hydrants shall be of standard design and shall not have legs than a 4-in. (160 mm)
diameter connection with the main fire water circuit. A valve shali be installed in the
hydrant connection.

I} Hose shall conform to NFPA 1961, Standard for Fire Hose.

m) Hose coupling threads shaii conform to the NH standard threads, as specified in NFPA
1963, Standard for Fire Hose Connection.

n)  Horizontal angle Position of the monitor over 3600 and in the case of vertical
mavements this should be - 300 to + 800 {for portable monitor the change of angle
location in vertical position should be at least between 300 and 800).

o} Concerning portable maonitor the angle of rotation in horizontal position shouid be at
least 180 o. The total number of site area hydrants shall be determined as part of the
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detailed design. An appropriate number of them shali have spool pipe for monitor
connection

15-Minimum Supply Requirements:

a)

b}

A minimum of 2 hours supply should be provided based on the potential use of water for
extinguishment, cooling and foam production in a design-base fire assumed for the site Fire
Plan.

NFPA 850 requires that fire water supply systems shall be designed to provide the maximum
likely simultaneous water demand from fixed fire protection systems. Fire Water Py mps

16-Fire Water Pumps and Drivers:

a}
b}
c}
d}

e)

g}

h}

)

k)

Centrifugal fire pumps shali be designed as per NFPA 20,

Water Supplies

The water storage requirement shall be as per regulatian.

A pressure gauge having a dial not less than 31/2in, (89 mm) in diameter shall be connected
near the discharge casting with a 1/4-in. (6.25-mm) gauge valve. The dial shall indicate
pressure 1o at least twice the rated working pressure of the pump but not less than 200 psi
{13.8 bars). The face of the dial shall read in pounds per square irch or bars or both with the
manufacturer's standard graduations.
A compound pressure and vacuum gauge having a dial not less than 31/2 in. {83 mm} in
diameter shal! be connected to the suction pipe near the pump with a 1/4-in. {6.25-mm)
gauge valve. Provision of compound gauge and vacuum gauge shail not be required for
vertical shaft turbine-type pumps taking suction from a well or apen wet pit,

The face of the dial shall read in inches {mm) of mercury (Hg) or pounds per square inch
(bars) for the suction range. The gauge shall have a pressure range two times the rated
maximum suction pressure of the pump, but not iess than 100 psi (7 bars).

Each pump(s) shall have an automatic relief valve listed for the fire pump service installed
and set below the shutoff pressure at minimum expected suction pressure,

Provisions shall be made for discharge to a drain. Circulating relief valves shall not be tied in
with the packing box or drip rim drains. Minimurm size of the automatic relief vaive shall be %
in. {19.0 mm) for pumps with a rated Capacity not exceeding 2500 gpm (9462 L/min), and 1
in. {25.4 mm) for pumps with a rated capacity of 3000 to 5000 gpm (11,355 to 18,925 L/min).
Steel pipe shall be used aboveground except for connection to underground suction and
underground discharge piping. Where corrosive water conditions exist, steel suction pipe
shall be galvanized or painted on the inside prior to installation with a paint recommended
for submerged surfaces. Thick bituminous linings shall not be used.

Sections of steel piping shall be joined by means of screwed, fianged {flanges welded to pipe
are preferred), mechanical grooved joints.

All provisions for welded pipe shall be in accordance with NFPA 13, Standard for the
Instaliation of Sprinkler Systems,
The harizontal split-case pump in horizontal or vertical position, and end suction and in-line
pumps shall not be used where a static suction lift is involved,
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m} Pumps shall furnish not less than 150 percent {150%) of rated capacity at not less than 65
percent {65%) of total rated head. The shutoff head shall not exceed 14¢ percent {140%) of
rated head for any type pump,

n) The vertical shaft turbine-type pump is particularly suitable for firg pump service where the
water source is located below ground and where it would be difficult to tnstall any other type
of pump below the minimum water level.

©) Pumps shall furnish not less than 150 percent (150%} of rated capacity at a total head of not
less than 65 percent of the rated head. The total shut-off head shall not exceed 140 percent
(140%} of the total rated head on vertical turbine pumps,

P) There should be at-least two fire pumps of similar cg pacity installed at the location, one
acting as the main fire pump and other as the back =-up.

17-Fire detection:

a} General the fire detection system shall be in accordance with NFPA 72

b) A fire alarm centre including a supervision unit, a display unit, input and output terminal units,
a power supply unit, and a message transfer unit.

¢) Fire detectors and manual call points connected to the fire alarm centre alarm devices (bells,
sirens, flashing lights) connected to the fire alarm centre,

d} When designing the fire alarm system, the following basic principles shall be considered.

€} The fire alarm centre shall be placed in, or the signals relayed to, a continuously manned room
the supervised rooms should be divided into alarm zones to ease locating the fire.

f}  Alarm bells, sirens and flashing lights must be situated so that they can be heard or seen
everywhere inside and where needed outside the buildings.

8] Anaverage ambient sound level greater than 105 dab shali require the use of visible
notification appliances.

h) Fire alarm system and zones either addressable or non-addressable systems shall be
acceptable. The following shall be taken into consideration in selecting fire alarm zones.

i) The purpose of fire alarm zones is to graup the fire detectors and in that way ease the fire
location at an alarm.

)} The basic principle is to install the type and numbers of fire detectors that will give the earliest
possible fire detection without causing faise alarms during normal operation conditions
Optical smoke detectars are recommended,

k) Detection of bund fires Bund fires wili be detected visually by means of the CCTV system.

i} Locating manual call points in a manual alarm device, the fire alarm is activated with a push
button. Narmaliy the button is protected with a cover that can be crushed Push buttons for
activating fire alarms manually should be placed close to each exit road and close to the fire
alarm pane! or alarm centre, Each fire detection loop must have at least one push button.

m) Fire alarm centre there will be at least two independent power supplies.

18-LIST OF DRAWINGS/ DOCU MENTS:

Following drawings/ documents shall be readily available at depots/ terminals:
a) Plot Plan
b} safety manual
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¢} Operating & Maintenance Manual
d} Training Documents 5. Piping & Equipment Drawings

e} Piping & Equipment inspection and Testing documents/certificates
f)  Oil Storage Tank Drawings

g) Oil Storage Tank Inspection and Testing documents/certificates

h) Electrical layout of the instaliation

i) Hazardous area classification drawing

j) Layout locations of Fire Alarm Panel, Hooter/Alarm

k} Electrical and instrumentation equipment list and data sheets/specifications
1) Earth resistance test reports

mj} Instrumentation calibration Test Certificates

19-References;

*  29CRF1910{Occupational Health &safety),
APIB50,651

OISD-STD-118(01! Industry Safety Directorate)
¢ IP Code Oct. 1993, Table A-2221

* IP Code Oct. 1993, Tahle A-2.2.2.2

s NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.2.5.2.1

*  NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.2.5.3.4 & 52522
&  NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.2.6.2.8

*  NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.2.6.5.1

* NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 52422

* NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.3.5.3.1

* NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.6.53

* NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 57.3.1

¢ NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.8.1.2

e NFPA 11, 2002 Edition, Table 5.9.1.2

* NFPA 11,2002 Edition, Tabie 5.9.1.4

¢ NFPA 30, 2003 Edition, Table 4.3.2.1.1

* NFPA 30, 2003 Edition, Table 4.3.2.1.2

¢  NFPA 30, 2003 Edition, Table 4.3.2.1.4

® NFPA 30, 2003 Edition, Table 4.3.2.1.1{b)

* NFPA 30, 2003 Edition, Tahle 43215

*  NFPA 30, 2003 Edition, Table 4.3.2.2.1

* NFPA 30, 2003 Edition, Table 8.2.2
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Training Need Assessment for Tanker Lorry Drivers
OBJECTIVE AND scopg

Objective of the document is to énsure training needs of drivers are identified for the
Company & Contracto Tanker/Lorry drivers to safeguard the personne! and the product, This
depicts the basic ang role based trainings with the provision of frequencies. This document is
applicable to the company as welf a5 tontractor’s fleet, The training shall be delivered by
approved trajner and shall be Properly assessed and recorded,

RESPONSIBILITY

* Adesignated Person within the company to co-ordinate angd manages the provision of

Safety trainings to pe delivered ang will be part of drivers training passport.
Refresher Frequency Trainers Requirement
3" party Company
Vehicle Rojj Over Awareness h

Approved Tl’ainer

training
Cross defined frequency
Fire Fighti Approved Trainer

lourney Risk Management pian, for Approved Trainer
the Specific Route
lnduction/Orientatfon Bi-Yearly m
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Trainings [ Refresher Frequency l Trainers Requirement
Near Miss and Incident Reporting I 1 Year [ Approved Trainer
Loac.hpg'anc.i decanting Sites Bi-Yearly Company/Contractor
Familiarization
Product Handling Training I 1Year Fpproved Trainer

Tire inspection and safety training J 1 Year

Approved Trainer
LVehicle Safety Inspection I 1 Year

I Approved Trainer
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PPEs Standard

Objective
The objective of personal protective equipment’s standard is to reduce to prevent potential injury or

iliness to HASCOL Petroleum Limited {HPL) em ployees, contractors and visitors to as low as reascnably

reduce accidental risk.

This document outlines the reguirements for managing and controlling the use of personal protective
equipment at all HPL sites.

Responsibitity

Line Manager(s)

Line management is responsible for allocating sufficient budgets for procuring necessary & standard
PPE according to anticipated increase in operational staff and initiate procurement requirement. The
Line Manger(s) shall ensure that af| requirements are fully in place and at all site (s).

Site in Charga (s)

Site in Charges (s) shall ensure that arrangements are in place for the Procurement, supply, inspection,

issuance, use and maintenance of the Personal Protective Equipment.

Manager HSSE
Advise relevant departments in selection process of all types of PPE and ensure they comply with
International Safety Standards and are fit for the purpose for which they are intended.

Consult with staff to record observations about PPE in arder to ensure wearer accepta bility.
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

Head protection

The purpose of head protection is to protect the worker from the impact of falling objects and also

collision with the stationery objects,
* Al employees, contractors and subcontractors must wear hard hats in designated areas.

¢ Hard hat can be used maximum for five years but must be replaced on basis of physicai
condition

¢ Hard hats must be inspected frequently to ensure that there are o cracks and the web
suspension is in good condition. in any case if the equipment does not meet the criterion of
visual inspection, the same needs replacement,

Feet Protaction

chemical-resistant soles. It can also be anti-static, electrically conductive or thermally insulating. It is
important that the appropriate footwear is selected for the risks identified,

¢ Safety boots and shoes with protective toe caps and penetration-resistant mid-sole, gaiters,
leggings, spat.

* Rubber Boots to be utllized while working with chemicals or water in working area,

* It must ensure that all employees (HPL, Contractor, Sub-Contractor) working on HPL site(s)
wear safety footwear which s appropriate to the hazards they may be exposed to.
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Electrical workers must wear safety footwear with certain specification which should meet the
electrical resistance,

*  \Visitors are recoimmended to wear safety footwear where it is needed; otherwise he must
restrict himself to the task where safety footwear is not needed,

Eves Protection

Specific Rules:

® Ear protection has to be worn in all work areas where there are safety signs for ear protection
is posted,

* Ear Protection is required where there Is a noise level above 85 dB (A},

¢ No exposure to continuous or intermittent noise where there is a noise level above 115 dg {A).

Respiratory protective equipment shall be available to all persons who are exposed to any situation in
which there is a possibility of the atmosphere being or becoming deficient in OXxygen or containing any
harmful substance like overexposure to Hydrocarbons during filling operations » Whether particle, dust
mist, vapors or gas includ ing:

*  Workin confined space where a danger of oxygen deficiency or harmful gases may be present
or where there is any chance of toxic Bases release,

* Standards of respiratory protection system must accordance with BS, EN standard.

* Grade "D" air is breathing air quality according to OSHA standards.

*  Air quality tests for Compressed air must be carried by a competent person on regular basis to
make sure the breathing air quality (seif-contained breathing a Pparatus),

Apparatus SCBA)
*  Respirators with Filters are the protective equipment which cleans the air through buiit in
filters before breathing. These are canister respirators and face mask filter units.

1.21.2, Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus:
Seif-contained breathing apparatus {SCBA) consists of a fulj face mask connected with breathing air
cylinder carried by wearer. It can be used as Supplied Air Respirator if provided with quick coupling.
Wearer can close the air supply from cylinder on his back and can take breathing air from cascade
system provided on the work site(s).

1.21.3. Work Duration:
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Extended use of any type of respirator becomes uncomfortable. For long duration jobs supplied air
respirators are recommended, SCBAs are recommended for short duration jobs and rescue purposes.

133

Hands Protection:
Adequate hand protection in form of cotton gloves for warkers (HPL, Contractor and subcontractor).

For electrical workers, suitabja hand protections like rubber/leather gloves,
Body Protection; )

* Body protective devices shall be manufactured to recognized national or international
standards.
1.22. References
* Head Protection ANS| Z 89.1-2003 / BS EN 397
¢ BSEN166/ANS| 7 87.1-2003 {Personal eye protection)
* BSEN169-171 / ANS| Z87.1 {Personal eye protection for welding}
* Grade “D” Ajr {OSHA Standards)

* BS 1547 for flame retardant clothing / ANSI-iSEA 107-2004)

*  BS2653for welders’ clothing / ANSI-ISEA 107-2004)

* BS 7182 for air permeable chemical Protective equipment.”

*  BS1397 ( safety harnesses ) Self-locking safety anchorage’s for industrial use (work at heights)

* Safety helmet of plastic construction, manufactured in accordance with 85 EN 397

® Safety footwear with Steel toe protection manufactured in accordarice with BS 1870 / (ASTM F
2413-05 for cyut resistant),(ASTM F2412-05 for electrical resistance)
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k. Take all the adequate measures tg prevent from fire and an event of fire
General Duties of Self-Employed and Emplovers to persons other than their own Employees
e uiles of yelf-Employ

1. Mt is duty of every self-employed person and employer is to conduct his undertaking in
stich a way to ensure, so far as js reasonably practicable, that he himself and other

2. Every employer and self-employed Person shall, in the Prescribed circumstances and in
the prescribed manner, give to person (not being his workers} who may affect by the way

their use, to take such measures as is reasonable for a person to ensure. So far as is
reasonably practicabie, that the premises, by all means of access thereto egress therefrom
available for yse by person using the premises ang any plant or substance in the premises

or, as the case may be, provided for yse thereof, is safe and without risk to heaith
General Duties of Persons in control of certain premises in relation harmful emissions into
atmosphere

1. it shall be the duty of person having control of any premises to use the best practicable
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Provisions with Regards to Safety & Heaith

1. Without Prejudice to the generality of the foregoing Pprovisions. The said rules may include
but not limited to the following matters namely
. Cleanliness in the Place of work and its freedom from harm, and maintenance

b. llumination, Ventilation, Temperature, Noise, Dust Fumes and artificial
humidification

€. Disposal of wastes and effluents

d. Floor, Stairs and mean access, proper working space, overcrowding, confined
Space, pits, SUMps, opening in floors & alfied things
Drinking water and conservancy

f. Guarding and fencing of machinery work at or near machinery in motion

g g Self-acting machines ang devices for cutting off power, revolving Mmachinery
and plants

h. Instructions, Trainings and Supervision in relation to employment on dangerous

Machines and fencing or casing of machinery, wet floors, open wiring etc.

k. Personal Protective Equipment
l.  Excessive weights
m. Loading and Earth Moving Machinery
n. Crane, hoist, lift and other lifting Operations
0. Scaffolding and Work at Height _
p. Safety of building, machinery and manufactun'ng Process
Written § atement of Policy
1. Every employer to whom this act js applicable, except in such cases as may be prescribed
by the Government, shall declare 3 written statement of 3 general policy with respect to

fatalities, injuries, and near Mmisses,
2. The policy shall be reviewed and revised when
a. Intr_oducing or altering the procedures for managing risks to safety

substances used for work. But as a minimum at least every five years and to bring
the statement and the revisions of jt to the notice of aj) Persons in the workplaces
in languages understood by all Consultation
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3.

2.

At every workplace, the employer shall provide for:

a. The selection of occupational safety and heaith representatives from amongst the
worker's in such establishments having less than fifty workers and such
representatives shall represent the warkers in all the matters related to Safety,
Health and Welfare at wark. As prescribed and may report the impending threats,
accidents, injuries, and fatal injuries to inspector

b. Appoint as competent person to function as Safety and Health Officer at the
workplace and set up the Occupational, Safety and Health Committee in the
company and having more than forty-nine workers

It shall be the duty of Occupational Safety and Health Representative or occupational
safety and health committee to co-operate and assist the employer to promote and
develop measures to ensure the safety, health and welfare of the workers at workplace.
The committee shall report the effectiveness of such measures to the employer and the
inspector. (If Required)

Training of Health & Safety Reprasentative

1

The employer shall, once in two vears allow Health and Safety Representative to attend
Health and Safety Training as approved by Government and shall bear all expenses
including paid leaves, course fee, boarding, lodging and traveling

Precautions Against Contagious or Infectious Disease at Work lace

1

Each worker and volunteer shall e provided with a hygiene card in which during the
month of January and July every year entrees shall be recorded after medical examination
by qualified medical practitioner to the affect that the worker is not suffering from any
contagious, infection and Occupational disease. The fee of such an examination shali be
fixed by Gowt. and shall be borne the employer of the workplace

it the worker is found to be suffering from any contagious, infections, occupational
disease on an examination under sub section {1), the employer shali provide appropriate
medical treatment with paid leave.

Every worker shall be vaccinated and inoculated against such diseases and such intervais
as may be prescribed and expenses of such vaccination and inoculation (if Any) shall be
borne by the employer of workplace

Copyright HASCOL Petroloum Ltd 2017, All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.
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Enforcement
An employer or self-employed person(s} shall not built, fit out, affer or Use any site or
buitding as a workplace. Unless its plans or site are approved by Government or its
designated authority.
Government or its Designated Authority while approving the plan or site or building shall
ensure that all safety measures to be taken.
The employer shali, before start of the work, send a written notice to the inspector of the
area as may be prescribed by rules,

Notification and investigations of Accidents, Dangerous Occurrences ang Qccupational

nesses

1

Every employer shali maintain a register of accldents in the prescribed form and shali record in the
register. The prescribed particulars to:
a. Every accident that harm is might have harmed any worker or any person in a
place of work controlied by the employer.
b. Every hazard to which worker was exposed while at workplace in the employment
of the employer.
The employer and self-employed person shall report every accident in the prescribed form
to the inspector within twenty-four hours of the occurrence of the accident.
Where accident causing disability or death is notified by the employer or self-employed
Person, notice in written of the death shall be sent to the Inspector by the employer or
self-employed person in control of workplace within twenty-four hours of accurrence of
disabiiity or death Comes to the knowledge of employer or self-employed person
controliing the workplace,

an Inspector. Any machinery or any article which was involved in such accidents, other
than for the purpose of extricating or attending on any person invoive in such accident.
Where any illness occurs in a workplace which:
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1. The Chief Inspector of Safety and Health may require such workers to undergo pre-
employment and periodic medical examination, suited for the circumstances and at
periods so determine which the employer and workers shali comply

2. The medical examinations shall be conducted at hospitals authorized by the Govt. and the
cost thereof shall have borne by employer

Power to direct formal Investigation of Accidents, Incidents and Cases of Diseases

1. Government may direct a formal Investigation for any accident, incident and disease
cases. During the investigation of any case, following provisions shail Lave effect

a. Government may appoint the competent person who possess the such experience

b. The person appointed as Assessor shall hold the investigation and will assess the
causes of happened incident

c. The person appointed for any such inquiry shall have all the powers of civil court
under the code of civil procedure 1908 (V of 1908) for the purpose of enforcing the
attendance of witness, any documents may be required

d. The assessor will make the report with causes and deviations in addition with
observations and suggestions which are applicable to avold the same in future

e. Government reserves the right to public the report of assessor
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Chapter No. 04

Occupational Safety & Health Council Sindh

1. Government shall establish an Occupational Safety & Heaith Council Sindh which consist of:

a.

The Secretary Health & Human Resources shall be the chairperson of the council. Five
Representatives from Government. industries Dept. Sindh Building Control Authority,
Sindh Environmental Protection Agency, Health Dept. and Fire Department of local govt.
Four member to represent employers and four members to represent workers

Three member from civil society and an officer from directorate of labour Sindh who shall

also act as Secretary to the council

Functions of the Council

1. The councit shall perform the following functions:

b.

Advice govt. on all matters relating to the objects of this act which govt. may refer to the

council.
Review legislation relating to occupational safety and health and recommend to govt. for

amendments, expansion, clarification under the said legisiation

Maeetings and quorum of the Council
1. The councit shall meet at least once in every four months in calendar year

2, Nine members of the council shall form a quorum for any meeting of the council of whom at least

a.
b.
C.
d.

Five official members

Two representatives of employers

Two representatives of workers

One professional or member of civil society

3. The council may appoint committees or sub-committees as it deems fit, to exercise such powers
and performs such duties or discharge such functions as may, subject to such conditions, if any

may council impose.

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Lid 2017. Al rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.



HASCOL Petrolenm Limited

Integrated HSSE Management Manual
@ HSSE Department 141

J Doc Number: HSSE-IMM-01 | Rev: 0

Chapter No. 05

Offences and Penaities

Penalties for Contravention of Act

1. Following acts and omissions shall constitute violations under this act.

a. Obstruction of an inspector in the exercise of his powers

Refusal to fawful order of an inspector to produce records under this act
Failure to maintain records under this act
Fallure to display abstracts of this act at workplace
Failure to give notice of accident.
Smoking or using naked flame near inflammable material without following the
regulations prescribed in this behalf
2. Whoever is guilty of a violation provided under sub-section 1. Shall be liable to a fine or period

of imprisonments as described in the schedule.
Forgery of Certificate

1. If any person forges or counterfeits any certificate required by under or for the purpose of this
act,

P oo g

2. Give orsigns any such certificate knowing it is fake.
3. Knowingly after or make use of any such certificate that is false as aforesaid.
4. Knowlingly alter or makes use of as applying to a person such certificate, which does not so

apply.

Falsely pretends to be a person appointed under any provision this act or regulation.

Willfully makes fajse entry in any register, notice certificate or documents required by under
this act any regulation or order to be kept or served.

7. Knowingly make use of any such false entry or declaration.

Shali be prejudice to any other penalty, be guilty of an offence under this act, and liable to fine or

Imprisonment, as described in schedule,

Proceeding Against State Officers

1. No sult, action or other proceeding shail lie against any person either employed in the public
service authorized this act, for anything done or purporting to be done in good faith under this
act.

o »
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Miscellaneous

Service and Sending of documents

may be served.
a. On any person by delivering it to that person, or by leaving it at, or sending it by
registered post to, the office or residence of that person.
b. On any firm by delivering it to any partner of the firm, or by leaving it at, or sending it
by post to, the office of the firm.

person in control being a company to which the companies Act applies, in any such
manner as specified in 1 & 2 above, or by delivering it or a true copy, to any person
apparently not under the age of sixteen years at workplace.,

workplace, without further Mame or description

Contravention of Law with Dangerous Results

1. Anyone contravenes provision of this act or any regulation. By rule it shall be punishable if
such contravention results in loss of life. Imprisonment which may extend to two years, or

the person injured, died to his legal representative,

Statement of Objects and Reasons

In order to make provisions for Occupational Safety & Health conditions at all workplaces for the
protection of persons at work against risk of injury arising out of the activities at work places and for
the promotion of safe, healthy and decent working environment adapted to physical, physiological
and psychological needs of all persons at work. It is expedient to enact a law in the matter,

Copyright HASCOL Pstroleum Ltd 2017. Al rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.
LheL L Peirolsum Lid 2017



HASCOL Petroleum Limited

- Integrated HSSE Management Manual
@ HSSE Department 143
| Doc Number: HSSE-IMM-01 | Rev: 0 |
RECOMMENDED PRACT ICES-COLOR CODING OF PIPING AND FITTINGS FOR ALL HPL

INSTALLATIONS/DEPOTS
introduction |
Pipes are the simplest, easiest and most economical way to move llquids and gases to where they

need to be. But, it is impossible to know what a pipe contains, or the hazards it presents, from its

N\

3

external appearance. in addftion, the number of pipes and the complexity of piping systems ina

facility is increasing. This means that a system that allows quick identificatioh of pipe contents and
potential hazards is essential, Color coding Is one of the most effective ways of quickly communicating
information.

A uniform and easily understood identification system facilitates petroleum industry operations. Such
a system helps to prevent mixing of muitiple products, particularly gasoline with diesel. The principal
purpese of 3 marking system is to identify product transfer points for tank-truck loading and unloading
at distribution terminals and retail outlets, and to prevent errors in product handling, Personnel who
handle products may make the mistake of “cross-dumping” (commingling) products because these
personne! rely on memory rather than on written records,

Color Codes
OSHA’s preferred Pipe Color coding and labeling Systemn ANSI/ASME A13.1 recommends a color code

based on the type of hazard posed by a pipe’s contents. The recommended color code is tabulated
helow;

Table: Color Code Indications for Pipes and Valves

[s.No. | Pipe Content [ Basic/Primary Color Safety/Secondary Color 7
}i Petroleum Dark Bro Yellow 10-E-53
2 HSD Dark Bro
3 Jet fuel Dark 8rc Orange  ogEst
4 Lube Oil Base Stock Dark Bro
3 Lube QOil Seal Oil Dark Bro Purple D
6 LPG Propane - 1
7 LPG Butane i Tu 5 1Eenh a2 Al
8 Nitrogen ; 0 B g
9 Compressed Air
ﬁ Fire Water Red Red 0
|11 Potable Water ce :
|22 Foam Yellow Yellow 10-E-53

Placement of Labals
ANSI/ASME A13.1 states that labels should be placed on pipes:

¢ Adjacent to all valves and flanges
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Adjacent to all changes in pipe direction

144

¢ On bath sides of wafi, floor or ceiling penetrations

Every 50 feet on straight runs of pipe {or every 25 feet in congested areas)

Size of Identification Labels
Requirements also dictate minimum label and text sizes,

each based on the pipe’s outer diameter,
Minimum sizes are outlined below:

|

_—

" 5. No. Pipe Outer Diameter  Min. Label Length  Min. Lotter Height
I = 0.75"-1,25" 8" 0.5”
) 1.5"-2.0" 8” 0.75"
30 e SHEE e S
4 6”-100" 24" 25"
5 >100” T

Copyright HASCOL Petroloum Lid 2047. Al rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission,



HASCOL Petroleum Limited
Integrated HSSE Management Mapual
HSSE Department

Doc Number: HSSE-IMM-01 | Rev: ¢
HSE TRAININGS MATRIX HPL STAFF

Participants

CEQ, ED, Chiefs, CO0, GM

Engineering, Operations, HTL, Logistics,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Ly bricants

Depot/Terminal staff

Depot/Terminal, Warehouse Staff, Retail
autlets attendants

Engineering, 0perations,~!.ogistics, HTL, LPG,
Lubricants

Engineering, Operations, HTL, Logistics,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants
Engineering, Operations, HTL, Logistics,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants
Engineering, Operations, HTL, Logistics,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants

Engineering, Operations, HTL, Logistics,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants
Engineering, Operations, HT, Logistics,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants
Engineering, Operations, HTL, Logistics,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants
Engineering, Operations, Logistics, HTL,
Aviation, Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants
Engineering, Operations, Logistics, HTL,
Aviation, Wa rehouse, LPG, Lubricants
Engineering, Operations, Logistics, HTL,

lectrical
- Electrica £1C0 Aviation, Wa rehouse, LPG, Lubrlcants

Permit to Work (PTW)

Safe Lifting Operation

Log out Tag out

Hazard identification and Reporting

Incident Investigation

Lifting Operations

Engineering, Operations, Logistics, Aviation,
R0 Confined Space 057 Warehouse, LPG, Lubricants

1. Contractor Safety Management Engineering, Operations, HTL, LPG, Lubricants

Waste Management Depot/Terminal staff
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Vitol Resonrces Pakistan (Private) Limited

The Registrar,

0il and Gas Regulatory Authority
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road,

Blue Area

Islamabad

December 4, 2019

Dear Sir,

Subject: Application for grant of license for the sale of Natural Gas / RLNG under Natural Gas
(Licensing) Rules, 2002.

1. Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on 05t April 2019. The registered
office is situated at F-45, Park Lane, Clifton, Karachi Saddar Town 75600,

2. Vitol is one of the largest energy and commodities companies in the world. Vitol uses its expertise and
logistical networks to distribute energy around the world, efficiently and responsibly. Vitol has reliably
supplied LNG to utilities and other end nsers since 2005 and has grown a global LNG portfolio with off take
and supply contracts stretching from the Americas to the Far East. Vitol has extensive experience in
supplying into FSRUs. LNG is a part of Vitol's largest natural gas portfolic which supplies over 20BCM
across Europe and the Americas and holds physical gas storage in 06 countries. The group also supplies
320TwWh of power across 70 countries.

3. Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited requests for a grant of License to carry out sale of Natural
Gas/RLNG and attaches herewith the following information for review:

i 4
S ) Schedule - |, as required under Rule 4(2) of the Natural Gas Regulatory Authority (Licensing) Rulest/
2002 is attached as Annexure A.

%
Attested copies of Memorandum and Articles of association of the applicant are attached as Annexure v
BI

@D ?\) ince Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited is a private company, therefore Certificate of
5 ”/ Commencement of Business is not applicable. [Rule 4(3)(b)]

d) Attested copies of the latest submission to the Registrar of Companies attached as Annexure C. /

B~
I’ e) Attested copy of the latest audited annual and audited half yearly financial statements of the applicant\/ 4
are attached as Annexure D.

\!
) f) Certificate of Incorporation, Certificate of Incumbency and Standard Articles of Vitol Resources Pakistan
ﬁ (Private) Limited Annexure E,

g} Attested copies of the corporate authorization allowing the submission of the application as Annexure

O
\Q\y Y Details of the technical and financial expertise and Resources available for carrying out the relevant
Q’“\ egulated activities attached as Annexure G.

[
R
i} Details of the resources and expertise and resources available to handie emergency situations arising
out of natural calamities, accidental or criminal acts or omission, specifying which such resources are
@/ available and which are to be procured attached as Annexure H.

Y]
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Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

List of names of business addresses of the applicant’s senior management, including without limitation,
departmental and/or divisional heads attached as Annexure L.

It is highlighted that any of the applicants Officers or Directors, do not directly or indirectly, owns,
controls, or holds ten percent or more of the voting interest in any other person engaged in a regulated
activity.

There are no applications, petitions or filings which are pending before the Authority at the time of the
filing of this application which directly or significantly affects this application.

Details of the following market Data:

i.  An estitnate of the volume of natural gas to be transmitted, distributed or sold attached as
Annexure |,

il. ~ Number and consumption details of consumer attached as Annexure K,
ifi. ~ The applicant’s total annual peak day natural gas requirements attached as Annexure L.

iv.  Tofal past (if applicable) and expected curtailments of service by the applicant attached as
Annexure M.

v.  Mapsissued or certified by the Survey of Pakistan drawn to an appropriate scale showing details
of areas where transmission facilities are or are proposed to be located and the principle
geographical features of the said areas attached as Annexure N,

Details of sources of supply of natural gas including forecasts of the available quantity from such
sources attached as Annexure 0.

Safety and service obligations are as per HSSE manual enclosed.

Technical specification of the distribution facilities for the sale of Natural Gas Annexure P,

Fees as per schedule - 1], as required under Rule 29 & 33 of the Natural Gas Regulatory Authority
(Licensing) Rules 2002 is attached as Annexure Q.

4. An early grant of License to carry out sale of Liquefied Natural Gas/ Re-gasified Natural Gas would be highly
appreciated.

Yours Sincerely,

T

Farid Arshad Masood

CEQ

Enclosed: As above
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Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

The Registrar, December 4, 2019

0il and Gas Regulatory Authority
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road,

Blue Area

Islamabad

Subiect: Co D i

Dear Sir,

Details of the focal person for communications with respect to our application are as follows:

Name Farid Arshad Masood
Designation CED, Vitol Resources Pakistan Private Ltd
Address F-45, Park Lane, Clifton, Karachi Saddar Town ,75600
Mobile 0300-8244993
Telephone 021-35872475
Email fam@vitol.com
LW eb www.vitol.com |
Yours truly,
Farid Arshad Masood

CEO




Name of the Company:
(Applicant)

Company’s full address
along with telephone, fax, e-mail:
and web details

Name, title and authorized
signature of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer

Names and addresses
of current directors of the
Applicant:

Name and address of any person
or corporate body with a holding
of more than one percent (1%)
ormore in the Applicant:

Prnexupe "A’

Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

SCHEDULE -1
[see rule 4 (2)]
Natural Gas Regulatory Authority

Application Form

December 4, 2019

VITOL RESOQURCES PAKISTAN PRIVATE LIMITED

F-45, PARK LANE, CLIFTON, KARACHI
SADDAR TOWN, SINDH, 75600
021-35872475 / 0300-8244993

1

Name Title Authorized Signature
Farid Arshad Masood CEO _:l—_] r—l =
Name Address
Abdul Aziz Khalid Level 5, Precinct Building 2
Dubai International Financial Centre {DIFC)
P.O. Box No. 506514
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
Farid Arshad Masood | Level 5, Precinct Building 2
Dubai International Financial Centre (DIFC)
P.0. Box No. 506514
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
Name Address Percent
Shareholding
Vitol Resources Level 5, Precinct Building 2 99.8%

Middle East FZE

Dubai International
Financial Centre (DIFC)
P.0.Box No. 506514
Dubai, United Arab
Emirates

Regulated Activity for which a license is sought:

(a) Transmission License

{b) Distribution License

(e Sale License (SALE OF RLNG)
{d) Integrated License

{e) ProjectLicense



Nature of license applied for
(if exclusive, please provide
detaited justifications}

Period for which the license is sought:

Details of any license held,
applied for, or applied for and
refused ander the Rules,

by the Applicant, or

any of the interested parties,
or any of their affiliated or
related undertakings:

Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

Exclusive v’

Non — Exclusive

From: 01st/January /2020
To:  31st/ December / 2050

NONE REFUSED
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (XIX OF 2017)
(PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

ASSOCIATION

OF

VITOL RESOURCES PAKISTAN (PRIVATE)
LIMITED
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1.

THE COMEPANIES ACTF, 20407 (XIX OF 2017)

(PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
MEMORANDIM OF ASSOCIATION
OF

VITOL RESOURCES PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITLED

The name of the Company 5 “Vital Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited™

The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the Province of S;ud.la..m._~

n

tii}

tiiiy

1ivy

A T

Wy
The principal line of business of the company shull be pro gngudmlmsrr:;f%bd
business support serviers, including but not limited to, proYiing ussisiunvce, dircelly
vr through third party service providers, in deal &mum}. dug (iligence,
procurement and analysix of relevant data for assess: &f busiﬂesc seniares and
preparation of data reports and scctor strategics, monile @5 I)F?usmcss veniures,
exit planning. and evaluation of liquidity stralcgies and # _’;'m!_ ar_fgr;m!;\ as. and
not 1o act a5 a financral consultant or an investment advisor. x"m;

e,

Except for 1he businesses meniional in sub-clause (iii) hereunder. tie company siwil
ehgage in all lawiul husinesses and shall be authorized to take all necessary sieps and

actions in connectitn therewith and anoilary therein,

Notwithstanding anvthing contamed in the foregoing sub-clauses of his clhuse
mithing contuined herein shall he construed as empowering the Company ro
undertake or indulge. directiv or indirectly in the business of a Banking Company,
Nen-Banking Finance Company (Mutual Fund Leasing, Invesiment Company.
Investment Adyvisor, Rea! Estae lnvesomem Trost Managemont Company, Honsing
Finance Company. Venture Capital Company. Discounting Services. Microfitatee
or Microcredit Business), Ipsurance Business, Modaraba Management Company.
Siock Brokerage Rusiness. Forex. Rea) Estate Business. Managing Agency. Business
of Providing the Services of Scourity Guards or any other Busincss restricred under
any law for the time beinyg in foree or as mmay be specificd by the Commission.

it is hereby undertaken shat the company shali not:

1) kogage wn oany of the business mentioned in sub-claose (i) above or any
unlawhul operation,

(b Launch Muhi-level Marketmg (MEM), Pyramud and Ponss Schemwes, or other
related activities businesses or any Lottery Business; or

tc) Engage in any of the permissible busincss unless the requisite approvil.
permission, consent or licence is ohtained from competent authority as may be
required under any law for the time being m force.

e



(AW e hatlity of the members is limited.

v, Fhe suthorized capital of the Company is Rs. 100.000:- (Rupees One Hundred Thousamd
only; divided into 10.000 (Ten Theusand) Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10-- (Hupees Ten) ench
with power to enhance. reduce ot consolidaie the share capital and to divide the shares of the
compuny into different classes and kinds subject o the provisions of the Companies Act.
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We. the several persons whase namcs and addresses are subseribed. are desirous of heing fermed iy
a Company. in pursuance of this Memorandum of Acsociation, and we respectivcly agree o take the
aunber of shares m the capital of the Company set opposite our respective nsmoes:

! Nam ured
Uit | iesetnl
& Formeroe il
ITL] Block
faiterss

Vil Resolaces
Aiddle Fas:
FZT.

thieagh it
authorized
representatie,
Fand Arshal
Alaxads

Fatd Ars'eel
Mazeod

Abahig] ey
Kiald

WNationaius
with
former

N alicany

i Uhmaed Arab
By

P Istan

Puhssani

Prsiany

N N o Fathers
ke nf Huashapd =
{aregner. Naume in fall
P:ﬁi[‘lmt Mo :
|
i
|
Rep Mo 12 | NA
FZE-t032
i !
] |
[
ERETI Asshad
3551103.7 Masaod
| 2. i Arshas
IREU03-T 1 Masood
£1101- Khalir bl
| WEO9-5

! Qceupation '
HiE

| Privare
1 i
| Comgmny

Busirsss

| Rusiness

| Busiss

!

Total number of shares te be trken

Dated this #3rd day of April, 2819
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2007 (XIX OF 2017)
(Private Conpuny Limited by Shares)
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

VITOL RESOURCES PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

PRELIMINARY

/"'
The remlaﬁom Lonﬁiiﬁ_éd t !abk ‘A" in the First Schedule 16 the Compenies Act,

20617 sMﬂ_wnm dmvly to ﬂrzp '({:am[_\nng. except insofar as they are repeated or contained
in thesé’ Amcl-eq " LA .1‘5

ts = L2
" ﬁfaere;:ﬂ;m .~'

,, By e
.;a
R 311 ) ll’n

(a)” thé “AG’HIL.!H‘; {hg. Companies Act. 201 7and any amcndment of re-
eracimenl 1hercof for the fime being in force:

(b) the “Articles” mean these Articles of Association, as originally framed or
as altered from time o tinke by the Company acting at a mesting:

(c) the "Board™ means the Board of Directors of the Campany:

td) the "Commission” means the Securities & Exclange Commission of

Pakistan constituted under Scction 3 of the Securities amd Fxchanpe
Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997;

(e} the “Company™ means Vitol Resources Pakistan (Prevatet Limited:

1f3 the “Seal™ mweans the common seal or official seal of the Company as the
casc nay be:

e

"8pecial Rusolution” has the meaning axsigned thereto by Section 2(15
(66) of the Act: and

thy *section” means section of the Act.

2 Uniess the context otherwise reguires, words or expressions contuined
these Asticles shall have the same mesning as in this Act: and werds
mwporting the singuiar shall include the plurad, and vice versa. and wonds
nporting the musculing pender shall include femimne, and words importing
persons shall include bodies corporate
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Q.

BIUSINESS

The directoes shall have regard ro the restnctivas on the commencemant of busing -
mpnsed by section 1% ifl and so far as. those restrictions are buhing upon the
Cyimpany,

SHARES

I case of shares in the physical form. every person whose name 1x cnicred 2t o
member in the register of members shall without pavment, he cntitled o recei o,
within thirty {(30) days after aounent or within fifteen {15) days of the sppheition Vo
registration of Lransfer, a certificate under the Seaf <pecifying the share or shares helil
by han and the amount paid up thereon,

Provided that if the shares are in book eatry form ar i case of convession of aliysival
shares and other transferable sccurities inte book-entry form, the (Company shll.
within ten (14 davs after ap application is madc for the registtation of the transfer of
amy shares or other securities 1o a coniral depository. register such lramla.r w he
namie of the central depesitory. “aAs

The Carmpany shall not be bound 1o issue more then one cp:min.an, in respect of &
share or shares in the physical furm. hetd jointly by several pirsgas snd delivery ol o
certificate for & shwre 10 onc of several feint holders shall be & ufficicn delivervio all.

1

If & shure certificate in physical form is defaced. lost or dest w,l iT-agay be rencw cd
on payment of such fec. if any, nol cxceeding one hundred rupbga. vad m: such Teenis,
iTany, as 10 evidence and indemnity and payment of expeniey, incurmed by the
Company in investiguing tide as the directors think fit, e

Except w the extent and in the manner aHowed by section %6, nio purt of the Tunds of
the Company shall be employed in the purchase of. or in loans upon the secarty vl
the Company s shares

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

The instrument of transfer of any share in phyticat form in the Company shall aq
executed both by the transteror ane transferce. and the transferor shall be deeined oo
remain holder of the share until the mme of the trunsferee ix entered :n the regisier al
members i respect ihereot.

Shares in physical form in the Company shall be transferred io the fellowang form. of
in amy usual or commaon form which the direciors shall upprove:

Form uf Transfer of Shares
(Fyvse Schednly ro the Companies Act, 2017)

| S e n el SO o v o oo T (hereinafier called “the transferm™ m
congideration of the sum o rapess L aad per me by srgee

S0 L 27 S (heremnafter called “the wransferce™). do
berehy transter fo the sad transferce. ... .. the share {or shares) with distingtive
numbers frem L Ll MY oo aans mehmive, n Vilol Resourees

Pakistan (Privarey Limged, o huld unie  the zaid transforec. bBis esecutors.
admisiserators and assipns. subject 1o the several conditions on which [ held the same
al the e of the excewtion bercol, and 1, the said tansferce, Jdo hereby apree o tehe
the said share tor shares) subject to the conditions aforesaid.

Aswimessourhandthis ... ... dayof ... e 20

//
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Bank Accouni Details of I'ransferee for Payment of Cash Dividend
{Mandatory in case of a listed company ot oplional for any other company)

It is requested that sll my cash dividend amounts declared by the company, may
becredited neo the fellowing bank account:

Tile of Bank Account !
Bank Account Number [
|
|

Bank's Narne
Bramch Name and Address

I
5 stated that the above mentioned informution is correct and that | will mtimare the
changes in the shovernentioned information te the company and the concerned Share
Repisitaras soon as these aceur.

Signature of the Transfereets)

Pl ‘.',‘?-.; ',. -

ty L Subiéel .ﬁﬁ;t_ﬁéf?mcnms conlained in Articles 11 and 12, the directors shall
% '_.&f;a ‘l_'cfuﬁ‘{:'"l“‘gﬁ‘.ﬂ 7 ‘“‘ any share unloss the transfer deed i¢ defeetive or invalid.

¢ > The* el ‘matzilso suspend the registration of transfers auring the ten
days stamedditgly preleding n general meeting or prior to the determination
N of‘*éntiﬂeihé‘ﬁ}.;ér ggdug. of the sharehiolders by giving seven daws’ presious
ix"ignm"i_c_c Wrtbg’mangerprovided in the Act, The directors may. in case of shares

B physical forpy decline to secognisce any instrument of ransfer unless

=
e

\

(#) A fué not exceeding fifty rupees as may be determined hy the directors is
patd 1 the Company in respect thereol: amd

{hy The duly stamped instrument of transfer is accompanied by the gertificare
of ile shares to which it relates. and such other svidence as the directors
may raasonabiv require to show the right of the transferer te make the
transfer.

th If the dircetors refuse to register u transfer of shares, they shall within fifteen
days atier the date on which the transfer died was lodged with the Company
send to the transferee and the transferor notice of the refusal indicating the
defect or malidity to the trans{erce, who shall, aficr removat of such defect
ar invalidity be entitled to re-lodge the wansfer deed with the Company,

Provided that the Commany shall, wheee the transferse is a central depository
the refusad shall be conveved within five days from the date on which the
instrument of transfer was lodged with it notify the defect or invalidity to the
transteree who shall, after the removal of such defect or invalidity, be entitied
io re-Jodge the transfer deed with the Company:.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

The executors, administrators. heirs, or nontinees. as the easc may be. of a deccased
sole holder of a share shall be the ealy persons recognised by the Company to deal
with the share in accardance with the law. In the casc of a share registered in the
nnnes of two (021 or more hofders. the survavors or survivor, of the sxventors or

L}
ok
1
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adnunisirators of the deceased sursivor, shall be the only persons tevopnised By 1h.
Company to deal with ils: share in accordance with the law,

The shargs or other <evurdics of 31 deceased member shall be transteried o
application duly supported by succession cortificate or by faw ful award, as the cast
may be, in favour of the successors th the extent of their interests and thar namoes
shall be entered us the register of menibers.

A persen may on acquiring mterest in the Company as member. represented
sharcs, at any dme afier acyuisilion of such interest deposit with the Company o
fipmtnation canferr:ng on 3 person. being the relatives of the member, namely. &
spouse. father, mother, brother, sister and son or daughier, the right 1o prous the
interest of the fegal heirs in the shares of the deceased in the vvent of ki degth. as o
trustee and o fuciliie the mansfer of shares 10 the legal heirs of the deceased subjec
10 sugcession to be derermined under the Tslamic Juw of inheritance and in wuse of
non=Muslim mambers, as per their rospoctive law

The person nominated wnder Asticlcl3 shall, after the death of the member. be
deemed us 4 member of Company 1ill the shures are transforred to the fecal Deies uad
il the deceased was a director of the Company, not being n bsted company, 1he
nominge shall also acr as director of thie Company to protect the intervst of the ol
heirs.

A person 10 be deemed as a member under Articles 12.13and 14 to a share by remson
of the death or insplvency of the holder shall be entitled te the same dridends and
other advantages ta which ke wauld he entitded f he were the registered holder of the
share and exercise any right conferred by membership in relation v moctings of the
Company

ALTERATION OF CAPITA J,___,_‘

A“u_’ . :..9,,'. .\‘

The Company may, by Special Resolution— .~ g 3

¥ B - ."

(a) increase ity authorised capital by such amwni as:‘ff' gqn}p?&pt.t&\,m

{bt consolidate and divide the whole or any part o!‘m 11151"., u.'aprui e shares of

farger amount than i1s cxasting shares: L G e
(cy sub-divide its shares. or any uf them, into shamwﬂef amoist than s fivad
by the memorandum:

td) cancel shares which. at the dite oi the passing of the resolution in that behalf.
have not been taken or agreed o he isken by any person, and diminish (he
amount of its share capital by the amount of the share so cancuelled

Subject 1o the provisions of the Act, all new shares shall at the first instance be
offered to such porsons us i the date of 1the offer are entitled fo such issue
pruportion, as nearly as the circumstances admit. to the amount of the existing, shares
o which they arc entitled. The offer shall be made by letier of offer specifying the
number of shares offered, and limiting 4 ime within which the niter, if not aceepicd.
will deem to be declined. snd afier the expiration of that ume, or on the recapt ol an
intimation from the person to whom the offer is made that be declines ta acceprt the
share offered. the dircetors may dispose of the same In such nunner as they think
mos! beneficial to the Company. The directors may likewise se dispose of any tew
shares which (hy reason of the rutio which the new shares bear o shares held by
persons entitled 1o an offer of new shares) canaot. in the opinion of the directors. be
eonveniendy affered under this Artiche,

/%
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Fhe pew shares shall be subjea to the same provisiens with reference 1o transter.
transmission und otherwise as 1the shares in the origimal share capital,

Fhe Company may, by Special Russlution, reduce iis share capital in any manner and
with. and subject to confirmation by the Conrt and any incident authoriced and
consent required. by law.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The statutory general meeting of the Company shall be held within the period
required by section 131

A general meeting, o he called annual general mocting, shall be held in uecordanes
with the provisions of scetion 132, within sixteen months from the dute of
meamoration of the Company and thereafler once at least in eveny vear within a
period of one humired snd twenty (120) days following the close of its finatca! year,

Al yencrul meesings of a Company nther than the stansory meeting or an annual
gemeral meeting mesioned in sections 133 and 132 respectively shall be cailed
extraerdinary general meetings.

I he dsrectars may. whenever they 1hink fit, call an extraordinany, general meetiug, anl

extsaurdinary yencral meetings shail also be called on such requisitiom, nr 1 defaull.

may be called by sgcirrppuigitionists. as provided hy xection 133, If at any time there

#re nof wit,hﬁi,.{ié "_“‘11 Wi directors capable of acting te foray a guorom, uav

disector of gt Co mpeRy Seall an extravrdinary general meeting in the same

TR ;lx’:sneargaﬁ' ‘é’b‘k af{lhhl in which meetings may be calied by the diraviors
R AR

U Do o @ EL "
The Coq‘i}:gny Tea¥ pevide videa-tink facility 16 s members for attending general
nReHng a:!\"@_laceg'%tber thiin gk fown in which general meeting is tuking place afte:

vonsidering e, ﬁﬁ'&phic_aliéispersal of its members:
‘.:L:‘ ';". B -

Provided thea iﬁ mémbers holding ten 110) percent of the total pand wp cupital or such
other percentage of the purd up capital as muy be specified, are resident in any other
iy, the Company shall provide the facility of videodink to such memburs for
attending annual gencral meeting of the Company, if s0 required by such members
wriling fo the Company st fenst seven (07) deys before the date of the mevt iy,

NOTICE AND PROCEEDINGS OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Twenty-one £21) days™ notice ut the least ¢exclusive of the day on which the notece 1
wrved or deemcd to be served, but mclusive of the day for which notice is givent
specifythy the place, the day and ihe hour of meeting and. in case of special business.
the peneral nature of that business. shall he given in manner provided by the Act for
the general meeting. 1o such persons as are. under the Act or the Artwles of the
Company, entitled to reeceive such notice from the Company: but the accidental
MISSin 10 gve notice to. or the non-receipt of notiee by, any member shall not
invalidaw: the proceedings at amy geueral meeting. Prewided that, if all members
entilled o attend and vote a1 any extraordinucy gereral maeting w0 agroe. a mesting
ners he betd ar s shorter perind

M| the business transacted at 3 general meeling shall be deemed speel othert than the

husmess stated in syb-section (v of suction |34 namely: the consideration of
tizancia! statements and the reponts of the Boanl and auditors. the declaration of ans
dividend, the election and appointmant of directors 1a place of those retming, and the
appointment of the auditors and tixing of their remuneration.

- 3.



23 N business shall be trunsacted al umy general meeting unless a quotunt of memners
is present at that lite when the meeting proceeds to business.  Vhe quorum of 1,
generak mecting shal) be two (02) members present personally, or through videa-imh
who represent not less then rwensy-five {23) percent of the total votmg power. either
of their OWT account or as proxics.

3X. IF within half an hour from the time sppointed for the meMing a quoram s not
proscmt. the mesting, if called upon e beguisition of members, shall be disselved: i
any other case, it shall swnd adiourned o the same day in the next week at the saine
ume amd phace. and, if as the adjeurned meeting 4 yuorum is net present within hadl
an hour from the time sppointed for the mesting. the members present, heing no less
than two (024, shalf be 2 quorum

19 The chairman of the Buurd, if ny, shall preside as chairman at exery gencrul mwzting
of the Company. but if there is no such chaimman, or if ar any meeting ke is nol
present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, or is unwilling
to act as chairman, any one of the directors present may be clecied to be chairman.
and if note of the dircelors is present, or willing to aci as chairman. the membees
present shall choose one of their number 1o be chairman,

30, The chairman may, with the consent of any meeting at which a yuorum s poesnr—s -
tand shall if so directed by the mecung), adjoumn the mecting from time to time bat mv
husimess shall be wansacted at any adjourned meeting other than e business hef)
unfinished at the meeting from which the adiournmens took place. When'a meeting &
adiourned for fifieen days ar more, notice of the adjourned meeting .\']!ii“ be givea ae
in the case of an original meeting, Save as aforesaid, it shall not be recessaryIdgne.
any notive of en adieurnment or of the business te be transacted at Wn ikd_ib'urged

.

-
.

meeting. Y ¢
\
3 ! ! \Hw‘""
11 Al any general mecting & resolution put 1o the vote of the meeating sital) he
decided on a show of hands unless a poll i (before or on the declaration o
the result of the show of kands demanded. Unless a polf is so demanded.
dheclaration by Lhe chairman thal a resalution has, on & shew of hands, been
carried, or carned unanimowsly, or by a pariicaelar majoriny, or Jost. and an
entry 10 that offect m the hook of the proccedings of the Compamy shall by
conelusive evalenee ol the fact, without proof uf the avmber or proporzion of
the vistes reevrded in favowr of. or apainst, that resolution.
{2) Ar uny penvred moecting, the Company shall lransact such businesses as oy
he notified by the Cenimission. only through postal baller,
iz A polf may be demanded only in accordance with the provisions of scetion 143,
EES 1M a poit is duly demanded, it shall e faken in accordance with the maoner lzad down
in secrions 144 and J45 and the resull of the pall shall be deemed e be the resvlutien
of the mecting at which the poll was demanded.
3. A poll demanded on the election of chamrman or on a question of adjowmment shall be
taken at once.
s In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hamds or om a poll. i

chairman of the meeting al which the show of hands takes place. or ot which the poll
is demanded. shail have and exercise 2 second or casting vote.
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41,

Fxcept for the businesses specified under sub-section {23 of section 134 w be
cinducted in the annual general meehing. the members of the Company, may pass &
resclution ¢ordinary or special) by circulation signed by all the members for the time
being cnutled 1o receive notice of a meeting. The resolution by circulation shail be
deemmed 1o be passed on the date of signing by the last of the signatery member o
such resolution.

YOTES OF MEMBERS

Subject w any rights or restrictions $or the time beiog attached fo any class or chasses
of shares, on a show of hands every member present in porson shall have one vore
exeepd for election of directors in which case the provisions of scction 159 shail
apply. On a poll every member shal! have voting rights as laid down in section 34,

In vise of joint-holders, the vote of their senior who tenders & vote, whether in person

or by proxy or through vulec-hink shall be accepted 1o the exclusion of the votes of

the other joint-holders: and for this purpose, seniority shull be determined by the
arder in which the names stand in the regisier of members.

A member of unsoond mind. or in respect of whom an order has heen mende by amy
vourt having urisdiction in lunucy. may vole, whether on show of hauds vr en # poli
vr shrouph video Hok. by his commitice or other legal guardian. and any such
vissmitiee or guandiun may. on g poll, vote by proxy.

ﬂ\cﬂ!‘hﬂ' personally or through video-link. by proxy or
Ih‘l‘otll_.?l poaml ballot 34 ERR |

£k fE
['rm:dgd {hal mhﬁy.}.m-pqﬁh shall vote by proxy as long as a resolotion of its
d,n.c'tor‘s..m axi‘oggi;nce \uﬂf i pruu-.mm of scetinn 138 is in force

T e, ™ < \" rd
-..‘_ i o
S =

t1) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the
appointer or of his sttemey duly autherised in writing.

2 The instrument appointing z proxy and the power-of-attorney or uther

authority (if any) under whick u s signed. or a notarially cestificd copy of

that power of authority, shall he deposited at the remstered office of the
Company nit less than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the
meating at which the person named in the instrument proposes (o vole and in
defanll 1the insirument of proxy shall not be treated as valid,

\n instrument appointing 4 proxy may be in the following form, vr a form as near
thureto us may be;

INSTRUMENT OF PROXY
Vitol Resources Pukistan (Private) Limited

[ AR .« SRR E LS 7 BT e being & member of Vital
Resources Pakistan {Private) Limited terehy
WP, L CLT O SR 7 D IR s my proxy to attend and
vole on my behalf a1 the (stautory, annual. exiraordinary, as the case may bej genaral
mwetmy of the company 1o be held vr the | davef o H and at any

sdjourniment thereol,”

/6
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A vole given in accordanee with the terms of an msatrument of proay shafl by valid
sorwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal of revocstion of ine
proxy or of the amhority soder which the prexy was excruted, or the transfoer of the

share in respect uf which the proxy s given, provided that no Setimation in writing of

such death, insanity, revocation or fransfer s aforcsasd shall have been received by
the Company at thw office before the cemmencement of the meehing of adjuusied
meeting at which the proxy is used.

DIRECTORS

Any person claiming 1o be eligible for ¢lection as a director of the (ampany, whether
he ix & retiring director or net, shall file with the Company. not later than fourteen
{ i4) days before the date of the general moehing at which directors are to be elected. u
notice that he being eligible intends to offer himseli for election us » director and
shall ogether with the notice deliver hix consent to act as a direvtor,

Subject to the provisions of seetion 154, the existing directors shall fix the number ot
dircclors to be elected in the general meering, no Jater than thirv-Tive (351 daws
before convening such meeting and the number of direciurs so lixcd shall not b
changed except with the prior approval of the general mecting in wiich clechon i 1o
be held. The directors shuil he ciected by the membery of the Company in penersl
meeting in the following manner:

a) a member shall have such mmber of vofes as is equal 10 the produce of 1he
number of voting shares heid by him and the number of dircctors 1o be
clected;

R

br a member may give i his votes o a smwlc.c.'n‘nd?&atc or ffl"ude them boweon

maore than one of the candidates in such ras he May choose' and

.“.: \1

=

[
Al
K]

s

shu.ll b declared 2lected
sﬁ;he ngﬂfhighcsl number of votes
@mbesaﬁfreetm to be elecid

v)  the candidote who gets the nghest oum
as directar and then the candidaee who g
shall be 5o deciared and so on umil the 10
has been <o clected.

The following shall be the first directors of the Company wha shall hold office uail
ithe olection of directors in the lirst urmual general meeting: '

(i) Farid Arstad Masoocd; and
{ii} Abdul Aziz Khalid

The remuneration of the directors chull from time to time be determined oy 1he
Company in gencral meeting subject to the provisions of the Act, The remuneration
of a direcior for performing extra services. including the holding of the oftice or
chairran, shall be determined by the Beard or the Company in general meeting. as
the case may be, in accordance with the provisions eontained herein The
remuReration to be paid to any director for attending the meetings of the Bourd or
rommitice of directors shall not exceed the scale approved by 1he Company or the
Board in gecordance with the provisions contained herein.

Suve as provided in sectien 153, no persen shall be appointed a5 2 tircctor unless he
iz a2 member of the Company.

[+
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POWERS AND DUTIES OF INRECTORS

The business of the Company shall be managed by the dircctors jointhy. by at Jeast
two {2} ditectors. who may pay all cxpenses incurred in promating and registering the
Company. and may exercise afl aueh powers of the Company ag are not by the Act or
any statntory modification thereof fir the 1ime being in force, or by these Articles.
required 1o be eXervised by the Company in general meeting, subject nevertheless 1o
the provisions of the Act or to any of these Articles. and such Articles being not
wmeonsistent with the aforesaid provisions, as may be prescribed by the Company in
general meeting but no Article made by the Company in general meering shaid
wivalidate any prior act of the directors which would have been valid 1 thay Article
had rot been made.

The directors shull appoint a chief execuiive in accordance with the provisinns of
mier alia sections 186 and 187,

The Board shall appoeint a company secrerary and the wrms of such appointment shafl
he determined by the Bound.

The dircctors shall duly comply with the provisions of the Act, ur any statutory
modification thereof fur the time being in force. and in particular with the provisions
i regard o the regisiration of the parhculars of mortgeges. charges and pledpe
affecung the property of the Company or creased by it to the keeping of u register of
the directors, ah&‘:fj‘lp yding Lo the regisirar of an anoual list of menbers. and a
AUNIMEryY n‘f mﬁxula;s{ﬂauug thereto and notice of any consoulidation or increase of
<hare capmﬂ’ or subsilivigion ot shares, and copics ol Special Reselutions and a copy

of the rr.éwlcréol ; 'Egs gnd notifications of any changes therein,
A ! ixv ‘:‘-3
YR TS SRR . MINLTE BOOKS

Fhe d.rrcrq@!im"}r_c‘mp‘ds 1o be kept and minutes to be made in book or hooks
with regard fok 2020 1

iy all resolotions and proccedings of gepneral mectingfsy and the meetingis) of
dircetors and Committeeis) of direcrors, and every member presont at any generad
nyeeting and vvery director present ai any meeting of directors or Committee of
ditectors shall put his signature in a book to be keps for that purpose:

ih} recording the namies of the persons present at each mecting of the directors snd af
any commitiec of the directors, and the general meeting: and

{¢1 uH orders made by the dircewors and Committee(s) of dircctors;

Provided that ull records related 1o procecdings through video-link shalt be
maintaincd in secordance with the rolevant regnlations specified by the Commussion
which shall be apprapriately rendered info writing as part of the mmute books
aceording to the said reguistions.

THE 8k Al

The Compuny shall have & comunon Seal as per section 23 and the directors shall
providi for the safe custody of the Seal and the Seal shall not be affixed 10 any
mstrument cxeepi by the authotiv of 4 resofution of the Board or hy a committer of
dircetors authorised in that behall by the directors and in the presence of st keast one
1 director and'or of the company secrelury or such other person as the directoes
sty appoint for the purpose: and that director of company scerctary or ether person

L8,
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tas the case may bel 45 afivcsad shall <igo every nstrument o which tne Seat is
affined i their presenve.

Fhe Company may also have an official Seal for use outside Pakistn in accordiame:
with section 203, Accordingly. the Company may, by writing under iss cammon sval.
authorise any person appointed lor the purpose in any territory mil situale in Pakisran
10 affiy the same to any deed or other docuinent o which the Company 15 parfy ¥n i
termtory,

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTQRS

Nu person shali become the director of the Company if he sulfers from any of the
disabilities or disquuiifications mentioned in section 153 or disqualificd or deharred
irom holding such office under any o’ the pravisions of the Act us the case muy be
andd, if already a direvtor, shall coaxe 10 hold such office from the date he so hecomes
disqualified or disabled:

Provided, however, that no dirceior shall vacate his office by raason enly of his being
a awmber of any company which has emered into contracts with. or done any wirk

for. the company of which he is dircctor, bul such dircetor shalt nor voie in respect of’

any such contract or work, and if e does 50 vote. his vote shall nex be counted.
PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The directors may meel together fin the dispatch of busincss, udpoum amd othorwaise
regulate their meeiings. as Lhey think it A dircctor may, and It;g"“xf*fémw on the
requisition of 2 director shall. at anyv tine, summon a mm.tmg G iFceurs. “Nplicy
sent to a director through ermail \\hcih:r such direcior 15 i I?1k1=tem or outside
Pakistan shall be & valid notice.

The directors msy clect a chatrmman of theor mestings and di.m.nmnc the penod lm
which he is 1o kold office: bul, if no sech chairman is clectadsotil al- -any mpeting tiv
chairman is not present within ten mimates after the time upfiqmml for holiting thy
same or is unwilling to act as chairman. the directors present may shgme oie pflhen
number te be chaitman of the meeting. e

Ar feast one-third 11:3™) of the toral number of directors or two (D23 directors
whichever s higher, for the fime hemg of the Company, present personaliy or throuet
video-link, shall constitute a guonim

Save ax otherwise exprossly provaded in dhe Act, overy guestion a6 meetings of the
Board shall be determined by a majonity of vores of the directors” present in parson of
through video-hink. each dircetor having one vote. [0 case of an egselity of sotes or
tie, the chairman shall have a casting vote in addition to his sriginal Lote ax s director

The dirccrors may delomie amy of thor powers nol Tequareel o he exererad m e
mecting o coramitices consisting of such member or members of their body as they
think fit: any comemittee so formed shall. in the exercise of the powers so dolegated
vonform to any resinetions that may be imposed on them by the directors.

i A committee may cleet a chairman of fts meetings: but, & no such Chairman
is elected. or it at any mesating the chamwman is nol present withen fon minotes
after the time appennted for holding the same or is unwilling 1w act 2
chairman. the membsrs presens may choose one of their number 10 by
charman ol the mepting

- 10-
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24 A committes may meet and adiowrn as it thinks proper. Questions arising as
any meeting shall be determined by r majority of votes of the members
present. [n case of an cqualily of veotes. the chairman shall have and exercise
2 secand or casting vole.

Al acts done by any mecting of the directors of of 4 committee of directors, or hy am
petsast auting as o divegior, shall. aotwithsiamling that it be afterwards discovered thar
thetg was some dclect in the appoinument of any such directors or persons acling as
aforesaid, or thar they or any of them were disqualified. be as valid as if every sich
person had been duly appoineed and was quehificd 1o be a disecior.

4 vopy of the drafl minnes of meding of the Board shall be fumished to every
director within fourteen (14 jwaorking days of the daie of meeting.

A resplution in writing signed by all the ditectors for the time being entitled o
receive aotice ol 3 mesting of the directars shall be as valid and sffeelus! as it it had
heen passed at a meeting of the diccetors duly convened and heldd,

Subject 1o the provisions of the Aot the dircetors may, directhy or wmadectly, enta
mto contract with the Company and even heing inleresied in the business ean after
uisclusing the facts aiend and discuss and vote at megting of the Borrd pn the subject
and can be inchided while counting the guornm at the meeting,

FILLING OF VACANCIES

e

"N
Al the Tipst) n{mn‘ﬂ: | meeting of the Company. all the directors shall stanc
rehred f'er' et an,! ﬁman shall be elected in their place in accordinee with
-.L..nnn 159 f’#* LA

4

1"!

A d:re,cmr ‘ﬁmt&d lyfdgf sectiong 159 or 162 shall hold office for a peried of three
(03 v;a;s unlps,n- Rt oiefier resigns. vacates mifice duc to fresh election roquired unde:
‘h.nunn\lé"' as ll;p-» pgse may be. becomes disquulificd from being o director or

u!hr.nws‘c..feagas ggaﬁa&ld Blfice,

'W-._,“"-v_...-r,,

A renring director shall be chiphic for re-election.

The directars shutl comply with the privvis:ons of sections 154 o 159 and sections
161, 162 and 167 relating 1w the election of divectors and maiiers ancillary thereto,

ny casual vacancy vccurring on the Board may be (illed up by the dircclors, tat the
peesan 50 chosen shall be subject 1o retirement at th2 same timme 2x if he had become
director on the day en which the director in whoxe place he 15 chosen wis tast elected
as dircetor.

The Company may remove 2 dircetor but only i aceordance with the provisions of
weciion 163 ol the Act.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Any director nol permunenily resident 1o Pukisran and any dircctor so residem b
intending 1o he absent there from for a period of not fess than pinetv (904 duyvs may
appoIng any person aceeptable ro the Board 1o be an alternate director of the Compuny,
1o agt fir him, Every such sppoimtment shall be by writing under the band of the
Director making the appoiniment. An alterpate dircetor so appointed shull mot be
cntitled to appoint another aliermaty director, bat shall otherwise be siyect to the
provisions of these Articles with regard to Direetors, exeepl that he shall require no
share qualification. An abormate director shall be entitled te receine notice of b

R
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meehipgs of the Board and 1o aweod and vt vy o Pirector ar any such mesting at
which the Dircetor appointing hiny 5 not personally present, snd generally to periorme
uli the funciions of his appointor as Director in the abscence ot such appointor, An
ahemate director shall ipso facio cense 10 be an alternate director if his appointor 1er
any Teason ceases 10 be a Director or if and when his appomtor rerurns to Pakistan o
remmoves the appointee from office by notice i writing under the huand of the
ApTRHNtor,

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVE

The Company in general meeting may declare dividendds but ne dividend shall exceed
the amouni secotnmended by the direcrors,

The directors may from time to hme pay to the members such interim dividemsds 1.
appear to the directors w be justificd by the profits of the Company

Any dividend may be paid by the Company either in cush or in knd only om of us
profits, ‘Fhe payment ot dividend in kind shall only be in the shape of shares of fiawed
company held by the distributing company.

Dividend shall ot be puid out of unreahsed gain on investment property credit w
prafit and loss account,

Subijcct to the rights of persons (if any) entitled 1o shares with special rights as 10
dividends, all dividends shail be declared and paid wecording 1o the ameanis paid on
the shares,

- —

ot ol alie

th) The directors may, hefore recommending any dividend, set ay
profits of the Company such sums as they think prope:
reserves which shall, at the discraion of the dircetors.
meeting contingencics, or fur vyualizing dividends. or for §
to which the profits of the Company may be properly applizd: anﬂ - peny mg
such appiication may. at the like diseretion, ather hc‘cmplnwﬂ 7w
business of Company of be invested in such investments mt}t@r‘ than shares of
the Company} as the directors may, subject 10 the provisions 9fghe Act. from
sime to time think M. SR

o Aplicabic tor

124 The directors may carry forward any profits which they may think prudem
Dot fo distribute, without scuing them aside as a resorve.

IT several persons are registered as joint-helders of any share. any one of themt mn
give effectual receipt for any dividend payuble on the share,

i Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given in maner
hercinafier mentioned 1o the persons eniitled to share therein.

{24 Any dividend declared by the Company shall be paid to s repistered
shareholders or w their order. The dividend payable in cash may be pmd I
cheyue or warrant o in any electronic mode to the sharcholders entithed to
the payment of the dividend. as per their dircction.

The dividend shall be paid within the period laid dovwn under the Act

e PESEEVE WM
ny 3 Wp ar

bl
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ACCOUNTS

Ehe direciors shutl cause 10 be kepl proper books of account as required uder section
A2,

Fhee books of account shall be kept a1 the registered office of the Company or at suck
other place as the dirgctors shatll think it and shall he vpen 1o fuspection by the
directors during business hours,

The directers shall from time o time determine whether and to whitt extenl and @
what time and places and under what conditions or regulations the accounis and
books ur papers of the Company or any of them shall be open o 1he inspection of
members not being directors. und ne member (not being a director: shall have am
right of inspecting any accoum 1 and book or papers of the Company excepe as
vonferred by law or authorised by the directors or by the Compsny in gencral
meating.

The directors shall. as reguired by sections 223 and 226, cause te be prepared and
he laid before the Company in general meeting the financial sistoments duly audited
and reports as are referred tu in those seetions.

The financial statements and other reports referred 1o in Asticle 87 shall be made ow
wocvery year and laid before the Company in the annual general mzeting in
sevardance with sections 132 and 223.

. 07._—_;1'::-...‘ i )
A cup¥ .u!’:'th'e_‘i“ : | statements and reports of directors and avditors shall, at least
hwentvone dads p 2ng the mecting. he sent to the persons entitled to receive
niities Qf‘gcﬁ%&!’meéﬁﬂ s in the manner in which nottees are tr be ginven hereunder
T L -
b e aia mLNY L N . .
The difyeides ufhdl!ﬁ}l al?;_»"pcct comply with the provisions of sections 220 and 237
/4
= i S
- . -y ¥
. e Z AUDIT
TR A

Subyt 1o the provisions of section 246, the first avdstoris) of the Company shall be
appornted by the Board within ninety (90) days of the dste of incomporation of the
Company; and the auditor or suditors so appointed shall retire on e conclusion of
the first annuai general meeting, The subsequent auditor or awditors shall be
appointed by the Company in the annual general meeting on the recommendation of
the Board afier obtaining consent of the proposed auditors. a novice shall be given to
1he members with the notice of general meeting. The auditor or avdiers so appointed
shull retive on the conclusion of the next annual general meating.

The duties of the auditors shall be regulated in accordance with section 249,

NOTICES

il A notice may be given by the Company to uny member 1o hus registered
address of if he has no registered address i Pakistan 1o the address, it any.
supplicd by him to the Company for the giving of notices to him against an
acknowledgement or by post or courier service or throwgh clectronic means
or in any other manner as may be specified by the Commigsion,

- 13-
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£2) Where a motice 15 sent by post, service ol the notiee shall be decied 1o by
effected by properly addressing. propaying and posting a ftter containing Hiw
nolwe snyd, unless the conirary 3 proved. to fiave been clfecied at the ime o
which the letter will be dehivered in the ordinury course of post.

A notice may by mven by the Compam to the joim-bolders of u share by giveng “he
notice tex the joint-holder named firsd in the register ty respeet of the share,

A mtice may be given by the Company o the person entitled to a share v
consequence of the death or insolvency of 2 member in the manner provided under
Article94 addressed tu them by name. or by the title or representatives of the
decensed. or assignees of the insolvent, or by any like description, a1 the address.
supplicd for the purpose by the person claiming to he xo caritled.

Notice of every gencra! meeting shal) be given in the minner heremnbetore authorised
10 (w) every member of the Compuny and also to (b} every person entitled 16 a share
in consequence of the death or insolvency of 2 member, who but for his death o
insofvency would be entitled o reveive notice of the meeting. and (c) to the anditors
of the Conrpany for the time being and every person who is entitled e reveive notiee
of geacral meetings.

SECRECY

Every Director. Chicl’ Exeeminve. manager. auditor. trustee, member of a comnnitiee.
officer. servant, sgenl. accovniant or other person emploved s the business of the
Compny shall, if so required by the Bourd hefore entering ngun:-‘rih-duugs‘ sl o
declaration in the furm appm»ul by the Board pledging l‘uﬁmlf 1" bk ginict
seerecy respecting all ansactions of the Company, its cusiomers and tha stafénponts
of accounts with mdividuals and 1n matters relating theresis and ~halt by declamition
pledge himself not 1o raveal any uf the matters which coftgite higknowledgs inthe
dischuege of Iy duties excepr when required so to do by tht Board: :gtr.pv.nnv General
Meeting, or by a court of s, amd except as far as mav\bg_ neCRENATY. h arider h
vamply with any provisions io these pregents contained.

WINDING CP

3 In the case of members” voluntary winding up, with the sanction of 3 Spes fal
Rexolution of the Company. and. in the case of creditors® valaary winding
up, of 2 meeting of the creditors. the liguiditor shall excrerse amy of the
powers given by sub-section ¢ 5 of section 337 10 a liguidator m a2 wondmy up
by the Court including sver alfia divide amongst the members. in specic o
kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Company. whether thay
consist of propenty o the same kind or not.’

{2 For the purpose aforesaid the liguidator misy sct siseh value as e deems tair
upon any property to be divided as aforesand and may determine how such
division shall be carried out us between the members or different classes o
members,

134 The lrguidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of sisch
assels In frusiees upoa such trusts for the benefit of the comtribatories as tre
tiguidatar, with the iike sanciion, thinks fis. but so that no member shall he
compelled 10 secept any shaves or other securvies whoreon thers w am
tability

- 14
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INBEMMTY

Every director, chief executive. wuditor or other officer or servant of the Company.,
shll be sindestmified out of the funds of the Company against any Hability meurred by
himy, as such director, chicl’ cxecutive, anditor, or other office or servant of rhe
Company in defending any procecdings., whether civil or criminal. in which
fdgement is given in his fevour or in which he is acquitted, or in connection with amy
application under section 492 in which relief is grunted to him by the Conrt.

Faery director, chiel exceutive, auditor, or olher officer or servamt of the Company
will be Hable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other disector or officer
o Tor joining in any receipt or other act for conformity, or for any loss or expense
happening to the Company through the insufficicney or deficiency of ttic ro any
properly acquired by order of the directors, chief executive, auditor or other uiticer or
servant of Company, for or on behall of the Company, ot for the msufficiency or
defiviency of any security in or upon which any of the meneys of the ('ompany shall
be invested, or for any loss or damuge arismg from the bankruptey. insolvency or
tortngus act of any porson with whom any moncys, securities or ofTests shall be
depasited, or for any loss oceaswned by an error of judgement or oversight sn his
part, or for any other loss. damage or misforiune whatever which sha!l huppen in the
excention of the duties of his office or in relation thercto, unfess the same happers
ihrough his own dishonesfy




We the several persons whose names and addiesses are subseribed below, are desimous of
in pursuancs of these articles of association. and we

being formed into a company,

respectively agree to take the aumber of shares in the capital of the Company ¢t opposite ooy

respective names:
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VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE
Director’s Report

The director submits his report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Results

Loss for the year amounted to US § 13,144/-.

Review of the busimess

The company is registered to carry out the business ectivities of trading in crergy related
products.

During the year, the company has not commenced any trade or commercial activities.
Events since the end of the year

There were no important events, which have occurred since the year-end that materially
affects the company.

Shareholder and its interest

The sharcholder, as et 31 December 2018 and its interest, as at that date, in the sharc capital
of the company, was as follows:

Countryof Ne.of
incorporation shares AEDR 2 USS

Vitol Dubai Limited
(Represented by Mr. Stephen Cornelic) U.AE. LOOO 150,000 40,839

Auditors

A resolution to appoint / re-appoint the auditoss of the company and fix their remuneration
will be put to board at the annual general meeting.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Directors of
VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VITOL RESOURCES
MIDDLE EAST FZE (The “Company”), which comprises of the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and nofes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory
notes.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial
position of the company as of 31 December 2018 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of mattey:

Without qualifying our conclusion above, we draw aitention to note 2b to these financial
statements which states that these financial statements have been prepared on a going concem
basis. However, in view of the accumulated losses of US $ 84,513/ and the deficiency of
equity funds of US $ 43,674/, the continuance of the business as a going concern is
dependent upon the company’s ability to commence the business and commercial operations,
1o generate the profits and the continuous financial support from the sole shareholder of the

company.
Basis for Opinien

We conducted our eudit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the. ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UAE, and we heve fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with thesa requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Q ho. 1304, tegal Tower Opposite W Mariot Marquis TR
Bussiness Bay, P.C. Box: 30380 Duabi, UAE.
O+97145148248, O +97145148252

'|':”'“".-' "'?:'“‘."G‘Q.é".u._




A 5
MIDDLE EAST

- AUDITING o
Chartered Accountonts
PAGE 3

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of
VITOL RESQURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE (conthnued)

Other Information

Management is resporisible for the other information, Other information comprises the
director’s report, which we obtalried prior to the date of this auditor’s report, The other
information does not include the financia! statcments and our anditor's report therean.

Our opinior on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we concluded that
there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to repott that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with [nternational Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material missiatement, whether due 16 fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ebility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern end using the going concern basis of accounting unless manegement cither
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance arc responsible for overseeing the Company's finencial
reporting process,

Auditors’ Respousibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as &
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not 2 guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect 2
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregste, they could reasonably be expected to
influerice the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE
(Incorporated in the Emirate of Fujairah, U.A.E.)
(Registration No, 12-FZE-1032)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2018

1.
a)

b)

)

2.

%)

b)

)

Legal status and business activity

VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE (“The Company™) is a limited liability
fres zone company registered with Fujairah Free Zone Authority, Pujairah, U.A.E.
under commercial license no, 2963 issued on 1 March 2012.

The company is registered to carry out the bmi:;macﬁviﬁesofmdingmmy
related products. During the year, the company has not commenced any business or
commercial ectivitles,

The company has not yet opened anybankaacoumiﬁ the name ofth; company. All
banking iransactions are routed through the bank account of the sole sharchelder of
the company.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements arc prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board (TASB) and which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 and the implementing rules and rogulations of Fujairah Free Zone
Authority.

Going concern basis

These financia! statements have been prepased on a going comeern basis, which
assume that the company will continue to operate as a going concem for a foreseeable
future. The statemneat of financial position as of 31 December 2018 shows
accumuisated losses of US § 84,513/- and deficiency of equity funds of US $ 43,674/~
The sole shareholder of the company hes agreed to commence the business and
commercial operations of the company and they shall continue supporting the
company financially thereby ensuring that the company ¢an meet its liabilities as and
when they fall due,

Basis of measuremtent

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost. Historicel cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of wheiher that price i3 directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or 2 liability, the company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or lisbility if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.
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YITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2018

d)  Fuactional and presentation currency

These financiel statements are presented in United States Dollars, which is the
company’s functional and presentation currency,

3.  Useofestimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management t¢ make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amonnts of assets, labilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are révised
and in any future periods affected,

The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

Impairmerd

At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of investment property
and all financial asseis to determine whether there are any indications that they may
be impaired. In the absence of such indications, ro further action is taken. If such
indications do exist, an analysis of cach asset is undertaken to determine its net
recoverable amount and, if this is below its camrying amount, a provision is made. In
the case of loans and receivables, if an amount is deemed irrecoverable, it is written

off to Statement of comprehensive income or, if previously a provision wes made, ft is
written off against the provision.

Reversals of provisions against loans and receivables are made to the extent of the
related amounts being recovered,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the firture, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty and assumptions at the reporting date, that have significant risk of causing
84 material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, are discussed below,
Impairment
Assessments of net recoverable amounts of all financial assets other then loans and

receivables are based on assumptions regarding fiture cash flows expected to be
reccived from the related assets,
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VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
JSor the year ended 31 December 2018

4.

a)

b)

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards

New and revised Internationsal Finaneial Reportiag Standards

The following International Financial Reporting Standards, smendments thereto and
interprefations issued by [ASB that became effective for the current reporting period
and which are applicable to the company are as follows:

IFRS 9 —Financiel Instruments

IFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with customers

Clarifieations to IFRS 15 ~ Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRIC Interpretation 22 - Foreign Cumrency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

Amendments to IAS 40 - Transfers of Invesiment Property

¢ Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of’ Share-based Payment
Transactions

* Amendments to IFRS 4 — Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

®» Amecndments o IFRS 1 and JAS 28 as per annual improvements to IFRS

standards 2014-16 cycle

During the current year, the management has adopted the above standards and
amendments to the extent applicable to them from the financial reporting period
commencing on or after 1 fanuary 2018.

The significant impacts of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and other amendments as listed above on
the amounts reported and their presentation are disclosed wherever applicable are
disclosed in notes to these financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards fssued but not effective

e IFRS 16 — Leases — The effective date of the standard is set for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019,

e IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts — The effective date of the standard is set for
annua) periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021,

e [FRIC 23 - uncertainty of Income Tax Position — The effective date of the
interpretation is set for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019,

* Amendments to IFRS 9 - Prepayment features with negative compensation. The
effective date of the amendment is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019,

o  Amendments to [AS 28 — Long term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures.
The effective date of the amendment is set for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019,

&+ Amendments to IFRS — Annual improvemeats to IFRS Standards 2015-17 Cycle.

& 9 & 2
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VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2013

International Financial Reporting Standards issued but not effective (continued)

*  Amendments to TAS 19 — Plan amendments, curtailments or settlements. The
effective date of the amendment is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019,

¢ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or contribution of asseis between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. These amendments will spply when
they become effective.

The company has not carly adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

5.  Sigoificant accounting policies

a) Finaneclal instruments
Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilitics
are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly
altributable in relation fo financial assets and financial lisbilities, other than those
carricd at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fhir value on initial
recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent meesureirient, financial assets are classified as follows:

» Financial assets at emortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incame with recycling
of cumulative gains and losses {debt instruments)

« Pinancial assets designated at fhir value through other comprehensive income with
no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition {equity
Instruments})

¢ Financial asscts at fair value theough profit or loss

During the year, the company has financial instroments in the form of depsoits and
other receivables only.

Derecognition of financial assess and financial Babilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lisbility is
discharped or cancelled or expires.
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VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2018

b)

<)

d)

Offsetting of financial instramenis

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reported in the
statemnent of financial positlon, Iif there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, fo realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Foreign curreacy transactions

Transactions in foreign cumrencics are converted into United States Dollars &t the rate
of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction. Asssts and liabilities expressed in
foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars at the rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date. Resulting galns or losses arising from the foreign currency
transactions are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.,

For trade receivables and other current assets, the Company applies a simplified
approach in caleulating expected credit losses. The Company does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit
losses at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Other receivables

Receivables are carried at the original invoice amount to the customers, An estimate is
made for doubtlul receivables based on a periodic review of ail amounts. Bad debts
are written off when identified.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence
that & financial asset or a group of financizl assets is impaired. Financial asset together
with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the

company.

If thets Is objective evidence that an impalrment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the financial assets carrying amount
arkl the present value of estimated future cash flows.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the carrying amount is reduced through
the usc of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited o the Statememt of
Cofnprehensive Income.

by
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VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2018

©)

b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether thers Is an indication that a non-
financial asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

Where the camying amount of an asset or cash generating units exceeds iis
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down fo its
recoverable amount,

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of
comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the fimction of the
impaired asset.

A previously recognized impaimment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recovergble amount since the last
impairment Joss was recognized. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of
comprehensive income.

Accrual

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid for services received, whether
invoiced by the supplier or not,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company bas a legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation &t the end of the reporting period, using a rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation.

When some or all the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected 1o
be recovered from a third party, a recelvable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually
certain that rcimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be
measured reliably.

Contingeneles

Contingent ligbilities are not recognized in the financlal siatements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits i5 remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2018

)

Leases

A lease is classified as & finance iease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership and the
lease payments are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight

line basis over the period of lease.
The Compuny as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-Tine besis over
the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

2018 2017
/A% ] Uss
Share capital
1,000 shares of AED 150 each
(converted @ US § | =3.673} 40839 40833
Shareholder’s current account ’
Balance at the beginning of the year 44,685 26,987
Changes during the year (ne:) 1995 17698
Balance at the end of the year 46680 44,685

' Represewss the cwrvent accowm balance of the sole shareholder of the company
{also refer nowe 1 ().

Financial instruments: Credit, interest rate, liquidity and exchange
rate risk exposures

The company has exposure 10 the following risks from jts use financial instruments;

a) Credit risk
b) Market risk
¢) Ligquidity risk

Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially éxpose the company to concentrations of credit
risk comprise principally of trade receivable and bank baiance in a current account,
Trade receivable

There is no significant concentration of credit risk from any trade receivables within
or outside U.A.E. and outside the industry in which the compeny operates,
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VITOL RESOURCES MIDDLE EAST FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2018

Bank balance
The company does not have any bank balances,
by  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as exchange rate risk, interest
rate risk or other price risk, which will affect the company’s income ot the value of its
holding of financial instruments.

Interest rate risk
In absence of any bank deposits and borrowings, the interest rate risk is minimal,

Exchange rate risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and
financial liabilities are denominated in US Dollars or U.A.E. Ditham or to which the US
Dollar is fixed.

¢)  Liquidily risk
Accruals are not perceived as a liquidity risk by the management.
9.  Financial instrumentis: Fair values

The fair values of the company's financial asset comprises of other receivables and
financial lizbility comprising of accruals that approximate to their carrying values.

10. Contingent liability
There was no significant Liability, contingent in naturs, as of the reporting date.
11. Comparative figures

The previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to
conform to the presentation of the current year.
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Dl Vitol Dubai Limited

Leval 5, Precinct Bulkding 2, Gate Precinct
Dubal international Financial Centre
POBox 506514, Dubal, UAE

Tel: +971 4 278 2500

VITOL DUBAI LIMITED Fax: 4571 4 363 7467

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Year ended 31 December 2018

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors heve pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited separate financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Imcorporation and registered office

Vitol Dubai Limited (*the Company™) was incorporated as a company limited by shares under DIFC Law
No. 2 of 2009 (amended to DIFC Law No. 5 of 2018) on 26 January 2006. It is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Vitol Holding SARL, a company registered in Geneva, The registered address of the Company is Unit
502B, Level 5, Gate Precinct Building 2, Gate Precinct, P.O. Box 506514, Dubai International Financial
Centre, United Arab Emirates.

Principal activities
The principal activity during the financial year was that of acting as a Management Office and-trading in
crude oil and petroleum products.

Results and appropristions
The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the attached financial

statements.

Directors

The Directors throughout the year were:
Mz, Christopher Paul Bake
Mr. Stephen Cornelio

Mr. Isa Ahmed Abdulrahim
Mr. Farid Arshad Masood

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of

Stephen Cornelio

lmrﬁ“?ll.lL 2019
Dubai

'{"-



Ernst & Yeung Tet +97) 4332 4000

EY P} Box G267 Fax; +971 4 332 4004
28ih Flaor, Al Saqr Business Tover tubaiPae gy.com
Shelkh Zayed Raad ey.cumimena

;,':.",',‘!J.':g:},’.ﬁﬁ“’ Oubai, United Arab Emirates

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
VITOL DUBAI LIMITED

Report on the separate financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the separate financial statements of Vitol Dubai Limited (the “Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the separate financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRSs").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor 's responsibilities for the
qudit of the separate financial statements section of our report. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
shareholder of the Company (as a body), for our audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “TESBA,
Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Dubai International Financial Centre (“DIFC™), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

Responsibilities of management and shareholder for the separate financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Law
pursuant to DIFC Law No. 5 of 2018, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matexial

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mstters related o
going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting vnless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

A mairhe 30 1 £+t B Runy Glxba tavard
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
VITOL DUBAI LIMITED (continued)

Report on the separate financial statements (continued)

Auditors ‘responsibility for the audit of the separate Sfinancial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a matetial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
megterial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism thronghout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevmto&)eauditinordcrtodesignaudit
pmceduresMmappmpﬁmiumedmmswncw,bmnotﬁrmcpurposcofexpmsingan
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Ifweconcludethatamawﬁaluncerlaintyaxism,wemrequired
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Separate financial statemnents,
including the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.,

We communicate with shareholder regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.



Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

1 ACTIVITIES

Vitol Dubai Limited ("the Company”) was incorporated as a campany limited by shaves under Companies Law, DIFC
Law No. 2 of 2009 (amended to DIFC Law No. 5 of 2018) on 26 January 2006. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of

Vitol Holding SARL {the Parent Company), a company registered in Geneva,

The registered address of the Company is Unit 502B, Level 5, Gate Precinct Building 2, Gate Precinct, P.O. Box
506514, Dubai Infernational Financial Centre, United Arab Emirates and acts as a managemvent office and trading in

crude oil and petroleum products.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Internarional Financial Reporting Standards issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and applicable requirements of the Companies Law pursuant to
DIFC Law No. 5 of 2018,

The Parent Company prepares consofidated financial statements incorporating the assets, liabilities and activities of
the Company and its subsidisries in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. Tha consolidared
financial statements of the Parent Company are available at PO Box 384, Geneva 4, Switzerland.

Basis of preparation
The separate financial statemeats have been preseated in US Dollar which is also the functional currency of the

Company.
The separate financial statements are prepared under the histaric cost convention.

New and revised Accounting Standards, interpreeations and Amendmanty

The Company applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | Jamuary 2018, The Company has not sarly adopted eny other standard, interpretation or
amendmen that has been issued but is not yet effective.

IFRS 9 Financisl Instruments: Classification and Measurement, impairment and hedge accounting;

IFRS 15 Revenue firom Contracts with Customers;

Amendments to [FRS 2 Classification and msasarement of Share-based Payment Transactions;
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfars of Investment Property;

[FRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transsctions and Advance Considerations;
Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring investees

at fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-investment choice;
Amendments to IFRS ¢ Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts;

¢« Amendments to IFRS ] First-time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards - Defetion of short-
ferm exemptions for first-time adopers

The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of JFRS 9 and IFRS 5 are described below. The other
amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have an impact on the financial statements
of the Company.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces [AS 39 Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement for annugl

periods beginning on or afer 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for Enancial
instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge acoounting.

The Compeny adopted IFRS 9 with an initial application date of | Januery 2013. The Compaay has not restated the
comparative information, which continues to be reperted under TAS 39,

There is no effect of adopting [FRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 as the Company doesn’t have receivables balances as of
year-end.

55



Vitol Dubai Limited
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

P SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
New and revised Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments {coatinued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracis with Customers

IFRS 13 supersedes [AS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies, with
limited exceptions, to all reverue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to
account far revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for trasferring goods or services to &

CLESEOTYHEL:,

IFRS 13 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration el of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to cantracts with their customers. The standard 2lso specifies the accounting
for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

The Company adopted IFRS 15 with an initia! application date of | January 2018. The Company has ot restated the
comparative infarmsation, which continues to be reported under IAS I8,

Based on management’s assessment of the contractual arrangements with customers, the adaption of IFRS 15 doesn™t
have any impact on the financinl statements of the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards end inferpretations that are issued as listed below, but not yet effective, up to the
date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company is currently assessing the
impact of these standards on the future financial statements and intends to adopt these new and amended standards,

if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (the effective date
and IAS has been deferred indefinitely, but an entity that early adopis the amendments must apply them
28 prospectively);

IFRS 16 Leases: Lessees required to recognise a lease liability for the obligation to meke lease payments and a
right-of-use asset for the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). Refer details below;

IFRS 17  Insurance Contracts (effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021);

IFRS9  Prepayment Features with Negative Compenzation (amendments should be applied retrospectively and
are effective from | January 2019, with earfier application permitted);

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (amendments are effective from 1 January 2019, with earfier
application permitted);

1AS 238 Long-term interests in 2ssociates and joint ventures (amendments are effective from I January 2019, with
earlier application permitted);

Annvual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle: (issued in Decsmber 2016}
= IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treament

Anmia! Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle: (issued in December 2017)
- TFRS 3 Business Combinations
- IFRS 11 Joint Asrangements
- IAS 12 Income Taxes
« IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

IFRS L6 Leases
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 end it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Armangement

confains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Bvalusting the Substnce of Transactions
[nvolving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all lenses under a single on-balance sheet model similar
to the accounting for financs leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of "low-value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term Jeases (i.e., leases with a kease term of 12 manths
or 1ess). At the commencement date of a lease, 2 [essee will recognize a Kability to make lease paymenis (i.e,, the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset ditring the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease fiability end the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

10



Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coatinued)

New and revised Accounting Standards, Interpretations and Amendments (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continaed)
Lessees will be aiso required to remeasure the lease linbility upon the oecurenee of certain events (e.g., a change in

the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from  change in an index or rate used to defermine those
payments). The iessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the Jease liability as &n adjustment

to the right-nf-use asset.

Lessor accowiting under [FRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under IAS 17. Lassors will
continue to classify all isases using the same classification principle as in 1AS 17 and distinguish between two Types

of leases: operuting and finance leases,

IFRS 16, which is effective for annal periods beginning on or afier | January 2019, requires lessees and lessoes to
make more extensive disclosures than under IAS (7,

Impact assessment of IERS 16 Leases

The Company s curvently assessing the impact of this standard and plans to adopt [FRS 16 refrospectively. However,
it is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of effects of the application of the standards umti) the Company
performs a detailed review. The Company will elect to use the exemptions propased by the standard oy lease contracts
for which the lease teyms ends within 12 months as of the date of imitial application, and lezse contracts for which the

underlying aszet is of low value.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised at amounts net of value added tax except;

v wlm-eVATimrmdunpmd:aseofassﬂsorservimsisnotrecoverableﬁ'omthemxatiqnamhority,inwhich
case the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or part of the expense items, as

applicable.
e where receivables and payables are stated with the amouns of VAT incinded.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from or payable to the taxation authority is inchuded es part of receivables or
payebles in the statement of financial positiom.
Current versss noe-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on currentinon-current
classification. An asset as corrent when it fs:

Expacted to ba malised or intended to sold or consumsd in normal opseating eycle

Held primarily for the purpose of wading

Expected to be reslised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or
Casho:cashequivahunmlresﬁcﬁedﬁumbuingexclnnydurmdwsenlealiabﬂﬂyﬁwulﬂsttwelve
months afier the reporting period

All other assets are classiffed as non-current. A liability Is current when:

It is expected to be seitled in normal operating cycle

It is'held primarily for the purpose of frading

It &s due to be sentled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Mability for at least twelve months afier the

reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities s non-current.

YvYvy

Yvvyy




Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 3] Decamber 2008

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of éstimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions that may affoct

the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues, expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities and the resultant
provisions and fair values. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about severa) factors and 2ctual
results may différ from reported amounts.

Estimates and wnderlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty, and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the separate financial
starements) are discussed in Note 20,

Revenue recognition

Appiicable from ! Jewary 2018
Revenue isremguisedwhencontrolofﬁegm&aﬂmﬁambm&md&ﬂwcuﬂommmmomﬂm

mﬂennstheepnsiderationlowh{ehtheCompanyexpectswb_eenliﬂedinexdmgefwthosegoodsmdmm'I'he
Company has generally conctuded that it is the principal initsmammgementsbmuseittypimﬂycontm]sthe
goods before transferring to the customer,

Applicable before | January 2018
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and can

be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured et the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into sccount contractuntly defined terms of payment and excluding taxes
or duty. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements agrinst specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. TTownpmyhascondududﬂmthisaﬂhguprhcipﬂinaﬂoﬁtsmmmemm.
The following revenue recognition criteria roust also be met before revenus is recognised:

Service Fee

Service fes is charged based on expenses incurred,

Interest income
Inmhoomeismeognisedasthcinmmmusingﬁweﬁinﬁwmm(“ﬁm"),whtchistbemmm
exsctly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrament or a shorter
period, where appropriate, ta the net canying amount of the Snancial asset.

Propecty and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulsted depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, i any,

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 25 years
Leagshold improvements 5 years
Fumniture and fixtures 5 years
Computer and office equipment 3 years
Motor Vehicle 3 years

The cawrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying valus may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the camrying values exceed
the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their
fair value less costs to seli and their fair vaine in use.

Expenditure incurred to reptace a compoenent of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for ssparately is

capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it Increases fiture economic benefits of the related item of property and equipment. Ail other
expenditure is recognised in the statement of comprehensiva income as the expense is incurred.

The assets’ residual values, usefil lives and method of depraciation are reviewed at each financial vear end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

12
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Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2013

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint vantures
Investments in subsidiaties, associates and joint ventures are carried in these separate fingncial stements ai cost less
provision for impairment, if any.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An assat’s recoverable amount is the:higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value [ess.costs o sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of essets, Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered umpaired and is written down to ks
recoverable amount. In assessing value iz use, the estimated firitre cash flows gre discounted to their present value
using a discount rate thet reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the
asset. {n determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available and an
appropriate valuation model is used if no such transactions can be identified. These calculations are corroborated by
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and foracast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated, These budgets and forecast
caleulations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate iz calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment of inventories, are recognised in the income
statement in expense categories consistent with the finction of the impaired asset, except for a property previously
revaluedandtheravaluationwasmhenmoﬂmrcompmhensiwlncomﬂnthismse,ﬂwimpakmemhalsomgnised
in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

Fotassetsexclndinggoodwﬂmementismwdeataachmpuﬁngdate whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimatss the assst’s or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reverssd
only If there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the lagt
tmpcilm:tlosswasrecognised.‘l’hemmsalklimﬂedsbmﬂﬂ:ecauyingammofﬂleasmdmmtexmdits
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carvying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recoguised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal it recognised in the income statement
unless the asset is carried at & revalued smount, in which case, the reversal is treated a1 a revaluation increase,

Financial instruments — initial rocognition and subsequent measerement _
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability ar equity
instrument of another eatity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Applicable from 1 Jonuary 2018

The Comipany has adopated IFRS 9 Financail Insturmenis with effect from | January 2018. Accordingly, financial
assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subséquently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (QOCI), and fair value through profit or loss,

The classification of financial assefs 2t initial recoguition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash fow
characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables and
bank balance that do not contain a significant financing companent or for which the Company has applied the practical
sxpedient, the Company initially measures s financial assat at its fair vaiwe phu, in the case of 2 financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not comtain & significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are mensured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policy in Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair vatue through OCI, it neads to
give rise to cash flows that are *solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding.

This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrurnent level.

T



Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 3] December 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continmed)

Financial instruments — initial recognition and sitbsequent measurement (continued)
L Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

Purchases or saies of financiel assets that requira delivery of assets within a time frame established by regolation or
cogveation in the market place (reguler way trades) are recognized on the trade daie, i.e., the date that the Company

cOmmits to purchase or sell the asset,
The Company's financial assets include bank balances, other receivables and amounts dye Trom related parties.

Applicable before 1 .tanuary 2018
The financial assets are ciassified, ot initial recognition, as financial assets 2t fair value through profit or less, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, availeble-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as

hedgﬁ:gﬁmummtsinme&ecﬁmhadae,asappmm

Financial assats as at 31 December 2017 include baok balances, other receivables and amounis due from related
parties, AQeriniﬁalmeaswement,mch ﬂnancinlassetsaresnbseqmmlymcasuredalammﬁsedwdusingﬂwﬁ_m

Subsequent measurement

Applicable from § Jarmary 2018
For purposes of subsequent measurement, finencial assets are classified in Four categaries:

. medﬂumaﬁ&mmmughmﬂtwhm-m&mpanymmdmigmwdmy&mﬁﬂmsuu
fair value through profit or loss;

. memamorﬁsedmt-{demmmm—mwmbeqmﬂymmmﬁmdﬂm
llaumrﬁsedoostnsingE[Rmethodmdaresubjmmimpaimwu.ﬁainsandlossammgﬁsedinﬁle
mmofmﬁtwhmmmemuisdamgﬁzed,mdiﬁedorwed;

o thdﬂmﬂﬂk%ﬁmugh%lwi&mclhgafmﬂaﬁwmmm@mm)—
TMmenyhumMmmdmyﬁnmdalmuﬂﬁkmmmomwhmydhgofmuhﬁw
#2ins and losses; and

. F‘mcia]assetsdﬁiumdﬂﬁﬁwueﬂmughOCIwﬁhmmycﬁngofemhﬁwgaimmdlmw
dmcogniﬁnn(equityinsuummts)-mmmpmyhasmduigwdmyﬂmciaimaa:fairvameaxrmgh
OCIw{tbnomcwlingofctmuhﬁwgainsmdhnesupondéremgrﬁm

Applicable before 1 Jonuory 2018

. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss

Loans and recefvables

Held-to-maturity investments

AFS (inancial assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has no Snancial assets at fair value throirgh profit or loss; beld-to-maturity
investments or AFS financial assets,

Detecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognised when:

T4



Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Financia! instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i Financigl asyets (continoed)

Derecognition {continued)
»  The rights {0 recsive cash flows fom the asset have expired; or
» ')‘thompanylmtransﬁmeditsrfghtstoteceive cash flows ﬁnm&emetorhasmdgnob]igatim to
pay the received cash flows in fisll without material defay to & third party under a ‘pass-through® arranpement;

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximupm amonnt of consideration that the Company could be required

to repay.
Impairmeat of finanelal assets

Applicable from | January 2018
The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debx instruments not held a¢ fatr
va_dnethroughproﬁtorlnss.Ecumbasedonﬂwdiﬁa'mhetmm.mmcmﬂmhﬂnmdmhaccmﬂmoe

cerigin cases, the Company may also consider s financinl asset to beindeﬁtﬂtwhenimmalormmlibfonmﬁou
mﬁcmﬂatme&mnykmmdymmmwhgmﬂmmmmmmm“m
anycreditﬂanmnentsheldbyﬂnmmpany.a&mcialmiswﬁumoffummﬂmismmmablcwm
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Porbankhnlanceauddueﬁommhﬂdpﬁa,ﬂw@mapplhxashmﬁﬁedappmmhheﬂwhﬁngm;hﬂd
mnmmmmmmmymmmamﬁﬂmmmkammmws
historical oredit loss experience, ndjusﬁedﬁnforward-hokﬁig_facmapeciﬁcwﬂmdebtorsmdﬂnmnmk
mﬁmmmemdmdﬁlmmmgniwdhthesepmmantdewm

Applicable before 1 January 2618
The Company assesses, auchrepon&lgdmmmmknhjecﬁwwidemeﬂmﬂﬁnmcmamamof
ﬁmc{alassetsisimpah'ad.Animpaﬁmmeﬁmifmmmcmmuhasmmedsmmeiniﬁal cogni
of the assst (an Incun'ed‘l_nssemt’),hasmﬁnpactmmeasﬁmmdﬁmremhﬂowsoﬂheﬁnamialmorﬂn
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is cxperiencing significant financial difficulty, defaukt or delingnancy in imerest or
i mduentarbankruptcywo&nrﬁmwialmrgmﬂmimandohmmble
datamdicalingt!mthmisameaslwabledecrenscinthewﬁmmdﬁtmrecash flows, such as changes in arrears or
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Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 3| December 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Fiuaneial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

i Financiaf assets {continved)

b Financial lichilities
Initial recognition and measnrement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as Gnancial liabilities at fir vajue through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or a3 derivatives desigrated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial tisbilities are recognised iniﬁallyntfaﬁ'vﬂueand,htheuseofhammdbmmmgsmdpayables,m
of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, amounts due to a reiated party and other payables and
accruals,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial Liabilities depends on their classification a3 described below:

Loans and borrowings
Afer initial recognition, mtmmsmmmmmymawwmm
B_Illmethod.Gaimandhssesmrwombedhmﬁtw!mwhmﬁeliﬁbﬂiﬁﬁmd&eqognm&aswnuMgh
the EIR amortisation process.

Amwtiwdmstiscalcu!mdhytukﬁlghmaocomtanydismuntormﬁmmmismonmdfeesormmﬂmm
mwmwmmmmmnkmdudadm&ammhmcmﬂmmw
income.

mmmawlinmwmmmlawdpmﬁamdoMpawhla

Derecognition

A Bnanciel linbifity is damgniwdwmmnhﬁMmmduthelhbﬂityisdkchrgedwmnmuedwexp&m.
Whes an existing ﬁnanciﬂ_liabiﬁtyismphcedbymothm-&mﬂm;ame lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability zre substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original lisbility and the recopnition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounds i3 recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

il Offsetling of financial instruments

Financial assets and fnancial lisbilities are offset and the net amount reported i the seperate staterment of financial
positicn If, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised emounts and there is an
intention to settle on & net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simuBianeously,

fv  Fadir value of financial instrumenis

The fair value of financial instroments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

1]




Vito] Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instrumenis ~ initia! recognition and subsequent measurement (continned)

i Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using eppropriate vahwation

techniques. Such techniques may include:

& Using recent arm’s length market transactions
Reference 10 the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same
¢ A discounted cash flow analysis or other valustion models.

Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

a3} A person oraclose member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
() has control or jobst contral over the Company;
(i)  has significant infiuence over the Company; or
(it} i= a member of the key management persormel of the Company or of & parent of the Company.

b)  Anentity isrefated to the Company if any of the fellowing conditions applies:

(i}  The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  Oneentity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the ather entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint venmures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of @ third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company. If the Company is itsslf such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Company.

(v)) The entity is coatrolled or jointly controlled by a person identified {n (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant inﬂumeovenhecmityorisammberofﬂlekay
management persormel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Cask and cash equivalents
Fwﬁwpmpou_offheﬂmumemdmhﬂows,cashmdmmmmofcuhmhand.bankbalamesand

short-tarm deposits with an original marurity of three manths or less, not of outstanding bank overdrafts,

Accounts payable and sccruals
UabMﬁamrwogniszdformmmbepaidhmeﬁlmﬁrgwdsmeWamiM whether billed by the

supplier or not.

lf&eeffectoftheﬁmevaluofmnneyism@miﬂpmvfsimmdismumed using & current pre~tax rate that reflects,
whereappmpﬁam,thclishspeciﬁctotheliabﬂigr.Whemdimmmﬁngis used, the increass in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are recognised for restructurings if there is 2 detailed formal restructuring plan and there is a valid
expectation on the part of thase affected that the restructurings will be implemented. Measurement of restructuring
provisions only includes expenses that are necessarily entailed by the restructuring and are not associated with the

ongoing activities of the entity,

(‘ \
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Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 Decomber 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Employees* end of service benefits
The Company provides end of service benefits to its employess. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the

employees' saary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period, The expécted costs
of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Foreign currencies
The Company's finencial statements are presented in US dollar, which is also the Company®s functional currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Compeny at respective currency spot rates at the date

the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the spot rate of exchange at the
reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or ranslation of monetary items are taken to the statement of

comprehensive income,

Non-monetary itemsthatmmensmedinmofhismﬁmlcmmafouign currency are transhated using the
exchenge ratas as at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair valve in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchangs rates at the date when the fair valpe is determined. The gain or 1oss arising
onreu'anslationofnm-monetaryilmnsismwdirnlmewithtberewgrﬁﬁonofmainurlomondmngeinﬁirm
oftbcitem(Le‘.n'anslaliondiﬂ'ermcﬁoniﬁemswhoseﬁirvahnegainm'lossismognisedinothercmnprehem
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair valoe of finaacizl instraments
The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markers at each reporting date is determined by

reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques may include using recant amn’s length market transactions; refereucs to the current fair
value of another instrument that is substantially the sams; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

Leases
Leases where the lessor retains substantially sll the risks and beasfits of ownership of the asset are classified as

operating leases, Opamingkmmmmmmognmdasmexpemhthemmmmufmmpmheﬂsiwinmm
of1 2 straight-line basis over the lease term.

3 SERVICE FEE

ABpu‘tluServieeAgmldamdIFcbmaryZOOﬁwithVitols.Aanneva.arelatedwty,ﬂwCumpmychwges
a service fee equal 10 actual expenses incurred plus a mark-up of 10% in return for the services provided by the
Company to the related party under the service sgreement. Service fee for the year ended t0 31 Decernber 2018 was
agreed at USD 6,473,768 (2017: USD 4,580,094),

2018 2017
Usp usp

Timing of revensue recognition
Services iransferred at & point in time 6,473,768 4,530,094
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Vitol Dubai Limited

bs

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2018

4 OTHER INCOME

Dividend income
Rent and other income
interest income

5 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Paymll costs
Depreciation
Rent and utilities
Trzvel expenses
Ochers

6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2018

Cost
At | January 2018
Additions
Disposals
At 31 Decomber 2018

s
At | January 2018
Charge for the year
Relating to dispossls

At 3] Decemnber 2018

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2018

2918 2817
ush usp
2,435,300 528,424
- 99,763
481,574 4271
2922874 632458
2018 2017
usp UsD
1,126,503 2,195,035
206,351 261,644
207,947 199,080
474,824 456,015
554,703 515,394
4,170,328 3,627,168

Leasehold  Furniture Computer and  Motor
Buildings  improvements and fixtures office equipment  vehicle Total
Uso Usp Uso Uso usp Ush
1,914,785 553,578 754,892 212,827 98.494 3,584,576
- - 2,522 19,996 - 22,518
(961,988) - - - - (561,988)
952,797 553,578 757,414 292,823 98,404 2,655,106
542,692 468,629 728,010 244,028 71,351 2,054,710
73,387 70,637 i8311 20,751 23,265 206,351
(306,665) - 5 - i (306,665}
309,414 539,264 746321 264,779 94,616 1,954,596
643,383 14,312 11,093 28,044 2,878 700,710

9



Vitol Dubai Limited

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 3| December 2018

6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
2017

Leasehold  Furniture  Computerand  Motor
Bulldings  improvements omd fixtures office equipment  vehicle Total
tsp usp usp UsD LUSD [£573)
Cost
At ] Janvary 2007 1,914,785 547,812 754,892 265,211 98,494 3,581,194
Additions - 5,766 - 7.616 - 13,382
At 31 December 2017 1,914,785 553,578 754,892 272,827 98,494 3,594,575
Depreciation
At ] January 2017 466,097 385,300 682,589 210,994 48,086 1,793,066
Charge for the year 76,593 83,329 45421 33,034 23,265 261,644
At 31 December 2017 542,692 468,629 728010 244 028 71,351 2,054,710
Net camying amount
At 31 December 2017 1,372,093 84,949 26,882 28,799 27,143 1,539,865
7 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Investment in subsidiaries represents investments in the following entities:
2018 2017
UsD Usp
Vitel Trading Maleysia Labuan Litd, 5,700,000 5,700,000
Tadjourah Service Company FZE 140,000 140,000
VAS LNG (Private) Limited 66,899 66,899
Bawah Liguids Terminal FZE 40,842 -
Segua Networks Manzgsment Limited 50,000 -
5,997,741 5.906,899
Movement in investment in subsidiaries is as follows:
2018 2017
Usp Usp
Balance at | January 5,806,899 5,700,000
Additions 90,842 247,770
Impairment loss (note 7.4) - {40,871)
Balance at 31 December 5,997,741 5,906,890
Addirions represents investments in following subsidiaries:
2018 2017
Usp uso
Basrah Liquids Terminal FZE (note 7.1) 45,342 -
Segue Networks Management Limited (note 7.2 50,000 -
Tadjoursh Service Company FZE (note 7.3) - 140,000
Mithras Trading FZE (note 7.4) - 40,871
VAS LNG (Private) Limited (note 7.5) - 66,899
Balahce at 31 December 00,842 247,770
L ]
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Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

Resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

RESOLVED THAT the Company be and hereby is authorized to file application to the 0il and Gas
Regulator Authority (OGRA) under the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority Ordinance 2002
("Ordinance™) read with the Natural Gas Regulatory Authority (licencing) Rules 2002 ("Rules") for
grant of license to carry out sale of Liquefied Natural Gas/ Re-gasified Natural Gas.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary be and are
hereby authorized to sign on behalf of the Company the application form, documents, and to do

acts, deeds and things which may be necessary in relation to filing of the application with OGRA to
carry out sale of Liquefied Natural Gas/ Re-gasified Natural Gas and obtaining license for the same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Secretary of the Company be and hereby is authorized to provide
certified copies of these resolutions.

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

The above resolutions were passed by the directors of the Company on December 23, 2019,

EE

Farid Arshad Masood
CEO
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Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

Details of the technical and financial expertise and resources available for carrying on the relevant regulated
activities Attached as:

Financial Strength

Vitol's financial strength and financing capabilities

Vitol had revenues of $231 billion in 2018, its 52 year of profitable operations. The Group enjoys an
investment grade rating from both S&P and Fitch. Vitol follows a strong and conservative approach to

liquidity and risk management,

In addition to the Group's long history trading operations, Vitol is also a significant investor in energy
assets, Our investment platform now includes sizeable assets across Exploration and Production, Refining,
Downstrearn & Retail, Wholesale Distribution, and Power Generation.

Vitol finances its trading activities with its own equity, plus working capital facilities supported by aver 30
major international banks. Vitol funds its investment activities with its own equity in addition to co-investment
with well-known sovereign wealth funds and private equity investors, with debt provided by commercial

banks, DFIs, ECAs, and multilaterals.

In 2016 Vitol closed its largest project financing to date for its $7.7 billion Sankofa Gas project in Ghana,
with a lending consortium backed by the World Bank's IDA, IFC, MIGA, UKEF, and a consortium of leading
international banks. This was also the largest ever single project financing by the World Bank IDA

Department.



1%

i

LNG Capability and Experiences

Vitol Experience in LNG Deliveries

Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

and Based T inal experienc
Vitol has been supplying into land based terminals worldwide since 2005. Vitol has supplied on both spot and
term basis. Example of land-based terminals supplied include:

Korea:

Gwangyand LNG Terminal
Boryeong LNG Terminal
Incheon LNG Terminal

India;

Kochi LNG Terminal
Ratnagiri LNG Terminal
Dahej LNG Terminal
Hazira LNG Terminal

Iapgn:

Senboku LNG Terminal
Futtsu LNG Terminal
Himeji LNG Terminal

FSRU, FSU e rience

Vitol has done more than 100 deliveries into FSRUs worldwide, Vito] has supplied on a term basis to the
following FSRU facilities operated by Excelerate Energy, Heogh and BW including:

a) Mina Al Ahmadi, Kuwait {177tbtu}
b) Escobar, Argentina (58tbtu)

¢) Bahia Blanca, Argentina

d) Singapore LNG, Singapore

€) Ain Sokhna, Egypt, (3tbtu)

f) Port Qasim, Pakistan (3tbtu)
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Vitol Resources Pakistan (Private) Limited

December 4, 2019

lication fi nt of li ale of Natural I Natural G

(Licensing) Rules, 2002,

Subject: A

This is to confirm that Vitol Resources Pakistan {Private) Limited will utilize the HSE services of Hascol
Petroleum Limited which is an affiliate company of Vitol.

Enclosed is the HSE manual of Hascol Petroleum Limited and the list of resources available to handle
emergency situations,

171

Farid Arshad Masood
CEOQ




LIST AND NAMES OF THE HSSE STAFF WITH ADDRESSES

S.NO

NAME

DESIGNATION

BUSINESS ADDRESS

01

Ajmal Abbasi

Manager HSSE

Hascol Petroleum Limited
The Forum

Suite # 105-106

Ist Floor, Khayaban-g-Jami
Block 8, Clifton, Karachi

02

Saleem Akram Butt

Security Manager

Hascol Petroleum Limited
The Forum

Suite # 105-106

Ist Floor, Khayaban-e-Jami
Block 9, Clifton, Karachi

03

Rana (Jasim Raza

HSSE Advisor- Lahore

Hascol Petroleum Limited

5* Floor, South Tower, Lahore Stock Exchange
Building

19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore.
Telephone Numbers : 042-36311613-14-15-16-
18

04

Nadeem Atif

Ambulance Services
Officer

Hascol Petrolenm Limited
The Forum

Suite # 105-106

Ist Floor, Khayaban-e-Tami
Block 9, Clifton, Karachi
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Message from the Chief Executive Officer

Dear Coileagues,

Effective Heaith, Safety, Security and Environmental (HSSE) Management and high level HSSE
awareness lie at the heart of Hascol Petroleum Limited’s (HPL) business and have become
more crucial than ever, We operate in a hazardous environment on a daily basis, and so jt is
essential that our approach to sustainable development and risk Management relies on oyr
commitment to act responsibly and proactively on the safety, security, health and
environmental impact of our activities.

This Management System has been designed to provide YOu, as leaders and experts, with the
necessary support in driving and embedding HSSE across the organization. Preventing
accidents, protecting our colleagues, contractors and reducing our environmental footprint
are the responsibilities of all employees in HpL. Our leadership, with professional support
from the HSSE teams, must reinforce systematic management and implementation, and
promote our HSSE culture at ali levels of operations.

.....................

Saleem Bugt
Chief Executive Officer

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017, All rights reserved, May not be reproducad without permission,
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Vision

To become the leading energy marketing company in Pakistan through
operational excellence, talent management, business diversification and
sustainable expansion.

Mission

To gain recognition and leadership in the hydrocarbon and energy sectors, by
maximizing customer satisfaction and shareholder value through continuous
improvement, high quality human capital, appropriate technology, and by
adhering to the Company’s Core Values.

Copyright HASCOL Pstroleum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission,
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ACRONYMS
ALARP As Low As Reasonable Practicable

AMC Asset Maintenance Concept

ccrv Closed Circuit Television

CEO Chief Executive Officer

oo Chief Operating Officer

DCp Dry Chemical Powder

ESD Emergency Shut Down

FAC First Aid Case

HPL Hascol Petroleum Limited

HRA Health Risk Assessment

HSSE Health, Safety, Security and Environment
IR Injury Incidence Rate

KPi Key Performance Indicator

LoTo Lock Qut Tag Out

Lh Lost Time Injury

LTIFR Lost Time Injury Frequency rate

MocC Management of Change

MS Management System

MTC Medical treatment Case

NEQS National Environmental Quality Standards
PEPA Pakistan Environmental Protection Agency
PPE Persanal Protective Equipment

PSM Process Safety Management

PSSR Pre Startup Safety Review

PTW Permit to Work

RA Risk Assessment

RWC Restricted Work case

SMART Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time- bound
sop Standard Operating Procedure

TBT Tool Box Talk

TRIR Total Recordabie Incident Rate

WHO World Health Organization
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PART 1 INTRODUCTION

The Hasco! Petroleum Limited HSSE Management System defines the principieé’? by which we conduct
our operations with regards to hea Ith, safety, security and the environment.

A company's response to HSSE issues affects employees, contractors, customers, stakeholders and the
surrounding community. A sound “integrated HSSE management” system definitely ensures (workflow)
performance reliability, by emphasizing the value of health and safety of employees, contractors and
the environment, maintaining regulatory compliance, enhancing business reputation within the
community, satisfying customers and promoting profitability.

L. Purpose
The purpose of this manual is to:

* Define key elements of the HPL Integrated HSSE Management System.

* Specify in detall the HPL HSSE System addressing all elements to methodologically identify,
understand and reduce risks related to company operations. Its main purpose is to protect
personnel from serious injury and prevent significant environmental harm, property damage
and business losses,

. Scope

Process Safety Management (PSM} has also been integrated into this HSSE MS, ensuring a better
understanding of the overali HSSE conditions and requirements at an operating company level.

This manual shall be reviewed and revised on three [03] yearly basis, so that Policies, Standards and
Procedures wili be updated as per relevant standards, codes and best/recommended incdustry practices.

Non-compliances with this manual can only be tolerated in a transition phase with the formal
approval of the HPL Chief Executive Officer.

ill.  Objectives and Targets

The foliowing objectives and targets are identified in order to create a positive and proactive approach
to health, safety, security and protection of the environment during all activities of the HPL:

Effective and visible HSSE Leadership

Execute the activities in fine with best industrial practices

Effective Risk Management & Hazard Awareness Process

100% Compliance with Legal Requirements

Identification of HSSE Training and delivery, and skiiis requirements for all employees
Effective Reporting & Commu nication processes

Effective incident reporting & investigation process

Effective & efficient safe systems of work.

Ensure motivation and recognition of HSSE achievements.

Effective Audit, Review and Im provement process.

An environment in which every individual takes persanal responsibility for safety
Each person going home safe each day every day,

........I...

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017 Ali rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission,



HASCOL Petroleum Limited

Integrated HSSE Management Manual
@ HSSE Department 2
| Doc Number: BSSE-IMM-01 | Rev: 0 |
Objective of Occupational Heaith and Safety , -

Etiminate injuries and illnesses to personnel and contractors, and to protect asseis, operation, and the
environment.

Objective of Pracess Safety

Prevention of major incidents, in particular, fires, explosions and toxic releases, associated with the
handfing of hydrocarbons and chemicals using engineering and management competences.

Objectlves of Security

Security is an important aspect of HPL operation to protect HPL personnel and assets. In any case, the
dangerous goods/hydrocarbons have to be pratected against intruders or non-qualified persons as they
are not aware of the risks associated with the hydracarbons.

Objectives of Environment
Protective measures to prevent environmental impacts associated with our operations.
IV.  Principle of Continual Improvement

The aim of the implementation of the Integrated Health, Safety Security & Environmental
Management Manual is to make our operations safer by continual improvement,

Management shall maintain an effective control process to ensure that the findings of audits are
recorded, prioritized, actioned, verified for effectiveness and closed out,

Key lessons iearned shall be effectively communicated to all employees and relevant invoived and
interested parties.

Management Reviews shall be conducted to include the results of:

The status and effectiveness of corrective and preventive action
Risk-assessment findings and the extent to which objectives and targets have been achieved
The suitability of the HSSE MS and resources in relation to change conditions

¢ Audits and inspections
* Incidents

* Non-conformances

s  KPls

s Customer feedback

L 2

L ]

»

Management is responsible for im plementing improvements identified thraugh management reviews.

V.  Policy
Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) is an integral part of the Management Philosophy of
HASCOL Petroleum Limited {HPL}. HPL Aims to achieve Business Excellence and Strives to Protect
People, Assets, Environment and Reputation. This Commitment is in the best interests of our
Employees, Contractors, Customers, Stockholders and the Community at large.

In order to contribute to Sustainable Development, HPL is committed to:

¢ Providing Safe, Secure and Healthy Work Environment with a cautionary attitude by exercising
Responsible Care;

* Achieving a Generative HSSE Culture to Prevent Incidents and Reducing our Environmental
Footprint; and

*  Complying with Legal Requirements, internal Standards and adapt Best Practices.

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017 All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without pemission.
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To realize the above, we hercby declare our intention to:

*  Set HSSE Targets and Goals annually to measure Performance for Continual improvement

* Reduce HSSE Risks arising from our Operations to a reasonably acceptable level

¢ Provide Training/Awareness to our Em ployees to perform Safely

¢ Maintain high standard of Emergency Response Capability

* Prevent Accidents, Occupational Diseases, Fire Cases and Pollution

* Empower Empioyees and Contractors to report Non-compliances or Unsafe Conditions/Acts
and to take immediate remedial measures ta Prevent Incidents

¢ Promote Pollution Prevention, Resource Conservation, GHG Emissi

Horticulture

¢ Ensure all activities are carried out in accordance with Company HSSE Policy

e Ensure that Contractors’ HSSE Performance is in line with cur Standards

This Policy shall be regularly reviewed to ensure ongoing suitability.

Employees and Contractors have responsibilit

HSSE standards.

The HSSE MS is organized into four (4) parts with fourteen (14) distinct elements.

ons Management and

y to comply with this Policy and maintain high level of

4. Operational Procedures &
2. Communication, Control R tia
Participation & Hierarchy 2’ E'SSE T"'“‘:gsz i 13.incident
Consultation el {EIG Classification,
Efimingte risk Management \ Reporting and
7. Welfare and Social lnvestigation
1.Management Substitute risk Performance
Leadership, 8. Process Safety
Commitment and . Management
Accountability Engineering 9. Environmental
3. Hazard controls Management
Identification and 10. Security 14.Performance
Risk Analysis Work 11. Emergency Response, Management and KP|
Instruction Preparedness and Evacuation Reporting
Plan
A 12. Fire Safety Management
=% PLAN | [ DO | [ cHeexmacr ]
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PART 2 PLAN

Element 1 Management Leadership, Commitment and Accountability

Leaders must be fully aware and demonstrate visible leadership and proactive commitment towards
HSSE excellence through:

¢ setting a personal example to follow
® communicating HSSE requirements to employees clearly
* discussing and reviewing progress agalnst HSSE ta rgets
* demonstrating personal participation in HSSE initiatives
¢ recognising good practice
¢ applying progressive consequence
1.1 Leadership & Safety Behavior
Safety culture is the praduct of people’s values and beliefs, their behaviour, and their commitment to
heaith and safety programmes.
The characteristic of the HPL HSSE culture has to be:

Leadership: CEQ, COOs, Chiefs, General Managers and Facility Managers/In Charges and their
Management Teams shall demonstrate clear and unambiguous Leadership in HSSE Management.

Responsible: Safety is 3 line department’s responsibility. HSSE manager and his staff have an advisory
role.

Informed: CEQ, cOQ, Chiefs, General Managers and Facility Managers/in Charges know what is really
80ing on and that workforce is wiliing to report their own errors and near misses.

Mindful: Everyone is wary and always ready for the unexpected.

Just and Fair: There is a “no blame” culture, with a clear line between the acceptable and unacceptable
and well-understood consequences.

Respect: Individuals are respected, as are dangers they face.

Open: Everybody is willing to communicate directly to others when unsafe situations eccur or unsafe
behaviour is seen.

Learning: Willing to adapt and implement necessary reforms,

Flexible: Operates according to needs but in line with all HSSE aspects

Reliable: Always deliver in line with all HSSE aspects

Profitable: Manages the risk better than anyone else

1.2, Accountability

Everyone in HPL is personally responsible for HSSE (at his/her level). Line management will be heald
accountable for accomplishing this by demonstrating correct HSSE behaviours, by clearly defining HSSE
roles, responsibilities and authorities, hy providing necessary resources, and by measuring, reviewing
and continuously improving our HSSE performance.

Departmental Heads shall identify and set clear, measurable HSSE objectives and targets for their
operations and personnel. These should be based on:

¢ Standards

* Legal, customer and corporate requirements

R
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To achijeve these objectives and targets, management shail

¢ Establish programs with clear roles, responsibilities, timescales and key performance indicators

defined ;
* Allocate adequate resoy rces
Communicate requirements to our employees, contractors and customers, as required

*  Regularly review performance and Update as required

All concerned personnel’s HSSE performance shail he assessed against thejr annual objectives and
targets.
1.3, HSSE Organization Structure and Responsibilities

Organizational structure, roles and responslbilities shaill pe clearly defined and the necessary resources
provided to achieve HSSE expectations.

Organizational structure shall be documented and communicated, clearly indicating speclfic HssE roles
and empioyee responsibilities. Management shal ensure that adequate resources are in piace to
achleve HSSE Ms €Xpectations, objectives and continual improvement, Al employees shall have 3 job
description that clearly defines their HSSE roles, responsibilities and authorities,

1.4.HSSE Management Meeting

¢ Level 1: HSSE will be 2 xed item on the monthly management meeting with Chairman and

Prepared with the input of the employee representatives. The minutes of the meetings shaii be
distributed to al concerned.

Copyright HASCOL Patroleum Lid 2017 All rights resarved, May not be reproduced without permission,
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1.5, Life Saving Rules
HPL has adopted 12 Life Saving Rules in May 2017

AL ik

Wear Your Seat Belt Protect yourself Wear a personal  Obtain

against a fall floatation device  authorisation before
when workingat  when required enetering a
height confined space

Follow prescribed lift  Work with a valid Position yourself  Obtain

plan work permit when ina safe zone in authorisation before
required relation to moving starling excavation

and energised activities
equipment

Verify isclation Do not walk under No alcohol or Do not smoke

before work begins a suspended load drugs while outside designated

and use the working or driving smoking areas

specified lite

protecting

equipment

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.
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Element 2 Communication, Participation and Consultation

2.1.Communication

HPL recognizes the importance of effective communication and will establish and implement a system
for:

*  Appropriate inductions when first arriving on the site

¢ [Internal communication regarding HSSE matters between the functions and management levels
within the company as well as communication with contractors and other visitors

* Receiving, documenting and responding to health and safety communication
¢ Correspondence with regu latory authorities in compliance with statutory requirements

Communications and interactions with local communities and other interested parties will be recorded
on a communicatlons record and a register maintained.

Key HSSE communications tools are listed and briefed below:

2.1.1. HSSE Board

HSSE board with Statistics will be displayed at a prominent location within the site/office showing LTI,
FAC, MTC, Near Miss etc.

HSSE information on training, HSSE events, bulletins, newsflashes and other communlcation will be
posted on another board. As Low as reasonably practicable workers native language shalf be given
priority.

2.1.2. HSSE Awareness Signages

HSSE awareness signboards shall be displayed at key locations at sites/offices to create and maintain
awareness and ownership of HSSE issues. HPL will define the standards for signages.

2.1.3. HSSE Bulletin, Newsflash, and Incident Alert

HPL HSSE department shall issue HSSE builetins and newsflashes on regular basis and as per need. The
HSSE flyer shail be published in the language understood by the workers in addition to the English.

Upon any incidents (either potentially or actual harm}, HPL HSSE department shall issue a Newsflash to
share the immediate lesson learned and to avoid recurrence.

2.1.4. Dally Tool Box Talk Meeting

Daily TBT meetings shall be conducted with entire work force. The topics for such meetings shall be
published by the HSSE department. The toolbox talk topics shall be based on the followings:

Trend analysis for the HSSE Observations

Near miss and other incidents

Major non-compliances of the site rules

Lessons learnt from incidents occu rring

Recent HSSE events

Any other relevant matter recommended by the management

*® & 92 » o @

The TBT shall be conducted in the workers own language and TBT shall not last more than 10 -15
minutes. The Records of TBT meetings shall be kept and maintained.

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.
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2.2.Participation and Consultation
HPL will establish a health, safety, security and environmentai committee to ensure there is an effective

system for worker participation. Contractors will also be given an opportunity to participate within this
forum.
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Element 3 Hazard Identification and Risk Analysis

3.1.General Hazard ldentification

Hazard identification and risk analysis covers all activities involving hazard identification and risk
evaluation. The objective of these activities is to ensure that risks associated to People, Assets,
Environment and Reputation are adequately controlled. Basis for this activity is the HPL risk matrix to
evaluate “what can go wrong”, “how bad can it be” and “how likely will this happen”.

HPL Risk Matrix
Consaquence Increasing Probability -
s ) B c D E
Rating | People | Assets | Environment e | R Lol R (L ot
industry orm gy DU CEmpany P yaRrin
Incation
0 Noinjury | No No effect
damage
1 Stight Shight Slight effect |
injury darnage ! 3
2 Minor Minor Minar effect
Injury damage
3 Major Localised | Localised effect
injury damage
4 Single Major Major effect
fatality damage
S Muttiple Extensive | Masslve effect
L fatalities damage

3.2.Risk Assessment

HPL will conduct a detailed risk assessment for the entire scope of work. The HPL site In charge will lead
the RA and Site HSSE Officer will facilitate the process, the Risk assessment team will consist of
representatives from all the relevant departments. The team will ensure identification and analysis of
waorksite HSSE hazards, risks and to put in place control measures through plans, procedures, training
etc., to minimize these risks to a level of ALARP (As low as reasonably practicable),

The results of this Risk Assessment shall be communicated to all levels of organizations, including the
workforce through TBT and meetings.

The typical risk assessment study will include following steps:

1. List the Task

2, identify the HSSE Risk

3. Assess the Risk Using Risk Assessment Matrix

4. lidentify the Assumed Controis Measures. These are existing controls from available Legal
requirements, Procedures and HPL Standard operating procedures and guidelines

5. In case of Risk being medium or high in the risk assessment matrix, explore for additional
controls that can bring the risk back to LOW ievel.

All the actions/control measures to be logged and tracked through an action point register for closures
of action items.

Hierarchy of Risk Controls will be as:

1. Eliminate risk 2. Substitute risk 3. Engineering controls 4.  Work
instruction 5. Personal Protective Equipment
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Element 4 Operational Procedures & Instructions

il

The planning and carrying out of operations and activities in the scope of HPL should be in such a way
that they are conducted under specified operating conditions.

4.1.5peclfying Operational Procedures & Instructions

and accurate information,

The operation of every part, and each phase in that part, is described in operational procedures. The
phases that have to be covered by an operational procedure in each part are:

The start-up following cleaning, inspection and maintenance as well as decommissioning

The narmal operation

Actlons in emergency situations

Operational proceduras have to be drawn u p on the basis of the safety

Users of the procedures has 1o be involved in drafting the procedures

The layout & content of operational procedures will be described in the operational guidelines
and have to he followed

* The HSSE department has to be consulted when drafting/reviewing operational procedures

......

4.2.Implemer|ting Operational Procedures & Instructions
For implementing Operational Procedures and instructions each operation has to ensure;

* that the necessary explanation and training is given before new of amended procedures or
instructions are put in operation, by identifylng potential users and content of training. Record
of training should be retainable

* that only the most recent versions of the procedures & instruction are used

4.3. Maintaining Cperational Procedures & instructions
Each operation has to ensure that:

* the personnel continue to have sufficient knowledge and skills to be abie to operate in 3 safe
manner

* that the operationai procedures & instructions are not amended in an unverified manner,
change requests to procedures and instructions are only made via Management of Change.

4.4.5afe Operation and Wark Practices

fe systems of works must be established, implemented and faintained to ensure that al! health and
safety related risks are adequately ma naged. Own staff as well as contractors must exercise safe
behavior; follow safe operational rules as well as safe work practices,

Operational controls are documented through “HASCOL Operations Manual- Standard Operating
Procedures”, Examples of operational controls are Product Handling, Product Loss Control

Permits are the written authority document obtained from the asset owner to carry out specific task at
specific location in a safe manner that will cause no harm to human being, damage to property or
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environment. Permit to Work system provides the controls necessary in achieving the safe performance
of a specified range of potentially hazardous tasks,

Permit to work process must be established to ensure that hazardous, non-routine work s assessed,
planned, authorized and carried out in a way that ensures health and safety of the empioyees and
contractors invalved, and others who may be affected.

4.4.2 Personal Protective Equipment

The site management shall ensure that all site personnel working on the site provided with, and wear or
hold, appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) ta protect them agalnst work related hazards
which may endanger their health & safety,

This applies to all HPL and contractor’s employees deployed including visitors who intend to visit the
work area. HPL will define the procedure for PPEs keeping in view applicable standards. Where such
standards are not available the PPE Standards must be followed,

4.43 Lock out Tag out System (Energy Isolation)

Lock-out / Tag-out requirements apply to all operations which give rise to the likelihood of any
unexpected operation of electrical and mechanical equipment that can be activated by automatic or
manual control which may result in a deviation from the intended process control and could result in

injury to personnel within the immediate vicinity.

Lockout/Tag out is the de-energizing, isolating, and securing of all energy sources of equipment in a
safe position before beginning work, to protect from the unexpected energization of that equipment.

Following to be used as LOTO Strategy:

Pad lock

Display Tag

Lock Box

Authorized Personnel

For overhead work, open holes and other worksite hazards, HPL will have a list of control devices such
as signage, barricades, and scaffold handrails to isolate hazardous work areas and limit access to only
autheorized personnel.

4.4.4 USE OF EQUIPMENTS AND MACHINES

Each operation shall ensure that systems and procedures are put in place to ensure the safe &
environmentally responsibfe use of equipment and machines.

Ali personnel including contractors shall be adequately trained in these procedures,

Copyright HASCOL Pefroloum Ltd 2017. Al sights reserved. May nat be reproduced without pemission.
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" Element 5 Competence, Training and Awareness

HPL wil! ensure that management, gperatives,

suppliers and contractors are aware of the Integrated

Health, Safety, Securlty and Environmental manual and the need to conform to its tenets.

The purpose of thi

contractors’ employees in HSSE to crea

s element is to describe the plan and arrangements for training of HPL and its

te awareness about the preventive measures against the job-

related hazards and risks associated with the scope of work and interface.

HPL will undertake and update a training needs analysis and maintain appropriate training records.

Training documents include:

e Training Need Analysis
¢ Training Matrix

s Individual Employee and Contractor Training Records

HBL will ensure that all employees and relevant cantractors are made aware of:

e the consequences of their work activities and behaviours as well as the benefits of improved

personal performance, 3s regards HSSE
o their roles and responsibilities of conforming to the relevant requirements of the HSSE

e the potential consequences of deviations from the HSSE management system and in particular

task procedures

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017.
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Element 6 Contractor HSSE Management

6.1. Contractor Selection

Contractor management Is a system of controls to ensure that contracted services support both safe
operations and HSSE perfermance. It covers selection, acquisition, use, and monitoring of contractor
services.

Requirements and expectations regarding contractor safety performance and safety policies will be
made explicit in request for quotation and made part of the contractual documents, by establishing
criteria, roles, and responsibilities for safety program implementation and performance. Expectations
should be made specific and explicit, by HS5E involvement in contractor selection/evaluation.

6.2.Safety Incentives

skilled contractor workers with a solid safety culture might not be available everywhere. Safety
incentives can support the workforce to focus on safety. The management should support the HSSE
programs. A contractual financial incentive related to safety performance shall be made avaiiable by

safety incentive program at worker jevel.
6.3. Monitor Contractor Management System

An effective system should ensure contractor safety performance meets HPL expectations. This will be
made possible by auditing the contractor selection process, monitoring and evaluating contractor safety

performance,

Copyright HASCOL Petroisum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.
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Element 7 Welfare and Social Performance

7.1. Medical Screening

HPL will design Medical Screening process to:

Minimize the risk of an adverse consequence to the health and_ / or safety of an employee or
third party, resulting from a foreseeable health condition,

Match, wherever reasonably practicable, the requirements of a position and its associated tasks
to the functional capacity {physical and psychological) of the employee.

Avoid non-risk based pre-employment medical examinations, which may exclude people from
employment in HPL.

All employees will undergo medical examination as mentioned below:

Physical Examination
Hivi&ll

CP ESR

Blood VDRL

HBS AG

Urine DR

Anti HCV

X Ray Chest

7.2. Welfare Facilities

7.2.1.

L ]

Rest Shelter

The size of the rest shelters shall be such that it can accommodate 30% of the total number of
manpower at a time. The size per person shall be 40 cm.

The shelters shall be located away from the noisy locations

The shelters shall be surrounded with the green mesh to avoid the dust blowing inside the
shelter during the high wind conditions

The shelter shall have pedestal fans for cooling purpose.

Drinking Water Supply

Drinking water shall be made available at each site

Water in coolers shall be filled in an enclosure to avoid the dust contamination.
ice If added in water shall meet the parameters of WHO for drinking water.
Water shall be lab tested at every 6-month interval to meet NEQS.

7.3. Health Risk Assessment (HRA)
HPL shall conduct a thorough HRA randomly considering the health impact and aspect of the employees.

The HRA shall be revised based on the followings

sudden rise in the occupational illnesses

Existence of new hazards or work process that give rise to any new health hazards.
Change in work scope

Learning’s from incidents

Bi-yearly as minimum

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. Al rights reserved. May not be reproduced without permission.
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7.4. infectious Disease

HPL will communicate and educate their employees on infectious disease via different ways such as TBT,

HSSE bulletins, individual health tips, health campaigns, information’s on notice boards etc.
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" Element 8 Process Safety Management

8.1. Pre Startup Safety Review (PSSR)

HPL has to ensure that an appropriate risk analysis is planned and executed when new sites are being
designed or modifications are made to existing sites.

HPL has to ensure that basic and detailed design is well documented and that the appiicable technical
standards are followed.

Following provisions should be ensured:

s active safety-critical components {ESD systems, safety valves) are designed such that they meet
the required functionality

that the operation is user-friendly

the operation is inspection and maintenance friendly

process equipment, which has been purchased, is in accordance with the design documentation
that the site constructed meets the approved detailed specification

that the installation and its peripherai equipment are in a safe state before hydrocarbons are

introduced
e that the process documentation is in accordance with the constructed site

« & @ * &

8.2. Asset Integrity and Reliability
8.2.1. Design, Construction and Commissioning

HPL will consider asset management during the design and construction of a new project. Basic
components to implement the asset management upon commissioning should be included as project
deliverables,

Management Representative will keep follow-up on actions and recommendations from hazard
identification and risk analysis as well as lessons learned

Safety critical components/equipment will be registered as such in the maintenance system. Specific
maintenance schedules will be identified. Effectiveness of the safety loop composed of safety critical
equipment will be monitored throughout the lifecycle.

8.2.2. Maintenance and Inspection

The operational site is to be kept in a safe state readily available for operations by an effective
maintenance system. Each site should develop their asset maintenance concept {AMC), a set of rules
concerning maintenance intervals, activities, responsibilities, and resources required to maintain the
instalfation infrastructure.

Continued fitness for purpose, effective asset ma nagement ensures that equipment is fit for purpose at
least till the next scheduled inspection.

8.2.3. Analysis

HPL will define the procedure for analysis of maintenance activities. Data collection and analysis will be
performed to determine the degree of reliability of the equipment.

8.3. Management of Change — Modifications

Every operational site shall be operated safely. This is ensured by correct design, adequate operating
procedures and quality maintenance. Any change to this safe state can only be performed by a MOC.

Copyright HASCOL Peftroteum Ltd 2017. All rights reserved. May not be repraduced without permission.
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Change cannot compramise HSSE, operations or off-site activities. Necessary hazard studies shall be
carried out, appropriate design considerations made, risk management plans implemented and ali
changes properly engineered and recorded.

The requirements for an MOC procedure are described and have to be reported and followed up.

Whether arising from temporary or permanent change, no work can start and no equipment can be
taken in service befare the management of change process is completed.

A temporary MOC shall be used to track the implemented temporary solution for a
damaged/unavailable safety critical loop/ equipment.
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Element 9 Environmental Management

Environment means any or all living organisms including the ecological systems of which they form part
and the following media (alone or in combination): air (including the air within the buildings and the air
within other natural or man-made structures whether above or below ground); water {including water
under or within land or in drains or sewers and surface, ground, coastal and inland waters); land
{including surface land, sub-surface strata, land under water and natural and manmade structures}); and
in the case of man includes his senses and his property.

Protective measures preventing impacting the Environment shall be in place before operating any site.

HPL fully recognizes that management of environmentai matters is very important. These
responsibilities include the proper handling of waste materials, resource conservation and
environmental protection e.g. soll and ground water protection.

8.1.Environmental Impact Assessment

HPL shall carry out an Environmental Impact Assessment for green fields in accordance with
Environmental Protection Act {PEPA} 1997 and subsequent Acts of respective province.

The potential Environmental Impacts of each Environmental Aspect (l.e. activity} will then be reviewed
and recorded. The potential Environmental impacts will include the following six {7) categories:

1. Emissions to air

2. Water contamination

3. Noise pollution

4. Releases to land

5. Energy consumption

6. Use of raw materials and natural resources
7. Waste and by-products

9.2.Environmental Protection
HPL and its contractors shall comply with the following:

L

« Qils, grease, fuels, lubricants, paints, solvents, acids and alkalis, and contaminated waste water shall not

be allowed to migrate into the site ditch system, or discharge to the ground.

e Spills of patroleum products, chemicals and other materials must be immediately reported to HPL HSSE

Cffice, and containment and clean-up shall be started immediately.

+ All storage into tanks, storage and ioading/unloading of chemicals, fueils and similar bulk materials must

be in curbed or dike areas.
There shalf be no open burning of waste materials.
Maintenance areas where lube oil changes, etc., are performed shall be concrete paved.

9.3.Emissions and Noise Pollution

HPL shall take following countermeasures for control of emissions:

+ All equipment’s shall be properly maintained according to the manufacturer’s handbook to minimize

excessive exhaust emissions and noise pollution,
e Exhaust emissions of point sources will be monitored yearly to comply with NEQS.
Noise monitoring will be carried out to check compliance with NEQS

e Al Internal combustion engines/generators shall be suitably serviced and maintained to reduce
polluting emissions to an acceptable level. Where possible, engines shall be located away from work

areas.
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¢ Dust control shall be achieved by properly sprinkling of water in and around work area prior to

contmencing the work to avoid dust emissions.

9.4, Waste Management

The waste management shall include segregation, handling, storage, collection and disposal of all types
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. HPL and its contractors shall comply with applicable legal and
other requirements for waste disposal. -

HPL shall encourage the reuse and recycling waste to reduce the quantities to be disposed-off.

The objective is to minimize emission and waste generated. All liquid and solid waste generated as a
result of HPL and its contractor activities shall be disposed-off, complying with waste management
procedures and guidelines.

Waste types shall include but not limited to the following:

Type of Waste

Hazardous Waste
{Coatings, HSD, PMG, Paints, Bases etc.}

Municipal Waste
(Food scrap, paper, containers, plastic, food croton, card board, etc.)

Non-Hazardous Industrial Waste
{Air Filters, Abrasives, weld, metal debris, water filters)

Non—Hazardous Inert Waste
{Excavated Earth, Concrete debris, Plastic & Foams),

The expected waste generation from HPL and its contractors’ activities are as below:

Waste oil

Food / municipal waste

Office waste

Metallic waste including welding butts
Scrap wood

Batteries

Scrap automobile tires
Paint/Solvent cans

Drums and Packing of chemical
Scrap Metals

Other wastes

Oily sludge

............

9.5. House Keeping Plan
All HPL and contractor's employees are responsible for keeplng the site, and other facilities clean and
orderly at all times.
The major objectives of housekeeping are to:
¢ Eliminate the causes of accidents and fires by removing obstacles and flammable hazards, which
might interfere with activities and passage of personne! and vehicles, and become a source of

fire.
s  Effectively utilize area and equipment by providing comfortable and safe working conditions.
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* Create and maintain hygienic and safe working conditions.

* Al employees shall be encouraged to maintain their work areas to the highest standards of
housekeeping.

* After each day’s work, ail work crews shall carryou,housekeeping to clear their work locations
and arrange the materials and equipment in order.
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Element 10 Security

Security is an important aspect of HPL operation to protect HPL personnel and assets. In any case, the
dangerous goods/hydrocarbons have to be protected against intruders or non-qualified persons as they
are not aware of the risks associated with the hydrocarbons.

Security includes the following components:

evaluate and identify the goods, buildings and infrastructy re
identify potential threats

describe and priorities the measures that need to be taken

identify the weak points in the infrastructure, policy and procedures

* o o 4

The HPL operational sites and offices has a CCTV (closed circuit television). The system is operated 24hrs
with due regard for the privacy of individuais and in accordance with the requirements of the human
rights act.

Cne of the main purposes of the CCTV system s to provide HPL with assistance to detect and prevent
crime, and to help identify accidents, by helping to provide a secyre environment at the operational
sites and offices,

10.1  Security Plan/SOP

The security plan/SOP should at least cover:
®* Measures aimed at preventing unauthorized access to the operational sites, offices and
restricted areas
procedures that must be followed in the event of a secu rity threat
procedures for the evacuation in the event of a security threat
procedures to report al incidents/events that concern the security
identification of the security officer, including the ability to contact them 24 hours aday

8 & @

Following protocols will be followed:

1. Identity checks - Gate guards check passes and badges of all individuals entering or leaving the
operational sites,

2. Card & badge system - An access control management system assists the security in creating

regular reports to gain clear insight into HPL access control

Security personnei - site wil foresee security coverage 24/7

4. Induction requirements before access to operational site

=
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Element 11 Emergency Response, Preparedness and Evacuation Plan

The nature and scale of all reasonably foreseeable emergencies shall be identified and adequate
arrangements to deal with them shall be made. Each operation will have its awn site emergency
response plan,

11.1. Objectives
The main objectives of this Emergency Response and Preparedness action plan are as follows.

Protection of human life

Protection and minimization of damage to the environment
Protection and Minimization of damage to property and assets
Protect Company Reputation

Controlling any incldents and preventing escalation

* & 8 @ @

11.2. Potential Emergencies

The following emergencies as minimum, but not limited to, might be expected during the course of the
waork,

Fire/Explosions

Spillage (oil or any hazardous chemicals)
Medical Emergency

Offsite Transport Emergency

In addition to the above, during the risk assessment process few more emergencies situation might
come up. HPL shall apply all the relevant, reliable and SMART actions in place to ensure such situation
does not occur at first place and this shall be achieved via risk assessment process, adopting best
industrial practices, complying with legal and other requirement,

¢ 9 @

11.3. Training

Requirements of Emergency Response and Preparedness Procedure will be part of the Orientation /
Induction Training given to all workers plus emergency team members, vendors and visitors. Following
this training, each person will, as a minimum, have the following knowledge:

Emergency Alarm system

Location and routes to the nearest assembiy points
Location of emergency equipment

Responsibilities of each individual

Notification and reporting requirements

11.4. Emergency Mock Drill

Emergency mock drills and exercises will be executed as per monthly HSSE calendar in order to test
effectiveness of procedure and readiness of equipment to ensure that everyone knows about the
actions to be taken in case of emergency.

Short comings of the drill shall be noted and communicated to all employees for improvements. Gaps
will be closely abserved and addressed in next drill.

11.5. Emergency Evacuation

Evacuation procedure durlng the emergency shall be covered during the initial HSSE induction training;
all staff on site shail comply with the following upon hearing the alarm.

s Stop Work
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Stop all equipment being used for your work.
Call local Emergency Number
Ensure the worksite is safe.

up wind, never go downwind).
Cooperate during head count- stand up and be counted.
e Follow instructions.

Proceed to the nearest and safest Assembily point following the wind direction (go cross wind or

Copyright HASCOL Petroloum Lid 2017. All righis reserved. May not be reproduced withaut permission.
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Flement 12 Fire Safety Management

HPL shall emphasize on pre-planning, work permit compliance, flammable gas, liquid, and material
control; the control of smoking; training and use of warning signs, proper electrical wiring, and proper
waste storage and removal to achieve Fire Preventicn and Protection.

Foflowing measures te be adopted in this regard:

* * & @

12.1.

HSSE signs shall be posted.

Fire extinguishers shall be installed at prominent locations.

A close liaison with the electrical/instrumentation department for the inspection, testing and
servicing of fire alarms/smoke detection units etc.

Regular audits and inspections of the main Site office, sites, surrounding areas, and all other
temporary facilities,

Personnei are informed not to interfere with fire detection devices or systems

Ensure that night security guards regularly patrol around and closely watch for any smoke / fire,
security lights are functioning in good order and identify any other potential area of risk
Workplaces are maintained in a neat and tidy manner and that waste oil, rags and other
flammable materials are removed at the end of each shift or as necessary.

Driver crews are properly trained for the use of fire extinguishers.

Storage of flammable materials/fuels shall be strictly controlled.

Empty containers shall be disposed-off according to Waste Management procedure,

At least 1:10 of personnel shall be trained and competent in the use of fire extinguishers, will
appoint Fire Watchers or Wardens for high risk areas of work, will install fire alarms and
extinguishers in accordance with risk assessments, and will ensure that employees participate

fully in any evacuation exercise.

No Smoking Policy

“NO SMOKING POLICY” shall be implemented. Smoking will be allowed only in designated areas
approved by the HSSE Department. These areas will be cleaned daily. There wili be a notice board
mounted for HSSE information’s.

“NO SMOKING POLICY” will also be applied in the offices.

12.2,

12.3.

Flammahle Materials

Awareness to control flammable materials being used on the premises shall be given to workers

deployed at sites.
Flammable liguids such as gasoline, diesef etc. are not used for cleaning purposes and their

containers are marked as per content.
Flammable liquids shall be stored safely, in a neat and tidy manner with adequate HSSE signs

provided.
Incompatible materials shall not be stored in proximity to each other.
Substances inventory along with their risk assessment and MSDS shall be kept at the entrance

for information and reference as needed.

Hot Work

Electric arc welding equipment and accessories shall conform to specified international and local

standard.
Areas around pedestal grinders and other hot work type activities shall be kept free of

combustibles.
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12.4.

12.6.

Welding and burning shall be screened and controlled to prevent fire risk and exposure to
personnel. ”

particular care shall be taken while carrying out hot work on the locations where combustibles
are available. This shall include precautions such as; inspection of the surrounding area, remova!
of any combustible materials, protection by fire blankets and proyision of fire extinguishers and
Fire Watchers. Fire extinguishers shall be available before the commencement of hot work and
persons shall be trained in their correct use.
All hot works shafl be done under a valid PTW.

HAZMAT Store {Hazardous Material Store)

The store shall be kept away from the temporary or permanent offices and buildings

The store shall be clearly marked with the warning sign for clear identification including the
highly flammable signs

The store shall have DCP fire extingulshers on standby basis.

No hot work shall be permitted within the vicinity of the HAZMAT store.

Exhaust fan shall be installed on the store to avoid building up of fumes,

Store shall be properly ventilated and AC units shall be installed to avoid building up of

temperature.
Fuel Storage and Oil Change areas

Tools will be uplifted; areas swept and oil impregnated waste rags are disposed-off daily.
Storage of fuels and containment requirements will be per international and customer’s
requirement.

HSSE signs will be posted.

Fire point shall be established at prominent locations.

Fueling Operations

Fueling operations shall be carried out in accordance with the procedure.

Fueling operations will be carried out in dedicated fuel dispensing area or through refueling
truck.

Within fueling area, no smoking policy will be applied.

During refueling operation, it will be ensured that no hot work is being performed.

Operator shall be more careful under pipe racks and other overhead structures to ensure that
no hot work is being performed that would drop a spark on or near the vehicie.

The truck shall have an approved fire extinguisher, a spill kit, absorbent material, dispensing
hose, automatic-closing type nozzle without a latch-open device {dead man’s handle) and an

earthling system.
To protect the fuel handler from coming in contact with fuels, greases, oils or other chemicals,

non-Impervious gloves shall be used.
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PART 4 CHECK AND ACT

Element 13 Incident Classification, Reporting and Investigation

The Objective of incident reporting, investigation & analysis is to identify the cause(s) of an incident and
to develop and impiement and long-term recommendations to prevent recurrence of such incident(s) in
future.

The relevant departmental heads shall ensure that all incidents regardless of their size and extend are
reported and investigated. All incidents must be reported within 24 hours from the occurrence time as
per HPL incident Notification Performa.

13.1. Classification of Incidents

Incident — A specific event, sequence of events, or extended condition that had or could have had
unwanted or unintended impact on the safety, security, health of people, property, or the environment,
or on Legal/regulatory compliance.

Work-related injuries or illnesses are recordable if they involve one or more of the following:

1. First Aid case

Medical Treatment Case
Restricted Wark Case
Lost Time Injury

Fatality

Environmental Incident
7. Security Incidents

o h W

First Aid Case {FAC): First Aid Cases are generally defined as any one-time treatment, and any follow-up
visit for the purpose of observation, of minor scratches, cuts, burns, splinters, and so forth, which do
not ordinarily require medical care. Such treatment and follow-up is considered first aid even though
provided by physician or registered professional personnel.

Medical Treatment Case ~Defined as a work-related injury or illness where medical treatment {other
than first aid} is required to combat disease or disorder.
Restricted Work Case: Defined as a work-related injury or illness which results in an individual being
unable:

a) to perform one or more of the routine functions aof his or her job

b) to work the full workday that he or she would otherwise have been scheduled to work on any

calendar day after the day of the lliness or injury, or
¢) Where a doctor recommends that the employee not work the full workday on any calendar day

following the injury or illness.

Lost Time Injury (LTI) — Defined as any work-related injury or illness (including a fatality} that results in
at least one (1) lost workday after the day of the incident.

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) - The frequency of lost time injuries per 200,000 hours
worked/at risk.

Fatality: A Fatality is an employee or contractor death from a work -related injury or illness, regardless
of the time intervening between the incident and the death. Fatalities are also recorded as Lost Time

incidents
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Environmental Incident; Any adverse change to the environment as a result of Company activities.

Motor Vehicle incident: A recordable and reportable incident when injury is experienced on the
operational site premises or when work-related damage to any Company owned or leased vehicle.

Near Miss - is an unintended or unwanted event that, under slightly different conditions, would have
had a negative effect on safety, health of people, property or the environment

Security Incidents - Security Incident is defined to include the following situations:

a)

b}

NOTE -

Arson - intentional and malicious burning to destroy company property or personal property on

company premises.
Assault — any attempted or actual infliction of physical injury on a person. This would include
assaults to employees andfor contractors, or inflicted due to their affiliation with the Company.

Assaults in the workplace must be evaluated for work-relatedness; notification and reporting

done based on severity.

<)
d)

e}

f)

Break-in - entering company property by force.

Homicide - the killing of one person by another. An employee or steward able contractor death
due to one person killing another is determined to be work -related regardless of the time
intervening between the incident and death.

Intelligence Report - a report made of people, circumstances or events which, while they may
have no immediate and / or direct impact on operations, could prove useful in improving threat
intelligence analysis — e.g. rumors of impending public disturbance, suspicious activity etc.
Kidnapping - the forcible detention, abduction or confinement of company personnel and/or
contractors on company premises, during business activities, or as a result of their work

affiliation.

Kidnapping includes:

g)

h)

j)

i.  Express Kidnapping: A type of short duration kidnapping that generally involves forcing
the captive to withdraw money from a personal bank account.

ii. For Ransom: A kidnapping which involves a request for money in return for the release
of the captive.

public Disturbance fActivism - incident, event or gathering that is in close proximity to, or
interrupts the peace and order of, a Company premises (e.g., facility, office building, activities,
meeting, etc.).

Robbery - the taking of Company property with the use of force, threat of force, or violence
against the victim,

Sahotage -wiliful and malicious actlons in order to destroy Company property, which interferes
with, or adversely affects, normai company operations.

Theft -the taking of property without permission. Includes:

i.  Burglary: Forceful unauthorized entry into a building or structure with intent to steal.
i, Embezzlement: Theft committed by an employee having fiduciary responsibility for
Company assets {report via Controls Irregularity Reporting).
iii. Extortlon: The act or practice of obtaining something or compelling some action by
force or coercion (report via Controls Irregularity Reporting).
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k) Threat-an expression of intention to inflict injury or damage includes a Bomb Threat: (a threat
to detonate an explosive).

i} Trespassing-Evidence of unauthorized intrusion or invasion of company property [rrespective of
resulting damage. There is no cost threshold for reporting.

m) Vandalism-malicious acts intended to damage or destroy company property.

13.2. Investigation of HSSE Incidents

As soon as an incident occurs, the HPL site management will immediately notify the event to Manager
HSSE.

Subsequent to the notification a preliminary incident report shall be submitted within 24 hours after the
event took place and the final and full investigation report shall be ideally submitted as per HPL incident
reporting and investigation mechanism.

Investigation of incidents is a line responsibility and Site In charges or line managers must ensure that all
incidents occurring within their scope of work are reported and investigated using standard procedure.
HSSE staff will be available to facifitate the investigation.

The extent of investigation is determined by:

» The actual consequences
The potential consequences
o And the probability of the potential Consequences accurring.

13.3. Investigation Team

The incidents shall be investigated by a team; the investigation team shall consist of following personnel
as minimum:

Site In charge

Line Manager

Area Supervisor

injured Party (if any)

Witnessing personnel

Contractor Representative (if necessary)
Trained Incident Facilitator (if necessary)

13.4. Follow up of Corrective and Preventative Actions

All the corrective and preventative actions arising from the investigation will be logged in a master
action tracking register so that it can be traced systematically for closure. These actions shali be SMART
and the Incident Investigation training will contain enough knowledge on determining smart actions.

135. Communication of Lessons Learned from Incidents

Regardiess of the size and extend of the incidents there are lessons that need to be learned and shared
with all employees in order to avoid the similar happenings again. The lesson learned shall be shared via
various methods i.e. Newsflash, TBT, Notice Board etc.

There might also be need to revise the procedure and risk assessment following the lesson learned from
the incidents, HPL HSSE Manager shall be responsible to make such procedural changes in coordination
with site in charge with the consent of management.

Copyright HASCOL Petroleum Ltd 2017. All rights resetved. May not be reproduced without permission.



HASCOL Petroleum Limited

= Integrated HSSE Management Manual
@ HSSE Department 29

Doc Number: HSSE-IMM-01 | Rev: 0

Element 14 Performance Management and KPI Reporting
14.1. Performance Indicators & Reporting

HPL HSSE Manager will monitor performance against targets and take Corrective actions where the targets
are not met. The performance shall be monitored with the help of KPI (Key performance Indicators i.e.,
Leading and lagging indicators} and shail be reported accordingly as per monthly HSSE performance

report.

14.2. Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
The following Key Performance Indicators will be reported as minimum

Leading Indicators are designed to drive and measure critical HSSE activities. When measured and
monitored actively, the data from leading indicators enable effective intervention to address or reverse a
negative trend before it results in injury, damage or loss. They comprise:

1. Reported Near-misses, Unsafe Act and Conditions (numbers)
Incident Inquiry Rate {lIR}

HSSE Behavior Observations, Audits, Inspections versus planed (%)
Fire cases {(number)

Spills > 1 m3 {number)

HSSE Audit findings closure rate (%)

HSSE Training completion (%)

Emergency drills {number)

0o W

Lagging Indicators measure outcomes of a company’s HSSE activities, They provide an overall estimate
of the progress required to achieve our vision of excellence, but they not measure the effective
implementation of HSSE programs, proactive action plans or on-the-spot self-assessment. They

comprise:

Fatality
LTI's {Lost Tirne Incidents)
MTC (Medical Treatment Cases)
FAC (First Aid Cases )
TRIR (Total Reportable Injury Rate)
RAR (Road Accident Rate)
Pracess incident
Material Losses
Security Incidents

. Property Damage

. Fire & Explosion

. Fines and Legal Notices

=

R NG MR WN
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]

14.3. Key Controls

Control indicators specify the most important functional controls of over the HSSE from the integrated
operation polnt of view such as reports, reviews and audits.

¢ Ad-hoc Incident Report

+ Monthly HSSE Scorecard

¢ Quarterly HSSE Performance Review
L ]

Annual HSSE Annual Action Plan {Self-Assessment) and Audit Program
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14.4. HSSE Management System Review Audits

HPL shall conduct a systematic through review of its entire HSSE management system internally and
through3rd party consultant annually.

This audit shall be properly planned, notification will be developed, and checklist will be adhered
foliowed by the corrective and preventative action requests.

HPL believes that audits are an improvement tool and honest participation will definitely lead to further
improvements in the system. ,
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Section—B

Safe Work Practices
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1.

SAFE WORK PRACTICES

Objective

The objective of this Practice is to ensure that all Operations and assets are operated, managed and
maintained according to defined rules. Programs, procedures and standards are implemented to
manage risks.

Rights and Responsibilities

> Every employee has the right to:

a. Be provided with adequate information about working conditions, hazardous agents
and equipment used or exposed to in the workplace, their hazards, risks and the
mitigation measures;

> Managers at every level have the responsibility to:

a. Demonstrate commitment and support through values, attitudes and actions which
support the belief that all workplace injuries and illnesses can and shall be prevented.

b. Ensure that the goals and tasks given to employees are not in conflict with safety
reguireaments.

C. Provide a safe workplace and assign safe work, to take all reasonable precautions to
protect employees from illness or injury.

d. Ensure that employees are informed, trained and equipped to be able to do their jobs
safely,

> Every employee has the responsibility to:

a. Follow work instructions and safe work practices;
h.  Comply with legal and Company regulations;

c. Intervene in unsafe or non-compliant situations;
d. Comply with the Life Saving Rules;

e.  Use the appropriate safety equipment for the job.

»  Whenever performing non-routine works that are not under permit to work obligation and in
doubt about the hazards invoived, a Job Safety Analysis must be prepared by the person
directly managing those executing the works.

1.1.Life Saving Rules

> The Life Saving Rules target high risk operations at work where failure to comply has the
highest potential for serious injury or death. These are HASCOL Life Saving Rules which apply
to ali employees and contractor individuals working in Hascol operations.

» There must be a procedure in place that covers reporting, investigation and consequence

management for Life Saving Rule breaches which provides a falr and consistent approach.

1.2.Safe Operation & Fire Safety

»

»

Technalogical processes must be operated in a way which provides avoiding or mitigating the
possibility of causing fire or explosion due to improper integrity of the technology/equipment.

Operating procedures must provide a clear understanding of the detailed operating
parameters and limits for safe operation for all kind of process phases ~ from start-up till
shutdown (normal or emergency). Operating procedures must explain the Health, Safety,
Security and Environmental consequences of operation outside process limits and describe the
steps to be taken to correct and/or avoid deviations.
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Operating procedures must describe also safety systems including their function, instrument
controls, alarm and interlock set points.

Operating procedures must be consistent and up-to-date with process safety information
package including all information about protective safety systems, fire protection and
emergency systems.

Mechanical Integrity {maintenance) Program must be established with focus on maintaining
and contihuously improving the safety critical equipment’s/system’s integrity to contain
hazardous substances throughout the life of the facility. Mechanical Integrity Program must

address:

Maintenance procedures;
Training and performance of maintenance personnel;

Quality control procedures;
Equipment tests and inspections, including predictive and preventive maintenance;

Repairs and changes;

Reliability engineering.

Maintenance procedures must be established and implemented to preserve the mechanical
integrity of process equipment on an ongoing basis — start-ups, routlne operation, shutdowns
and overhauls,

Maintenance personnel must be trained and qualified for assigned maintenance works.
Training must address an overview of the process, specific safety and health hazards
associated with the process, emergency procedures and maintenance practices. Training
frequency for Company staff may not exceed 3 years.

mpens g

Quality control procedures must be established so that maintenance materials, spare parts
and equipment meet design specifications as delivered and to protect against inadvertent use

of improper materials.
A predictive/preventive maintenance program must be established for safety critical

equipment consisting of inspections and tests to detect impending or minor failures and
procedures to mitigate their potential, before they can develop into more serious failures.

A repair and change process must be established for safety critical equipment so that
deficiencies are properly corrected and that changes are done in a way that aliows safe
operation.

An ongoing reliability engineering analysis must be conducted for safety critical equipment for

evaluating how long a system and its individual components can be operated safely before
they are taken out of service for maintenance or replacement.

1.3.Personal Protective Equipment

»

Adequate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE} must be worn at all times when working, as
defined by a risk assessment {e.g. Workplace Risk Assessment - WRA, Job Safety Analysis -
JSA), the Permit to Work {PTW), legal regulation or other relevant document.

All PPEs shall be compliant with local standards.

Direct work supervisors are responsible to perform and sign off a Job Safety Analysis (JSA}
whenever in doubt what PPE to use.
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1.4.Lone Working

>

>

1.5.

A check-in system or other means of communication must be set up for all one working
activities ta ensure that the actual condition and location of the worker is known.

The following activities may not be performed alone:
a.  Safety critical activities;
b,  Works with a relevant risk of exposure to violence or aggression.

Permit to Work

A Permit to Work system is a safe work control system designed to ensure that a formal
process of "permitting” is utilized for specific activities and to allow such work to be safely
carried out using the appropriate level of control. The PTW system applies to work carrled out
by HPL operations personnel and contractors.

A PTW system shall be applied as a minimum for:

a. All safety critical activities
b. All non-safety critical hot works
¢.  Any work defined by local laws or Local Operative Regulation to be under PTW

obligation.
A PTW system shall fulfill as a minimum the following requirements:

a. Schedule and manage tasks effectively to eliminate incompatible tasks being
undertaken;

b. Control work activities and eliminate or minimize risks to people, the environment,
equipment and assets;

c. Notify relevant people of work being carried out, minimize risk of simultaneous
operations;

d.  Verify all precautions have been taken prior to commencing wark and ongoing risk

controls are properly implemented;

Provide written authorization to the work party for the work;

Authorize to access the work area and equipment;

Provide an orderly method to confirm the work is complete;

Ensure that the technoiogy and/or equipment is returned to a safe condition when the

work has been completed or suspended.

@ oo

¥ Minimum content of a PTW:

»

a. Details of the work to be performed {task, location);

Company and personnel eligibility, skill/competency requirement(s) where applicable
{e.g. special fire prevention training required by legislation);

issue, validity and closure date and time;

Hazards and control measures, including but not limited to PPE;

Gas testing results (hot work and entry into confined space only};
Extenston/changeover data;

Information relating to associated certificates (e.g. energy isolation} when applicable;
Information related to adjacent plant(s)/simultanecus operstion{s) that may be
affected;

i Approvais by both issuer and permit holder parties.

The original copies of open PTWs and their attachments must be held at a suitable location by
the issuer {e.g. control room, site office or electronically).

=
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» A copy of the PTW must be present at the workplace/site where the permitted work is
performed.

» PTW can only be issued by trained and authorized personnel.

1.6.Gas Testing

»  Function testing of gas monitors shall be performed prior to their use and/or in accordance
with the manufacturer's instructions. Gas monitors shall be maintained and calibrated in
accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. Calibration records shall be kept availabie,

» The gas tests and operational checks that precede the issuing of a PTW shall be done as close
as practical to the time the work is to begin and Its results shall be recorded on the PTW.

» Personnel performing gas tests must be adequately trained.

»  Areas where hazardous vapours or gases {e.g. toxic, asphyxiant} are or may be present can be
entered only with a personal gas detector. Works in such area may be permitted only with
initial testing and continuous monitoring for the hazardous vapour(s} or gas{es).

1.7.Hot Work

> Any activity involving hot work can be performed only with a Permit to Work.

» A Permit to Work for hot works shall not be valid for shifts other than the one in which the
work was started and shall not be prolonged more than three times.

» Hot works can be permitted and performed under the following conditions:

Oxygen [Y%yn] Lower exposure limit {LEL) [%)]
<23 allowed 0-20%:  allowed
>23 not allowed >20%: not allowed

» Atmosphere at the area of hot work shall be continuously monitored for flammable gases or
vapors if such atmosphere may arise during the course of work.

» If LEL exceeds 20% or new hazards are identified or controls of existing hazards are
compromised, hot work activities shall be immediately suspended, all potential ignition
sources eliminated and the place of work promptly evacuated. Work shall not resume until the
hazardous condition(s) isfare eliminated and the area is resurveyed and determined to be
safe.

»  Safety critical hot works must not be performed alone.

¥  safety critical hot works can be performed only in the presence of a fire watch.

»  APermit to Work for hot worl shall contain the following items additionally:

a.  The name of the authorized fire watch (where applicabie};
b. Special fire prevention precautions;
C. Acceptable hot work conditions that include the initial (where applicable) and periodic
gas tests accompanied by the name(s) of the tester(s} who tested the permit space;
d. Actions to be taken after the hot work had finished.
» Before a Permit to Work for safety critical hot work is issued, the atmosphere at the place of

work shall be tested for the following conditions:

a. Oxygen;
b. Flammable gases or vapors.
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» In case of safety critical hot warks all combustibie materials on the floors, walls, or partition
cellings, or roofs that can be easily moved shall be moved in a safe distance. When the
combustible material cannot be moved, all necessary precautions to protect against exposure
shall be taken before a hot work permit is issued.

> Appropriate controls shall be in place to prevent sparks, welding slag etc. from migrating
outside the immediate work area by positioning of the work or the use of flooring and/or fire-
retardant welding curtain/blankets.

» Al ducts, sewers andfor other systems that could carry sparks outside the immediate work
area shall be shut down, sealed, or protected with fire retardant material.

> if the hot works are carried out in a confined space, additional rules for confined space entry
must be applied.

1.8.Confined Space

> A Permit to Work must be obtalned prior to entering any confined space.

> If entry into the confined space forms part of the regular work activity, the Permit to Work
obligation can be replaced by the application of a safe work practice defined in a method
statement/work Instruction for the specific confined space entry, as long as the following
requirements are alf complied with:

a. A risk assessment is performed as part of the method statement/work instruction to
decide if it is safe to lift the Permit to Work obligation;

b. A watchman is present at each entry;

c. Continuous gas monitoring is parformed within the confined space;

d. All personnei involved in the confined space entry are trained on the method
statement/work instruction.

» A Permit to Work for entry into a confined space shall not be valid for shifts other than the one
in which the work was started and shall not be prolonged more than three times.

> A confined space entry supervisor must be appointed for all works involving entry into a
confined space.

¥ A watchman must be appointed for each entry/exit point into the confined space. Watchmen
must be distinguishable from the entrants; they must be competent and properly equipped to:

a. Know the number of occupants of the confined space at any given time;
b. Maintain communication with the entrants;
c. Initiate emergency and rescue measures.

» A Permit to Work for entry into a confined space shall contain the following items:

The name of the confined space entry supervisor;

The name(s) of authorized watchman(watchmen};

The name(s) of authorized entrant(s);

The hazards of the confined space to he entered;

Measures used to isolate the confined space and to eliminate or control hazards
before entry;

A list of equipment required {e.g. personal protective equipment), gas testing, means
of communication, alarm and rescue measures;

- Acceptable entry conditions that include the initial and periodic gas tests accompanied
by the name(s) of the tester(s) who tested the permit space.

o ap o
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> Before entry, the internal atmosphere shall be tested and recorded on the PTW at the working
level for the following conditions, in the following order:
a. Oxygen;
b. Flammable gases or vapors;
C. Hazardous vapors or gases that are or may be present (e.g. toxic, asphyxiant).

> Work in the confined space can be permitted and performed under the following conditions:

Oxygen [%yp] Lower exposure limit (LEL) [%) j

19-23: no extra measures needed 0-5%: no extra measures needed |
All . entry with  self-contained .
works <19: breathing apparatus only >-20%:  EX-proof toos only

>23: no confined space entry >20% no confined space entry
Hot 0-5%: rules of hot work appiy

: t k

Lwork = o hot work allowed >5%: no hot works aliowed

»  Confined space atmospheres shall be continuously monitored during the performance of work
for the following parameters:
a. Oxygen content;
b. Flammable gases or vapors;
. Hazardous vapors or gases {e.g, toxic, asphyxiant).

» If hazardous vapors or gases are or might be present (irrespective of the oxygen
concentration), the work In the confined space may be performed only with the use of PPE
that provides full body protection and with breathing equipment that is fuily independent of
the ambient atmosphere.

> To facilitate non-entry rescue, personal retrieval systems or methods shall be used, unless the
retrieval equipment would increase the overall risk of antry or would not contribute to the
rescue of the entrant.

1.9.Lifting and Hoisting
»  Personnel performing rigging, signaling and crane operation must be suitably competent.
» Cranes, hoists and lifting equipment (e.g. slings, blocks, hoists, eyebolts, hooks) shall be

subject to periodic documented inspection by a competent person every 12 month or as per
legal requirements or manufacturer instructions.

> Lifting equipment must be fit for purpose (e.g. rated capacity) and compatible with the load.

> A signaler must be appointed whenever necessary (e.g. blind lifting, critical lifting) and
positioned to have continuous visual contact with the crane operator. If line of sight with the
crane operator is not possible, voice communications equipment shall be used. There can only
be only one person designated as signaler during a lift,

» Tag lines are the preferred method to control the load. Where loads have to be physically
guided or put in place by hand, precautions shall be implemented to minimize exposure to
personnel,

»  Staying or letting anybody stay under loads, or executing lifting above personnel is always
forbidden.
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1.10.

The lifting area must be secured (e.g. tapes, barriers) and the lifting path must be kept clear, if
the potential exists for people to move into the area of the lift, a person shall be assigned to
control access to the area.

The lifting operation shall be interrupted immediately if safety is jeopardized {e.8. weather
conditions), when instructions are unclear, or in the event of loss of communication,

A lifting plan must be Prepared for all critical lifting activities. Lift plans must cover the

following as a minimum:
a. General information {date, location, description of the lift)

b Personnel! information {crane operator, rigger, signalers)
c. Crane information (type, crane capacity at lift radius and boom angle)
d. Load information {weight, slings & shackles configuration)
e Communication methods
Approvals
Work at Height

All personnel on a walking or working surface with an unprotected side, edge, or hole where
the potential exists to fall 2 meters or more shail be protected from falling by the use of-
a. Guardrail systems, safety net systems, Personal Fall Arrest Systems or fall restraint
systems, or;
b. Aiternate safe access of the walking or working surface, such as mobile elevated
platforms, basket cars etc,

In all cases where work is being conducted above dangerous environment such as water or
equipment such as moving parts, sharp edges, regardiess of the height, safeguards shalf be in
place to protect persans from falls.

Selection and application of PFAS components:

a. Only full body harnesses shall be utllized and rated for the user's weight;

b. Lanyards shalil be shock absorbing or utilized with deceleration equipment. Maximum
arrest force applied must be less than 8 KN (kilonewton).

< Double or "Y" lanyard that allows for continuous tie off to an anchorage or lifeline;

d. All components of PFAS shall be capable of holding 1500 kg without cracking, breaking
or resulting in permanent deformation;

e. Lanyards should be secured above the waist or overhead whenever possible to
minimize actual fall dlstance.

f. The PFAS components must be configured so as to ensure the total fall distance is less
than the distance between the working surface and the ground or any obstruction in

the fali path.
In case a fall was arrested by a PFAS, rescue within 15 minutes must be provided to the
affected person to prevent suspension trauma.

Personal Fall Arrest System components shali be subject to periodic documented inspection by
a competent person every 12 month or as per manufacturer instruction or legislation.

Personal Fall Arrest System components subjected to impact loading shall be immediately
removed from service and shall not be used again for em ployee protection until inspected and
determined by a competent person to he undamaged and suitable for reuse,

Fall restraint systems must be configured to keep the person in a minimum safety distance of
2 meters from the unprotected side, edge, or hole where the potential to fall exists.
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Ladders may only be used for access purposes or for simple works of short duration,

Maximum climb height on a ladder must be limited to:
a. 2 meters without the use of a Personal Fall Arrest System
b. 6 meters with the use of a Personal Fall Arrest System

walking/working level.

If dropped objects can damage equipment under Préssure or containing hazardous material
the area shall be physically protected or energies shall be isolated,

Scaffolds are allowed to be taken into operation only if a handover tag is visibly placed.
Scaffoids without a handover tag must be considered as being under construction. Handover
tags must be colour coded red standing for no access and green standing for access allowed,

A scaffold handover tag must contain the following as a minimum:

Location where the scaffold was erected

Name of company the scaffold was erected by

Date of handover

Name and signature of responsible person on behalf of the company the scaffoid was

erected by

oo oa

Ground Disturbance

Ground disturbance works can only be commenced if alf underground hazards {e.g. pipelines,
electric cables, other utilities) have been identified located and if necessary, isolated.

Safe access and exit must be provided throughout the axecution of works.

A safety distance must be kept between the edge of any trench/pit and the storage area for
tools, equipment, material, excavated soil etc. to prevent workers from hazards of falling
objects or being byried.

Confined space entry rules apply to any personal occupancy of pits or trenches deeper than
1.2 metres from ground level.

Soll and environmenta) conditions must be observed throughout the execution of works,

Energy Control

equipment damage when maintenance/servicing work s being performed, Energy sources
include any electrical, mechanical, hydraulic, Pneumatic, gravity, chemical, radiation, thermal,
or ather source of energy that could cause injury or harm to People or the environment.
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saurce and mode of isolation of each energy source
C. Date and signature of the person(s) who applied the isolation devices for each energy

source
d. Date and signature of the Manager responsible for the site, unit or equipment

potentially hazardous stored or residual energy shall be relievad, disconnected, restrained, or
otherwise made safe, if there is 3 possibility of re-accumulation of stored energy to a
hazardous level, verification of isofation shall be continued until the servicing or maintenance
Is completed, or until the possibility of such accumulation no longer exists.

>  Local site-specific and/or equipment-specific energy isolation procedures must be developed
with the following content as a minimum:
a. Identification of hazardous energy sources (type, description, location, mode of

control)
b. Personal roles and responsibilities
C. Ruies on application and release of energy isolating devices, tags and lockout devices
d. Rules on shift handover, temporary release of energy isolation and group isolatlon

113. Electrical Safety

1.34. Cutting/ Welding

Any process, including grinding, which produces sparks capable of igniting combustible or flammable
Materials and transmits heat to the work material from a hot 8as. PTW should be obtained prior to any
cutting/ welding activity.

1.15. New Construction

New Construction, New work that is comprised of structural and mechanical work creating new tanks/
building. The following are the types of hot work anticipated for new construction:

> Structural hot work: Cutting/welding reinforcing steel and structural steel for all of the
project's structural work

»  Mechanical work: Building system instaliations, Equipment installations

> General activities hot work: All other cutting/welding for equipment/building component
instaliations ( handrails, guardra fls} and equipment installations

1.16. Opening Process Equipment and Piping

> During opening process equipment and piping {generally “line breaking”} which contains or
has contained any dangerous material (liquids or gases), proper precautions must be taken to
avoid or minimize the risk of serious process incident occy rrence.
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maintenance.

Procedure for depressurizing, draining and handling hazardous materials from the
system/equipment must be in place with definition of roles and responsibiities,

Lock and tag {LOTO) plan must be Prepared/ensured. For further details see “Energy isolation”
part of this document.

PPE for such a work,

Hazardous materials captured during opening system/equipment, must e properly disposed
of.

Integrity Check {pressure test) of Process Equipment

Each integrity check must be planned and implemented in 3 manner that mitigates
unnecessary exposure to proceduraj hazards.

Proper risk assessment (e.g. Job Safety Analysis) must be performed to identify ang mitigate
perceived and actug) environmental and operational hazards,

A written test plan must be prepared prior conducting pressure test, including procedures
and controls related to safety,

Personnel involved in pressure test must have and must use “Stop Work” authority
whenever hazardoys condition or potentially hazardous conditions are identified.

Signs, barricades or other protective barriers must be in place in g manner and at a distance
sufficient to demarcate a safe zone to protect personnel from unanticipated Pressure release
or eguipment failure,

The installation of devices Mmust mark the limits of the exclusion zone.
Unauthorized personnel must be kept out of the test area,
Affected site personnel must be informed about the blanned test.

The eguipment and materials must be arranged to give unobstructed access/egress during
testing and in the event of emergency,

berson and procedure must be in place to ensure that this activity takes place in a safe and
controlled manner.

Prior any temporary bypassing a risk assessment must be prepared and efficient measures
must be defined.

The time of temporary bypassing must be kept to a minimum.

Temporary bypassing not tonger than 7-day can be approved by unit manager. Longer than
7-day bypassing must be a pproved by plant manager,
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For temporary bypassing lenger than 1 month a Management of Change procedure must be
initiated as a “Temporary Change”,

Safety Systems considered by risk assessment as inviolable are strictly prohibited to be
bypassed. 1t means that the protected equipment or process cannot be operated unless
these systems are functioning, in the Operating Procedures these systems must pe
highlighted as “Not to be Bypassed”,

Continued Operation with an Activated Process Safety Alarm
Written procedure Must be in place for defining rules for continued operation with an

a. specification of permitted reasons for Operating with activated process safety alapms

b.  whois authorized to permit this kind of operation

C. specification of time duration during which it is permitted to operate with an activated
Process safety alarm

Road Safety

The following requirements apply as a minimum 1o all vehicles authorized to pe used on
Company business:

a. The vehicle shall be fit for Purpose, and shail be maintained in safe working order

b. The number of Passengers shall not exceed manufacturer's specification for the vehicle

€. Loads shail he secure and shall not exceed the manufacturer's specification and legal

drive on Company business:

8. Drivers shall be appropriately licensed, trained, and medicaliy fit to operate the vehicle

b. Drivers shall be appropriately rested and alert

C. Seatbelts shali he worh by ali Passengers at all times whenever a vehicle is in motion

d. Drivers shall rot be under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or any other substance or
medication that could impair their ability to drive

€. Drivers must not yse hand heid Communication devices or initiate calls while driving
f.  Stopping the vehicle should be preferred to the use of hands-free set while driving
g In haza rdous/operational areas reverse (back-in) parking must pe applied at the

designated parking areas, In ail other areas it is recommended based on loca| emergency
response {and other relevant) considerations
Traveliing shall be avoided if business can be managed effectively via other Mmeans of
communication.

The maximum work/driving hour in a 24-hour period is 12 hours. Any further driving/work
time to a limit of 14 hours requires an assessment to be conducted and signoff by a
supervisor, Work responding to an emergency may be approved at the discretion of a
supervisor.,

in countries with high driving reiated risks (e.g, security, road conditions, remote locations), a
journey Management system shalj be in place.
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> Frequent drivers myst attend a driving safety course (theoretical and practical) within one
year of commencing driving on HASCOL business and repeat every three years,

»  The classification and transportation of dangerous/hazardous goods and materials (HAZMAT)
must be executed throughout full compliance with international standards {i.e. ADR} and
local level regulations {OGRA) and local requirements.
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Emergency Response Manual

1. SCOPE

The scope of this Emergency Response Manual includes the roles and responsibilities of the Emergency
Response Team {ERT) in the Karachi office, links to the relevant Site Response Teams (SRT) of the Hascol
Petroleum Limited {HPL) operational sites.

2. OBIECTIVE

To provide all personnel involved with managing an emergency, a clear understanding of their roles and
responsibilities and to give guidance on what actions they are expected to take in response to an

emergency situation,
This document applies to ali personnel and assets within HPL.
3. RESPONSIBILITIES

Respective management is responsible for ensuring that the necessary arrangements and procedures
defined in this manual are implemented within their spheres of responsibility and that all personnel
who may be required in an emergency are familiar with, and understands, their roles, responsibilities

and duties.
4. DEFINITIONS

Emergency A physical incident that threatens life, the environment, or property, but
which may affect HPL long-term ability to do business {crisis).
Emergency Actions undertaken to manage the consequences of a physical incident

that threatens life, the environment, and assets which may affect HPL
long term ability to do business.

Emergency Management incorporates both the operations response to
the triggering emergency and the supporting staff functions, such as
legal, insurance, human resources, security etc. It is also concerned with
the image, operability and liabilities.

Emergency Actions taken at the site of a physical Incident to preserve life, the
environment and assets.

Emergency Response incorporates the actions of the company, partners,
emergency services and other authorities/agencies.

Site Response Team The group of people in the site who directly manage the scene of an
incident to bring it under control,

Site Response Team Leader  HPL site representative responsible for ensuring the incident i being
correctly managed in-line with HPL Policies, standards and procedures.

Management

Response

Incident A non-conforming event that had a potential or results in threatening
life, the environment or assets, which if not controlled, can escalate toan
emergency and/or crisis.

Incident Management Actions taken by the management team to provide immediate direction

and support to those conducting Incident Control in order to preserve
lives and protect the environment and property. It is likely to include
lizison with emergency services and other agencies immediately
concerned with that support and the effects of the incident.

Level-1 Emergency An emergency that can be controlled or handled by facility personnel &
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DOES NOT require the assistance of the local emergency services.

Level-2 Emergency This is an eémergency that requires assistance from the local emergency
services, e.g. Fire brigade, Mutual Aid Companies, etc. A Level-2 emergency
can result from a natural disaster, large fire or a product spill occurring
outside the facility and may extend for aver one hour,

5. EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM KARACHI OFFICE
1.1 ERT Priorities
The Emergency Response Team has the following priorities during incident management:

* To save and safeguard life (First Priority)
* Protection of the environment (Second Priority)
*  Minimizing damage to plant and property & Resumption of Operations {Third Priority)

1.2 ERT Tasks

Important Note: Only Hascol Petraleum Limited (CEO} or his designate is authorized to respond to the
media.

The Emergency Response Team Karachi Office has the following typical tasks during incident
management (these will vary depending on the specific incident};

Preliminary health and safety direction to those at the scene,
Preliminary security direction to those at the scene
Confirmation of personal details of those involved (including contractors) and dependents
Direction on evacuation options and to move personnel away from the scene of danger.
Initial business impact analysis and business continuity options
Contractual and other liabiiity issues
Preparation of initial reporting to employees, next of kin, partners, any related government
agency and media {If required)
Identification of logistics and adm| nistrative assistance for the next 24 hrs.
Preparation of an Initial situation brief for the CEO
Definition of incident management plan and its implementation
Commtunication with the Site Response Team
Liaison with the €mergency services (state or otherwise).
Mobilization of resources and other sy pport (e.g. logistic) for Site Response Team
Notification of incident and communication {if required) with:
o Local community
Local police via Superintendent of Police
Contractors, Customers and Suppliers
Other HPL employees
Issuing any initial statement to media (control of information)
< Provision of additional HPL management representation at the scene

.......

* ¢ & & 8 o @

C 0 00

Administration Department in Karachi office is responsible to make sure that HPL Emergency Response
Roster attached as Annexure 1 is available in ERT rooms and updated for effective use.

1.3 ERT Organization

The HPL Emergency Response Team Karachi Office is comprised of the following team positions. The
positions required may vary according to the incident:
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Emergency Response Team Leader (ERT Leader)

The ERT leader is on call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The role is changed Between four ERT leaders.
The ERT leader role shall be assumed as per nature of emergency with the approval of CEQ.

The ERT Leader is responsible for:

................

Managing the overall response to the emergency including providing advice and support to the
emergency site and the HPL CEQ.

The ERT Leader is authorized to take immediate actions he considers necessary to minimize
loss, however, actions needing expenditure greater than 1 Million PKR require the approval of
the CEO

Act as the focal point for emergency response.

On initial contact, discuss the situation with the emergency site and advise of any immediate
action to be taken.

Mobilize the necessary ERT members and proceed to the ERT Room, if required.

Assess the situation more extensively {with ERT).

Decide on further actions required and initiate them.

Inform and update the CEQ.

Discuss with the CEO whether HPL CAT {Crisis Action Team) is to be mobilized.

Ensure a continual and consistent flow of information between the ERT and the CEQ,

Assess whether additional support is required.

Ensure information recorded is accurate and the status boards are updated.

Ensure accurate casualty informatlon is being kept.

Ensure the mobilization of support.

Record all communications on the writing pads, with a copy to the Event Logger.

Nominate Operations Representative to act as sole liaison with site of Emergency if required.
Delegate duties as appropriate.

Produce a post Emergency report with recommendations and ensure implementation of same
After the Emergency, ensure all information is securely stored.

Request Contractor management be called to the ERT room, if required (particularly for
contractor related emergencies)

ERT Leader shall callout and cal! off all emergencies of Level 2 and escalating to crisis.

During an Emergency, the ERT leader should conduct regular “round-table” updates, initially about
every haif an hour or as the situation demands, to ensure that all ERT members are aware of the latest
sftuation and of actions taken and planned. Updates must be concise starting with a situation brief from
the ERT leader foliowed by a quick round the table input from individual ERT members who have

something to contribute.

1.3.2

HPL Chief Executive Officer

The CEQ shall be available at all times to oversee the actions of the ERT. HPL CEQ or his designate is the
only authorized contact with in-country government agencies and the media.

The CEQ or his designate is responsible for:

* & & 9 »

Assisting in setting up the ERT room

Liaison with relevant Government Agencies, Police and Media
issuing statements

Approval of expenditure and arranging for approval of expenditure
Authorizing the use of specialist advice/services
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Liaison with other Partners and Contractors

Ensuring the Emergency response complies with appropriate regulations and Company
procedures

Keep a personal log of events and actions taken

Notifications to the OGRA and other Governmental agencies if required

Review performance and current procedures after Emergency has taken place

Operations Representative

The operations representative {operations, retails, fogistics, lubricants, warehouse, LPG, aviation fuel
etc.} is available at all times to deal with operational problems or requirements whilst operational work
is in progress in the site,

The operation’s representative is responsible to:

* & & & @

1.3.4

Assist in setting up the ERT room

Ensure understanding of the current situation

Provide technical advice or if necessary send out technical support to operation site/SRT

Inform ERT Leader or his Designate and Event Logger of actions taken

Contact relevant Contractor and ask for a representative to come to HPL main office {if
required)

Take over sole communication role with the site from the ERT Leader or his Designate if
required

Record all communications on the writing pads with a copy to the ERT Leader or his Designate
ot his Designate and Event Logger

HSSE Representative

The HSSE support shall be fully familiar with the emergency response organization and support the ERT
with advice on emergency response, health, safety and environmenta! protection concerns. The
responsibilities include:;

*

1.3.5

> &+ »

Act as a muster counter; and ensure muster count throughout the course of the emergency
response

Mobilizes personnel or medical services to the site location if required and arranges the
replacement to take over in Head office.

Giving HSSE advice and information to ERT

Ensure the HSSE requirements of the site are communicated, understood and implemented by
the other members of the ERT.

Discuss and agree with ERT Leader or his Designate the HSSE strategy required

Brief any ERT member upon his arrivai to the ERT room

To maintain a time log of all personal actions

To arrange and send additional medical/ liaison help to the site if required as per the
emergency demand.

HSSE representative to brief HSSE team on various issues if required.

Ensure OGRA forms are filled and forwarded to OGRA well in time.

Security Representative

Conduct threat assessments and advise implications
Recommend contingency planning options

Monitor security situation

Contact local network for detailed brief
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Liaise with external security com panies and evacuation

Advise ERT on all threat and crisis response issues

Be prepared to deploy and conduct on-site Security Audit during Incident

Be prepared to deploy and co-ordinate emergency evacuation / enhanced secy rity measures

Procurement Representative

The Procurement Representative is available to deal with problems ar operational requirements for the
various services provided by Procurement department (i.e. Logistic, Transport and Warehouse).

During an emergency, standard logistical procedures may be disregarded, however the paperwork
associated with procurement etc. will be completed at the first convenient opportunity. An accurate log
of personnel, equipment and transport movements must be maintained.

The procurement representative is responsible to:

L]
*
*
*

13.7

Ensure understanding of the current situation.

Arrange mobilization of equipment to support the Emergency.

Inform ERT Leader or his Designate and Event Logger of actions taken,

Record all communications on the message pads passing a copy to the ERT Leader or his
Designate and Event Logger.

Ensure that the events and actions taken are logged accurately.

Ensure the status boards are accurate and kept up to date.

Assist in setting up the ERT room.

Financial Representative

In any emergency situation, the financial representative role is to:

138

Make sure that any need of funds is readily addressed

Ready accessible emergency budget that can be made available to the affected families {e.g.
funeral expenses)

Prepare and monitor emergency budgets

Oversee finance and banking procedures

Legal Representative

in any emergency situation, the HPL legal representative should protect:

* & & 0 @
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The company from criminal prosecution

The company from future liability

Employees of company

Documents of the company

The company’s position with insurers and regulators

Advise HPL to photograph and photocopy important pieces of evidence that might be removed
by the company, the emergency services or the regulators

Any internal enquiry into an emergency should be forwarded to the legal to watch out for any
legal standings

HR Representative

If the incident involves casualties, collect all casualty information and list names, reference
indicators, company, injuries and location.
Provide information on personnel, next-of-kin etc.
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Biscuss and agree with ERT Leader or his Designate or his Designate the operational strategy
required.

1.3.10 Administrative Representative

The Administration Representative will:

I...ﬂ....

13.11

13.12

Organize administrative support for the ERT

Ensure understanding of the current situation.

Ensure phone/fax systems are operable and manned.

Liaison with materials representative on personnel movements and transport requirements.
inform ERT Leader or his Designate and Event Logger of any actions taken.

Arrange mobilization of additional personnel as required.

Arrange transport for personnel and equipment as required.

Arrange accommodation, clothing, and financial assista nce for personnel as required.

Record all communications on the message pads with a copy to the ERT Leader or his Designate
and Event Logger.

Admin Coordinator

Assembling whatever documentation and information may be required.

Providing refreshments and food for team members as required.

Ensure that all faxes received relating to the Emergency are passed on to the ERT Leader or his
Designate

Ensure that all outgoing faxes are successfully sent.

To keep a duplicate record of all outgoing and incoming faxes along with time for ready
references

Assist the ERT Leader or his Designate as required.

Standby far any requirements that might come from time to time

Event Logger

It is the responsibility of the event logger to:

Ensure understanding of the current situation.

Log all details of the current situation in the correct order on the Emergency Status Boards as
recorded on the writing pads by other ERT members.

The log shali be maintained on clearly visible white boards or a flipchart. Important decisions,
confirmed events and information shall be summarized on 2 separate board or chart,

Maintain details of all major activities and decisions made within in the ERT. The log shall be
used to record relevant telephone numbers, information regarding casualties, incident location,
resources mobilized and utilized, etc. The log shall be clea tly written, accurate and concise.

Switchhoard Operator

This support should have the ability to man the HPL phone and fax system.

Respond immediately to ali incoming emergency telephone calls,

Ensure that ail calls relating to the Emergency are passed on to the relevant person i.e, the ERT
room for operational matters and all matters concerning media, relatives, government
authorities and other outside agencies.

Request information from the cailer, repeat back Information (to ensure accuracy) and record
all relevant information on an emergency operator log sheet
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¢ Do not give out any information relating to the incident or an

press.

Y injuries to any third party or
i

*  Must not leave the switchboard uniess relieved by a designated relief person and shouid remain
calm and keep all lines of communication dedicated to the emergency traffic.

¢ He/ She should have an empty format
calls should be recorded on the forms.

Designate about the call.

1.4 Potential Emergencies of HASCOL Operations

(Initial Emergency Report} at all times. Any emergency
He would then immediately inform the ERT Leader ot his

Potential . Lewvel Inltiating and
Emergency Event Likelthood Consequence of Risk Sscondary Events Control Maasures
. Training, inspectians
i L
il L) An explosion which maintenance schedulas,
operations due to .
. . causes strirctural Detection systems, alarm
oll leakage or other | Possible Major High
flammable damage, the fire to systems, Fre braaks, Flre |
N spraad and injuries Tender and trained ER
materials .
personnel, ER exercises
Explosion A fire which causes Training, inspections, ‘!
. ' d ]
{including BLEVE) URgket Major Medium ::1;3?; r;ty amage and maintenance schedules
N — |
Spills {liquids, Meeting design |
solids, radicactive standards, Inspection of
A
and other Possible Moderate Medium re‘lease that causes Facilities, smail
enwvironmental harm R .
dangerous cantainers, bundling,
materials) training
Gas leak — A fire or explosion that Training, inspections
flammable Possible Major High causes structural mainteﬁ'ancgsch eduies
{LPG/LNG) damage and injuries
A significant impact DC trainings, Journey
Road Accidents Likely Moderate High event that causes Management System,
injuries Manitoring
igni t i -
Road Accidents - . ) A significant impact Contractor Management,
HAZMAT Possible Major High event that causes fire, Journey Management
multiple injuries System, Monitoring
Possible sign of heart
related problem, severe | .
F
Medical Emergency | Possible Moderate Medium asthma attack or result (=K arran_gements
. . and medevac if required,
of an injury or accident
etc.
An out of control mob B
Civil disturbances that causes a fire, Security Guards, training,
like Riots aessibte L Medium explasion, gas leaks, community relations
injuries
An explosion that
Bomb threats Possible Major Medium causes fire, explosion, Procedure, training
gas leaks, injuries
HPL employee or
contractor may be Procedure, securit
Kidnapping Possible Major Medium kldnapped and further » SECUMLY
protocols, training
demands of ransom
and may harm them
Aningress of water that .
X F!
flood Unlikely Minor Low causes Jand slip or insm:it'?g:tse:?g'r‘t’s
subsidence P !
Likel Minor Medium An out of control fire Flre breaks, Fire Tender
Grass/bush fire v that causes property and trained ER personnel,
damage and injuries ER exercises
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Potentia! - Level Initiating and
Emergency Event Likelihood ’ Consequence ’ of Risk Secondary Events ! Control Measures
A tremor or ground
movement that could Building
Earthquake Rare Moderate Medium cause spilis, gas leaks, e
fires, injuries, Land slip specification/design
or subsidence
Strong winds and heavy
Cyclones/Wind/ rain that causes Bullding
Lightening / Rare Major Medium flooding , land specification/design,
Thunderstarms slip/subsidence, fires or Lightening arrestors
explosion
1.5 ERT Room

151 Location and Contact Number
Administration department is responsible to keep this information updated on office notice boards.

1.5.2 ERTRooms Arrangements
ERT leader shail ensure that ERT Rooms shall be equipped with:

Relevant procedures

Local area maps

HPL Sites details

Contact numbers

Refevant maps/diagram

Telephones with direct International lines are in working condition and stored in designated
cupboard.

Fax machine is operating and remains in the ERT room

TV with National channels

Video Conferencing

Conference Call facility

Possibility of Voice recording

Stationary

At least 1 white hoard and 1 flipchart board

Writing pads

Large Digital Clock

Computer with network connection. All the Emergency Response Manual and information is
stored on the computer

1.6 Calls from the Media or Speciai Interest Groups

The media includes newspapers, TV, radio, press agencies, etc.

Special interest groups include environmental organizations, political groups, public badles, etc.
Do not discuss any matter at all. Transfer all such calls to the ERT Leader.

A separate telephone number should be made available for such calls.

If a separate number is established, refer all media and special interest groups to it,

1.7 Emergencies Related to Logistics

Logistics include transportation and distribution of petroleum products to the customers, Tanker Lorries
usually carry refined petroleum products including LPG, LNG and furnace oil. The logistics emergencies
related to following:
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e Tank lorry roll aver due to over speed
e Fire / Explosion in case of spillage/ leakage

TREM card introduced for drivers to deal with any situation in case of emergency is given as Annexure 2.
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